AUX

AUX INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
R HERERBERL T

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RESFSEMALNERAT)

STOCK CODE B335 : 2080

2022

Annual Report
S



Contents
B

2 Corporate Information

NEE

4 Chairman’s Statement
FEWmE

8 Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE N wmEDT

17 Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EELeREEECEE

20 Corporate Governance Report
EEERMSE

36 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - HEgRERRE

96 Report of the Directors
EFEERE

114 Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 3 1% BUE R

122 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

RAEBaEK

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
123 Comprehensive Income
meBakEMEEkaR

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BRI K

126 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GREREDE

127 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
RERERER

129 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A RERWE

Five-Year Financial Summary
212 TEMBRE



Corporate Information
AEIEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Liang Songluan
(resigned with effect from é May 2022)
Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Ms. Lou Aidong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairlady)
Mr. Zheng Jiang

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Ms. Shen Guoying

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Tsang Kwok Shan, Sandy, FCCA
Mr. Chan Hon Ki, CPA, FCCA

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Hon Ki, CPA, FCCA
Ms. Tsang Kwok Shan, Sandy, FCCA

AUDITOR
KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor,

Prince’s Building,

10 Chater Road, Central,
Hong Kong

P AUX International Holdings Limited / B 5 B BB 42 RA R A F

Exg

BITES
BR5T 45 4
BRIEH S
PRERTE
(B=—F - —FAANNAEFF)
M S odu

BYFHITES
ERRE AL
LS
BERLL

BEREES

MNEEE (ZE)
EIRE L
BERLL

FHWEES

BERLE (FE)
BIx4E
EIRE L
LS

REZEES

BTRE(FE)
EEZ T
ERRE AL
LS
BERLL

REAXR

BRIzt FCCA
[R5 SH S A4 - CPA » FCCA

BELIRAME

RGESH % 4 - CPA, FCCA
B H Mzt FCCA

7% 4

25 E AN E AT

R CEF 5 BE R B R )) T el A 2 A a8
BRI BIAD

FEEHIR

EFT B 105

RKFRE

8t



Corporate Information
NTFE R

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1, 10/F,,

Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY

Chiu & Partners

40th Floor, Jardine House,

1 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108 Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Bank of Communication Co., Ltd.
Yinzhou Bank

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Beijing

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.auxint.com

STOCK CODE
2080

HERREETELEME
BB BT

& JE 551828857

HEEEF L

101201 E
EBRODBFERXRDE
BEZEFELARAA
BEERRNER183

& F 541
AKABWEREER

A B B R R B S FRT
BEPIR

FE 4 E 51557

18 M K E404E
HEHRERMBFERE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108 Cayman Islands

EREREAT
EFKFRITARAT
ZBRITRHBRA A
I RAT

FEISRTT (BE) BRAFA
I RIBAT

K Bl

www.auxint.com

R 42 X 5%
2080

Annual Report 2022 % 3R

3



Chairman’s
Statement

FTREHRS




Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Company'’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022.

With the situation of the COVID-19 pandemic remaining, 2021
is unquestionably a year full of challenges and difficulties
for the Group. With people in Hong Kong still adapting the
COVID restricted living habits and various social distancing
measures, the Group's Hong Kong operation had significantly
limited performance potential in 2021. In addition, our
belief in providing a safe and hygienic environment for our
customers in lifestyle entertainment segment has restricted
our efficiency in resource utilisation.

Our property management segment has also faced tough
challenges from changes in the real estate industry in China,
a closely related industry. The real estate industry in China
was under scrutiny when real estate companies had difficulty
easing their financial pressure under the further tightening
of government and financial regulation. Therefore, as the
property management industry works closely with the real
estate industry, it has caused uncertainty to the potential of
the property management industry.

Despite the closeness between these two industries,
we believe that the property management industry is
fundamentally different from the real estate industry. Two
key attributes of the property management industry have
protected the industry from turbulence in China’s real estate
industry. First, the demand for debt financing within the
industry is generally low, and second, its business model offers
consistent operating cash flow. With new projects added
each year, it comes with growth momentum. In addition,
government policy also favours the property management
industry. For example, ten ministries and commissions jointly
issued the Notice on Strengthening and Improving Residential
Property Management and emphasis on the property
management industry in the 14th Five-Year plan indicates
China Government's support for the industry. With the support
of these government policies, we believe that the property
management industry will continue its healthy development.

To steer through these challenges, we continued to emphasise
our core beliefs on providing quality services to satisfy the
needs of our customers and fortify our brand recognition in
both of our business segments.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Guided by this belief and with the effort of our teams, we
have achieved double-digit growth in our revenue, nearly
doubled our net assets and significantly improved our net
result from a net loss of HK$8.6 million to almost breakeven
this year.

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 17.9% to
approximately HK$357.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2022. While both of our segments have achieved double-digit
revenue growth, revenue growth was mainly driven by a 13.8%
increase in revenue from the property management segment.

Regarding the property management segment, revenue from
property management services has increased by HK$39.5
million from HK$288.7 million last year to HK$328.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2022. The growth was mainly
driven by the number of large-size projects managed. Its total
GFA under management continued to expand, increased by
1.06 million sq. m, 13.9%, to 8.68 million sq. m, compared to
last year. The new expansion area was mainly located in first-
and second-tier or provincial capital cities in the Pearl River
Delta and Bohai Rim, which continue to increase our brand
awareness.

In terms of the lifestyle entertainment segment, revenue from
the lifestyle entertainment segment has increased by HK$14.9
million, 104.9%, from HK$14.2 million last year to HK$29.1
million this year. We have increased our marketing efforts
to cope with the changes in customer behavior through
measures.

OUTLOOK

The Group's property management business continued to be
recognised by the market and has been a solid contributor.
Building on the existing foundation, Ningbo AUX was
ranked 35th among the 2022 China’s Top 100 Best Property
Management Service Companies in April 2022 and awarded
the Management Excellence in Hospital Premises China
2022 award in the same month. Ningbo AUX will continue
to enhance its brand in hospital property management and
devote more resources to establishing brand awareness in
industrial park management services.

Anticipating that the slow-down in China’s real estate industry
might persist in the coming year, Ningbo AUX will also seek
opportunities to realise the potential of its community value-
added services to enrich its income source,

6 AUX International Holdings Limited / 832 f BB 2 BB PR A

ERHESNEETURERMEERNS T
BAMKEERENBER EEFEERD
— B FRERBIRFESOAE BT ARNRE
ERFEEIW S T

AEBHEZE-_E-_—_F=ZA=+—HILFED
WK IE R 417 9% E 49357 2B &8 7T o & B 1M
E’JWI’UME\EEE’E&;&MLléz/\i- EER &
EREIEIVEEES W EIERI138BATHE
@Jo

MUEXEESTME MEETERBHOWESR
KER28BTEBAELIENISEELETEHE
CE - CFE=ZA=+—HILFEWI282HES
ToZERTESIETEENAMNIBESBMHES-

EXEREEmERERA REAFIEM.06H
%ﬂ?ﬁﬁumaﬁiabsﬁéﬂ?ﬁﬁ“ FHhRE
BEBNREZARBRHEN — —KRiEe
W BEEARMNBENGE -

EVRIRGE S EFRRES WM A E
ﬂmm.zﬁﬁé;aﬁiﬂu14.9§§/’§mi$¢rm
20 1EEE T IBIEA1049% - B fIT B BFE
MREHENEUEHEFITANEL-

RE

REBNMEESBEGEERESMISRYT A
REBERBTERM - TREEME EERT
TR -ZE_—FNARE_T_—FHPEEFA
LHEEMEETERBRREIG  WHRFE AL
B_Z__FEHEHEBERNEEFERR =
BRI EERAELERMEERERE I
BAEZERTCEXRERERBEL MBS
F;fo

HEERRETEENETETESSERE B
BB R TR AL B RS
B A H AR -



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

With the COVID-19 outbreak in Hong Kong remaining
unstable and the global economy in turbulence, the Group
is conservative on the outlook of its lifestyle entertainment
segment in the next 12 months. However, the Group believes
that with the COVID-19 restrictions gradually loosening up,
its lifestyle entertainment segment will be able to improve its
performance.

During the year, the Group's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Ningbo Po Tai Hengmao Trading Co., Ltd (“Ningbo
Hengmao”), entered into a joint venture agreement with
various investors to expand into the development and
production of photovoltaics products business. The Group
was expecting that the expansion would provide another
stable income source when the Group's lifestyle entertainment
segment gradually broke away from the shadow cast by the
COVID-19 outbreak. However, as the business development
of the joint venture business is not as expected, and more
resources are required to support the lifestyle entertainment
segment, the Group has decided not to pursue further in the
photovoltaics products business in April 2022.

For long-term development, the Group will persist in
achieving steady growth in revenue and shareholders’ returns
by scrutinising any beneficial market changes to expand
into different industry sectors and broaden income sources.
Furthermore, when suitable opportunities arise, the Group will
not preclude the possibility of pursuing suitable investment
opportunities in e-commerce, internet information technology,
and other emerging industries to expand into different income
sources.
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On behalf of the board, | would like to thank my fellow
directors, the management and all staff for their hard work
and contribution to the development of the Group in the
past year. | would also like to express appreciation to all
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Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The Group has achieved an 17.9% increase in revenue and
improved its performance compared to last year in a business
environment where the outbreak of COVID-19 continues
to create significant difficulties. With the efforts of all
employees, the Group was awarded the 2022 China’s Top 100
Best Property Management Service Companies award and
the Management Excellence in Hospital Premises China 2022
award.

The Hong Kong economy in the past year was still adversely
affected by the COVID-19 outbreak, and various social
distance measures on the Group’s lifestyle entertainment
segment remained in effect.

While the Group's lifestyle entertainment segment continued
to be bound by various social distance restrictions, its
revenue contribution to the Group recorded an increase of
approximately HK$14.9 million from HK$14.2 million in the last
financial year to HK$29.1 million in the financial year ended
31 March 2022.

Although the Group’s revenue from lifestyle entertainment
segment has increased by approximately HK$14.9 million
this year, various segment costs also increased compared
to last year. With often limited operating hours imposed
by COVID-19 prevention measures, the Group's advertising
expenses have been increased by HK$3.3 million from HK$1.3
million to HK$4.6 million to encourage changes in customers’
behaviors and remain competitive in the market.

Due to the further tightening of government and financial
regulations in the real estate industry, the real estate industry
in China slowed down last year. Therefore, the property
management industry, a highly correlated business operation
with the real estate industry, was expected to be generally
affected. Fortunately, with the Group’s brand reputation, the
Group's property management segment continued to provide
growth momentum to the Group this year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

Ningbo AUX Property Management Service Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo
AUX") continued to optimise and expand its project portfolio
to focus on projects with a larger service area. As a result, the
number of projects managed by the Group as of 31 March
2022 had increased from 63 projects to 65 projects, while
aggregate contracted gross floor area increased from 7.62
million square meters (“sgq.m.”) to 8.68 million sgq.m.

Revenue contribution from Ningbo AUX was approximately
HK$328.2 million in the current year compared to HK$288.7
million in the financial year ended 31 March 2021. As a result,
the Group’s total revenue increased by approximately 17.9%,
from HK$302.9 million last year to HK$357.2 million this year.

To provide better services and assurance to its customers
against the COVID-19 pandemic, Ningbo AUX had contributed
more resources to enhance its sanitary measures. As a result,
the Group's property cleaning expenses have increased by
20.0%, or approximately HK$13.0 million, from HK$65.0 million
last year to HK$78.0 million this year.

Along with the increase in revenue across segments this
year, the Group’s staff costs also increased by approximately
22.0% to approximately HK$158.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2022.

The COVID-19 outbreak appeared to persist in Hong Kong,
and it has created uncertainty in the future outlook of the
lifestyle entertainment segment. As a result, the Group's
life entertainment segment recorded an impairment loss
on property, plant, and equipment of HK$7.7 million.
Furthermore, the Group has decided not to pursue in the
photovoltaics products subsequent to the year end. The
Group recorded an impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment of HK$3.6 million, prepayment of property, plant
and equipment of HK$3.4 million and intangible asset of
HK$33,000.

In addition, the Group incurred a net exchange loss of HK$3.5
million under the RMB-denominated loan from the controlling

shareholder.

As a result, profit before taxation of the Group has increased
from HK$7.1 million last year to HK$18.5 million this year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

OPERATING COSTS

Staff Costs

The staff costs comprise salaries, wages, discretionary
bonuses, membership commissions, tips from customers
allocated to staff and other benefits including retirement
benefit costs and other allowances and benefits payable to
permanent and part time staff. The staff costs increased by
approximately 22.0% or HK$28.6 million to approximately
HK$158.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 from
approximately HK$129.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2021. The increase was mainly due to increase in staff costs
incurred from the property management segment.

Utilities Expenses and Repair and Maintenance Expenses
The utilities expenses and repair and maintenance expenses
increased by approximately HK$3.4 million or 13.1% for
the year ended 31 March 2022. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in expenses incurred from the
property management segment during the year.

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses remained stable at
approximately HK$34.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: approximately HK$35.2 million). Such
expenses include gardening costs, security costs and other
miscellaneous expenses.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$431.3 million
(31 March 2021: approximately HK$324.5 million) and
approximately HK$318.8 million (31 March 2021: approximately
HK$202.4 million) respectively, while the current ratio was
about 1.4 times (31 March 2021: 1.6 times).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group maintained cash at bank
and in hand of approximately HK$330.2 million (31 March
2021: approximately HK$227.2 million). In the foreseeable
future, the Group expects to fund its capital expenditures,
working capital and other capital requirements from the
net proceeds from the subscription of new shares by the
controlling shareholder of the Company, cash generated from
its operations and other financing means which the Company
may from time to time consider appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

Total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$102.1 million (31 March 2021:
HK$108.3 million), which was mainly represented by the loan
of RMB72 million with a term of five years at an interest rate of
2% per annum granted by the controlling shareholder of the
Company to Starry Chance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for the purpose of financing its
acquisition of the entire equity interests in Ningbo AUX. The
gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total interest-
bearing borrowings by total equity, as at 31 March 2022 was
0.4 (31 March 2021: 0.8).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 26 October 2021, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Huiri Limited, the controlling shareholder of
the Company (the “Subscriber”). Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for 118,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company at the subscription price of
HK$0.63 per share for a consideration of HK$74,340,000 (the
“Subscription”). The Directors are of the view that the Group
has genuine funding needs and the Subscription will be the
most appropriate means to satisfy such funding needs for
the reasons set out in the circular of the Company dated 31
December 2021. All the conditions set out in the subscription
agreement have subsequently been fulfilled and accordingly,
the completion of the Subscription took place on 15 February
2022. The net proceeds from the Subscription, after deduction
of the related expenses, of approximately HK$73,730,000 were
intended to be applied for working capital, rental expenses
of the lifestyle entertainment segment and partial repayment
of the loans from the controlling shareholder. The net price to
the Company of each subscription share was approximately
HK$0.62. As at the date of this report, approximately HK$3.7
million of the net proceeds raised from the Subscription
had been used to supplement the Group's working capital.
The remaining balance was deposited in licensed financial
institutions in Hong Kong. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 26 October 2021, 17 January 2022 and
15 February 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 31
December 2021 for further details of the Subscription.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBNWEDN

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through maintaining the equity and
debt in a balanced position.

As at 31 March 2022, the capital structure of the Group
consists of equity of approximately HK$243.9 million (31
March 2021: approximately HK$135.7 million) and loans
from the controlling shareholder of approximately HK$110.9
million (31 March 2021: HK$85.3 million). Except for the loans
from the controlling shareholder (current portion) and lease
liabilities, the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings,
debt securities or other capital instruments as at 31 March
2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURES AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures or
significant investments held during the year ended 31 March
2022.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 March 2021: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year, the Group's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Ningbo Po Tai Hengmao Trading Co., Ltd (“Ningbo
Hengmao”), entered into a joint venture agreement with
various investors to expand into the development and
production of photovoltaics products business. The Group
was expecting that the expansion would provide another
stable income source when the Group's lifestyle entertainment
segment gradually broke away from the shadow cast by the
COVID-19 outbreak. However, as the business development
of the joint venture business is not as expected, and more
resources are required to support the lifestyle entertainment
segment, the Group has decided not to pursue further in the
photovoltaics products business in April 2022.

The Group intends to conduct more in-depth reviews on the
suitable development strategies for the Group, including
the feasibility of diversifying the income stream of the
Group by exploring different business and investment
opportunities in different business areas such as trading,
property management, internet information technology and
other emerging industries, which may or may not include any
assets and/or business acquisitions or disposals by the Group,
and will consider all options. Any such plans will be subject
to review and approval by the Board and compliance with
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules where
appropriate. The costs of such acquisitions will be met with
cash generated from the operations of the Group and other
financing means which the Group may consider appropriate
from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from Renminbi
("RMB"). Foreign exchange risks arise from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
RMB for the entities with a functional currency in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group did not use any forward contracts to hedge
its foreign currency exposure during the year. The Group will
from time to time review and adjust its hedging and financial
strategies based on exchange rate movements in RMB and
Hong Kong dollars.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed approximately
1,089 employees (31 March 2021: The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its staff,
including share option scheme, mandatory provident fund
scheme and discretionary bonus.

1,077 employees).

PROSPECTS

The Group is conservative on the outlook of its lifestyle
entertainment segment as the Group expected the COVID-19
outbreak situation would persist in the next 12 months.
However, the Group is optimistic that when the COVID-19
outbreak subsided in Hong Kong, it will provide growth
momentum to the Group's lifestyle entertainment segment. To
cope with the change in the business environment, the Group
will focus on improving efficiency in the lifestyle entertainment
segment through streamlining operation procedures.

At the same time, the Group continues to enhance its
brand image as one of the most reputable hospital property
management company and expand its portfolio to include
industrial park projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERESN

While the Group is waiting for the business environment of
its lifestyle entertainment segment to improve, the Group
believes that the performance of its property management
segment will continue to be strong. The Group will continue
enhancing its balanced earning portfolio, regularly reviewing
its business performance, and identifying favourable
investment opportunities.

Lifestyle entertainment segment

With the COVID-19 outbreak still clouding Hong Kong, the
Group will emphasis on its cost-conscious and delicately
allocate resources to prepare for further business restrictions
towards the segment. However, while the Group has been
conservative in the coming months, it still believes that
demand for its goods and services will surge when these
restrictions are relaxed and the Group will significantly benefit
from the rebound of the industry.

Property management segment

The Group's property management segment has continued
to increase its contracted gross floor area and improved its
revenue size. The Group will continue its focus on building
its brand reputation and look for opportunities to provide
community value-added services to its residential customers
to enrich its income source.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEB 2HE

Mr. Zheng Jiang (£f5I), aged 57, is the chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company and has joined
the Group since May 2015. He is currently a director and
deputy chairman of AUX Group, a China Top-500 enterprise
with business operations in multiple industries, primarily in
air conditioner manufacturing, power equipment, healthcare
and finance. He had been a director and the deputy
chairman of Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. (&
R=—EBHRERRMABRAA), a Chinese electrical meter
manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 601567) ("Ningbo Sanxing Medical”), since its listing
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June 2011 until March
2014 when he vacated such offices by rotation. He has over
26 years of experience in corporate management. He is a
brother of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the controlling shareholder
of the Company. He is also the sole legal and beneficial
owner and sole director of Ze Hong Limited, which legally
and beneficially owns 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri
Limited, which in turn is interested in 337,950,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 68.55% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (BRZEH), aged 43, is the executive
Director, chief executive officer and a joint company secretary
of the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015.
He holds a bachelor's degree in commerce from University of
Canterbury, New Zealand. He is a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 17 years of experience in
the field of auditing and accounting. He has been serving as
an independent non-executive director of Wah Ho Holdings
Group Ltd (stock code: 9938) since December 2019 and was
an independent non-executive director of Chen Lin Education
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593) from November
2019 to June 2021. All the above are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Shen Guoying (LBl %), aged 51, is the executive
Director of the Company and has joined the Group since May
2015. She is currently the chief executive officer in healthcare
of Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Co., Ltd, and a director of
Ningbo Sanxing Medical. She holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy awarded jointly by The Open University of China
(P REHEEHR KZE) and Beijing Technology and Business
University (b IR TRAKZ) . She is a senior accountant (/=& &%
25HAT) in the PRC. She has over 27 years of experience in
finance management.
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Biographical Detai
EEROREEBZEE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (EHME]) , aged 60, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director,
vice president and the company secretary of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336). Mr. Poon was
awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the University
of London. He holds a master’s degree in international
accounting, bachelor’'s degree in laws and a bachelor’s
degree in business studies. He is a fellow of CPA Australia
Ltd., the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a
fellow of The Chartered Governance Institute, and a fellow
of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a
member of its Technical Consultation Panel and Mainland
China Focus Group. Mr. Poon has years of experience in
finance, compliance, and listed companies management. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of Sunac
China Holdings Limited (stock code: 1918), Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2789), Changan Minsheng
APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1292), Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 631), Greentown Service Group Co., Ltd. (stock code:
2869), Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (stock
code: 2362), and Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited
(stock code: 1171). During the three years preceding the date
of this report, Mr. Poon had served as an independent non-
executive director of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1249), TUS International Limited (currently known as
Titan Invo Technology Limited; stock code: 872) and Honghua
Group Limited (stock code: 196) from July 2013 to March
2021, from September 2015 to July 2020 and from June 2017
to December 2021, respectively. All the above are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Detai
EEROREEBZEE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (£8/N#), aged 55, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He was an executive director, chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Chen Lin
Education Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593) from
September 2018 to May 2021. Mr. Bau holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration in Accountancy and
Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 19 years of experience in
accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Bau
was appointed on 22 June 2018 as an independent non-
executive director of FSM Holdings Limited (stock code: 1721).
All of the above are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lou Aidong (E2E X ), aged 56, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company and has joined the Group
since May 2015. She is currently a partner of Beijing Kangda
Law Firm (JE R REEAEHFT) . She holds a bachelor’s
degree in law from the Peking University (3t R KE) . Ms.
Lou is a qualified attorney in the PRC and has over 29 years
of experience in the legal profession. From May 2008 to April
2010, she was a member of Public Offering Review Committee
(178 % % B ®) of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (F R ESFEBEEZEE). She served as
an independent director of three companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely Guangdong Hongda
Blasting Co., Ltd. (BRZEKBEWR D BR 2 A]) (stock code:
002683), from December 2010 to December 2016, and Jiangsu
Nata Opto-electronic Material Co., Ltd. T & KB M KR
I BBRAF]) (stock code: 300346), from October 2010 to June
2017 and Guangdong Xiongsu Technology Group Co., Ltd. (&
HIEBERIBEBBRHGBRAE) (stock code: 300599), from June
2016 to August 2017. She has been an independent director
of a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, namely
Yunnan Metropolitan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (&£
M EEZERMDBRAA) (stock code: 600239), and two
companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Visionox Technology Inc. (#{5# BHE 1D BB A &) (stock
code: 002387) and Hubei Kailong Chemical Group Co., Ltd
(Rt sl TEBIR B AR A A) (stock code: 002783), since
December 2019, May 2021 and January 2020, respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEEAHRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
they have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic
decisions to the Group's activities and oversees its financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to
the management for the Group’s daily management and
operations.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors possessed the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise, which
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a
strong independent element in the Board, which effectively
exercised independent judgement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Liang Songluan
(resigned with effect from é May 2022)
Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

The brief biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 17 to 19.

Save as disclosed in the section headed "“Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director, a written confirmation of his or her
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged trainings for Directors in the form of seminars and
provision of training materials. All Directors have provided
their training records to the Company.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March
2022 is as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zheng Jiang BT &

Mr. Chan Hon Ki BROEHSEE

Mr. Liang Songluan RekE

Ms. Shen Guoying M
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERRE A&

Mr. Bau Siu Fung RS b

Ms. Lou Aidong EFRLL

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held
separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Zheng Jiang
and the role of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. Chan
Hon Ki. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
governance for the Board while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for day-to-day management of the Group's
business.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

The service contracts of Mr. Zheng Jiang, Mr. Chan Hon
Ki and Ms. Shen Guoying all have an initial term of three
years with effect from 15 May 2015. These contracts shall be
renewed and extended automatically for successive terms of
one year upon expiry of the then current term until terminated
by him or her by giving not less than three months’ written
notice expiring at the end of the initial term of his or her
appointment or any time thereafter to the Company, or by the
Company by giving not less than three months’ written notice
expiring at the first anniversary of the initial term of his or her
appointment or any time thereafter to him or her.
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Each of the current independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed to the Board for an initial term of three years
commencing from 15 May 2015 which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated either by him
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his appointment or any time
thereafter to him or her.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the Company’s Articles
of Association. The appointment of each of the Directors is
subject to his re-election at an annual general meeting upon
retirement. The Company's Articles of Association provides
that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not 3
or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Accordingly, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok shall
retire by rotation at the annual general meeting. All of the
above Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the same meeting.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to CG Code provision C.5.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the Director shall abstain from voting on
the relevant resolutions and he/she shall not be counted
as a quorum in the Board meeting discussing the matter
concerned.

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
of the Directors at the Board and committee meetings of the

Company held during the year ended 31 March 2022:

Attendance to meetings

S ST YIS R AT MBI AT AR S B B R SRS
AREERVBRA - EEAHANEBET
BASTALFEEE

el MEFERETESFEEHRE2LMR-
HEFEREFERTERNREZTELFEN
SnEHR MEFERRZEANZERBEA R
%$ZEEAETEﬁEZIE$HE"]§$AQZ§ el
RERMERE BTGB AEEARC
TXHIEEEHEARABE_T_—_F=

A=Z+—BLEFEMBRTNEEELLERS
AR

HESE

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE/ BTEERY
Regular Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration  Extraordinary Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Espg EHESZLEE BENZE9eE RAZECEE FHZEEed RREIKE RREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zheng Jiang B4 4/4 N/A Fja R n n n n
Mr. Chan Hon Ki RELRE 4/4 N/A Fa N/A Fja n n n
Mr. Liang Songluan (resigned with ZEERLE
effect from 6 May 2022) (BE-E-—FRANAEEE) 3/4 N/A T A N/A T A N/A 7@ 11 11
Ms. Shen Guoying TEETL 4/4 N/A Fa R n N/A TR n n
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok EREEE 4/4 4/4 n n n n
Mr. Bau Siu Fung Lol it 4/4 4/4 11 11 11 11
Ms. Lou Aidong EERLL 4/4 4/4 n n 01 mn
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The annual general meeting of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 is scheduled to be held on 23 August
2022,

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
All the Board committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company'’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 January 2014 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. For the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman), Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok and Ms. Lou Aidong, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control, compliance and risk management systems of the
Group; (ii) overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board;
(iii) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance with legal and regulatory requirements
and requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
the employees and Directors.
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A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out as follows:

26

Reviewed with the senior management and finance-
in-charge and/or the external auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
accuracy and fairness of the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 September 2021
respectively;

Met with the external auditors and reviewed their work
and findings relating to the annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and the effectiveness of the audit
process;

Reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

Conducted annual review of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021;

Approved the internal audit plan for the year ended
31 March 2022 and internal audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2021;

Reviewed the external auditors’ independence,
approved the engagement of external auditors and
recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditors;

Reviewed the financial reporting and compliance
procedures and the report from the management on the
Company'’s internal control systems and processes; and

Noted the new requirements on the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide under the
Listing Rules and highlighted the amendments under the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; and (ii) reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Nomination Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang
(Chairman) and Ms. Shen Guoying, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Bau
Siu Fung and Ms. Lou Aidong. Accordingly, a majority of the
members were and continue to be independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2022 is
set out as follows:

° Reviewed and discussed on the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements for the business of the
Group and that it is in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

° Make recommendation to the Board for re-election of
existing directors.
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The recommendations on director appointment and re-
election were made in accordance with the Company’s
policy for nomination of Directors and took into account the
diversity aspects (including, without limitation, age, cultural
and educational background, professional expertise and
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) under
the board diversity policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed "“Board Diversity Policy” in this Corporate
Governance Report. In particular, the Nomination Committee
had taken into consideration the perspectives, skills and
experience that Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok could bring to the Board
as an independent non-executive Director, including without
limitation his extensive experience in finance, compliance,
and listed companies management.

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok is holding directorships in seven listed
companies as at the date of this Corporate Governance
report. As an independent non-executive director of all but
one of these companies, he is generally not involved in the
day-to-day operations and management of the businesses
of such companies. Mr. Poon has annually disclosed to
the Company the number and nature of offices held in
listed companies and other significant commitments. As a
professional, he is competent in time management and has
sound knowledge and skills to effectively discharge his duties
in those positions. The Board considers that Mr. Poon is able
to devote sufficient time to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Remuneration Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang and
Mr. Chan Hon Ki, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairwoman), Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok and Mr. Bau Siu Fung. Accordingly, a majority of
the members were and continue to be independent non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior management.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out as
follows:

. Assessed performance of executive Directors;

o Reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company; and

o Reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages (including discretionary bonus)
of Directors and senior management of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of
the annual remuneration of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

FMEES

FMZEeR —_T—NWF—AZBRKY TR
BOEERTRFHEASEZOREHE -8
EZE-__F-A=Z+—HULEFE FTMEE

EEAREARAMN BWERTEEHT
S RBOEMELE AR B TERTES
BERLL (/%) EBE LA RN WEL
Ak RAASBS EARBRERBY NG
g%

FMEEEMIERARE (HPERE) (HE
EREREEBHMAFHERRRREIA R
HEBBHFMOBERL-EEXNBRARERFM
MEFSEHEBRE: (IZ2ZEFENEE
ERRRE BHRSAEEENTMES:
(ARTEELEREREEXBENFHMORR
ExefFhERSE-

YMEEEREBE_T-__F=A=+—AH1
FREETHITEREHIIMT

o HMEMTEZHRAE:

s BMEARAMNHFMBRRRERE: Rk

. R ARREENERERERBE_ZT

T CFZAZST - HUEFENHHTE (2
BB YRt EFTSRLER-

RIBFGEE AT TAIECEEISK HEZ
T A=+ BIEE SREEER
MARIB PN FEHFMFBOT

Number of

individuals
Remuneration band ¥ B 48 51 A
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,000/%8 7T 2

Annual Report 2022 % 3§

29



Corporate Governance Report
CEERBE

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Under the policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be
based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to
the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity for the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six
Directors.

Number of Directors EE & H
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For the year ended 31 March 2022, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services provided to the Group were
approximately HK$2,927,000 and HK$41,000, respectively. The
amount for non-audit services comprised the tax compliance
services for the Company.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2022. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 114 to 121.

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.
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During the Year, the Group appointed Mazars Risk Advisory
Services Limited (“Mazars”) to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and
assess effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management
measures as recommended by Mazars to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based
on the findings and recommendations of Mazars as well as the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the
internal control and risk management systems effective and
adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for
the handling and dissemination of inside information in
order to comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well
as Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
internal control mechanism includes information flow and
reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure
procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall
responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal
controls are maintained, management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to
manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
Our risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the
Audit Committee, which oversees risk management and
internal audit functions.
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The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Mazars. The Group maintains a risk
register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The
risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation
has been performed. This review process can ensure that the
Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense
that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility
so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of
the Group's risk management framework will be evaluated at
least annually, and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the
Group's internal control and risk management systems as
appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would
be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the Group
in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will
continue to review at least annually the need for an internal
audit function.

AEBRERBZEHRICREARE ALE
EEBETEEEEREN ERMHERAER
EFFRNEREEEEMIMETERTER
RETEIANTEZ ANKERER LM
N A RERAD &R EZRER- H&Au
MrEse ERZEEREEERHEEE

[z B | ﬂ‘IﬁﬁAﬂEﬁMﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁT
BTs-SRERDRIEEFLNAEMER
HASENBEREZLEFETIMGH AR
BftmEEEFERSRBRER ARETFER
R E L BFERENIAR R SER
BARR (HER) - et 12 rl R AN K E
ITHELHEMEBROERR MERBREAR AR
EHRARELMELMNBZREENREETEE
W ZF R - DA 5 A BRI R ETTH)

AEENRREEREHEEERHELET K
SEERERBERNKIGE D EF T UG

VWRITTHEEESZUTTNAMREIE T (E#
E-EEERIRBEREREEAAFTERE

BRFH B0 USXBARBREREME
BiE—%e

ARPEREBFREFIBBIERALHN
EIW%WT&HE£@§Mﬁﬁ REf o W

%E FIRANEENAFEEEMERE
EE Z. \/v}b

ﬁﬁ$%@ﬁﬂm%%%wﬁ EECRAN
MEZBAZFTE RERARUAEERXRK 2
ﬁﬁ“ﬁ%&%%ﬁm RENBBBIEEAL
RAEBETALREZIERNCERTE
EE&$&\Wﬁﬁ§$H SHESIEFR
A RAESEZEFIN T

Annual Report 2022 % 3§

33



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The joint company secretaries of the Group are Ms. Tsang
Kwok Shan Sandy and Mr. Chan Hon Ki. Each of Ms. Tsang
and Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which
took effect from January 2014. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Company’s future operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors
which the Directors deem relevant such as the prevailing
market conditions and global economic situation.

The dividend payout ratio would be calculated based on
certain per cent of the net profit recorded during the financial
year, with a view to retaining sufficient funds and capital for
operational uses and future investment opportunities and
ensuring that all possible acquisitions could be properly
financed. The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed
from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restriction
under the laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company (the
"Articles”).

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company shall be
held each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board.
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Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM")

Pursuant to the Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the company secretary at the headquarters of the
Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 1,
10/F., Emperor Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). The
request will be verified with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Board will convene
an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On
the contrary, if the request has been verified not in order, the
Shareholders will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
for the attention of the company secretary at the Company's
headquarters in Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company.
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AUX International Holdings Limited ("“AUX") and its
subsidiaries (the “"Group”, “"we”, "our” or “us”) are committed
to providing high-quality services, and to maintain its
pioneering position of both the private club entertainment
business in Hong Kong as well as property management
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as
the Group's vision and mission. The Group is committed to
be a responsible corporate institution. While making great
effort to achieve its corporate goals, the Group also hopes to
seek benefits for the society in order to achieve sustainable
development of all aspects.

In view of this, this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report will focus on the balance between three
aspects: corporate needs, social needs and environmental
concerns. The Group understands that including the elements
of sustainable development into corporate strategies has
now become a trend. We will communicate with different
stakeholders actively in order to understand the needs of all
parties, and to manage the ESG issue in a comprehensive
way. The Group will consider relevant short-term and long-
term factors while implementing the plan of sustainable
development, which includes the challenges we are facing,
responsibilities to stakeholders, global trends, regulations and
risk management, etc. We believe that in today's constantly
changing business environment, a company must take its
responsibility on to ESG issues in the long run in order to
succeed.

Through careful and in-depth understandings on the risks and
opportunities of ESG issues the Group is facing, the Group
will actively fulfil its corporate social responsibilities, abiding
local laws, providing suitable working environment for the
employees, and would also pay attention to social issues
including responsible procurement, avoiding drug abuse,
environmental protection, volunteer activities, etc. We will
also contribute to environmental protection starting from
waste reduction. As a part of the society, the Group will strive
to contribute to the society and work together to create a
better environment in the community.

Lastly, regarding the Group’s policy and performance on
the four major categories of environmental protection,
employment and labour practices, operation practices and
community participation from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022,
the Board of Directors are pleased to present the 2021/2022
ESG report of the Group.
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About the Report

This ESG report introduces the Group's significant ESG
performance in the the fiscal year of 2021/2022, and its long-
term commitments to ESG. This ESG Report mainly focuses on
the Group’s two main businesses, including the operation of
clubbing business in Hong Kong and the provision of property
management services in the People's Republic of China
("PRC"), and describes the progress of the Group in creating
sustainable values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

Reporting Range and Boundary

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). This Report summarises the ESG practices
of the two operation units of the Group, namely AUX
International Holdings Limited (“AUX") and Ningbo AUX
Property Management Service Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX"). The
information contained herein is helpful to know about and
evaluate the Group’s ESG performance in routine business in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Reporting Principles

This ESG Report follows the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange, and contains reporting principles of
materiality, quantitative and consistency, details of which are
set out below:

In addition to internal factors, such as the corporate
value, strategy and core competence, the Group has also
communicated with the internal and external stakeholders on
a regular basis, and considered the ESG strategies of other
industries, so as to achieve sustainable development. The
Group has identified the following categories that have or may
have a significant impact on the Group's ESG performance:

J Clubbing and entertainment industry in Hong Kong;

J Property service industry in the PRC;

o Property management market in the PRC;

° Present or future environment and society;

o Financial performance or operation of the Group; and

. Evaluation, decision and action of the Group's

stakeholders.
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The data set out in this ESG Report is derived from the
Group’s archived documents, records and statistics. The
key performance indicators disclosed in this ESG report are
supported by quantitative data and measurable standards.
The source of all applicable data, calculation tools, methods,
references and conversion factors applied are disclosed in
emission data presented in this report.

For comparative purposes of ESG performance from year
to year, the Group adopts consistent approaches for data
collection, calculation and reporting, where reasonable, across
all fiscal years, and records significant changes in detail for
the relevant components. In this report, the density of the
relevant performance indicator data is calculated based on
the average number of properties under management of the
Group, unless otherwise indicated. In preparing this report,
the Group has referred to certain global, local and industrial
standards or best practices, including the ESG Reporting
Guide of the Stock Exchange and applicable Hong Kong
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Feedback

The Group has covered the key issues concerned by different
stakeholder groups through continuous communication with
the stakeholders. We welcome opinions and suggestions on
ESG performance of the Group, which can be sent to the
Group's email: info@auxint.com.
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Business of the Group

AUX International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2080)
and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in clubbing and
entertainment businesses in Hong Kong and property
management services in the PRC. For the clubbing and
entertainment business of the Group, it owns and operates
club and restaurant and bar outlet in Hong Kong, namely
Zentral and Mini Club, with a total area of over 20,000 sqg. ft.,
providing services including private parties, corporate events,
live entertainment, fashion shows, jewelry fair, filming location
and film premiere. For the Group’'s property management
business in the PRC, the headquarter is located in Ningbo,
offering property management services in 13 cities, namely,
Shanghai, Ningbo, Tianjin, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Nanchang,
Changsha, Jiujiang, Zhengzhou, Chengdu, Huzhou, Qingdao
and Maanshan, providing specialised property management
services for commercial areas, residential areas, villas, office
buildings, industrial areas, etc. The property management
business provides comprehensive services for various property
types, with main focus on residential properties and covering
non-residential properties such as Class A office buildings,
shopping malls, medium and high-end residential buildings,
hospitals and industrial parks.

Vision

To be a leader in clubbing and entertainment business,
steadily carry out property management businesses, maintain
high quality services, so as to develop AUX into a world brand
and provide the maximum sustainable value for stakeholders.

Mission
Enhance customer experience to attract more club patrons,
create and lead the intelligent life, and cultivate excellent
talents.

Goal

Dedicated to improving the quality of clubbing and
entertainment services as well as property management
services.

The Board
As of the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

Independent Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Bau Siu Fung
Ms. Lou Aidong

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Ms. Shen Guoying
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The Group recognises the importance of environmental,
social and corporate governance for sustainable corporate
development and ensures the relevant ESG policies are
effectively implemented in its operations. The board of
directors of AUX (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
monitoring ESG governance issues relating to the Group,
and monitoring the formulation and implementation of
relevant policies and measures by the management and
relevant departments. The Board also requires the Group's
management to report to the Board on ESG-related issues and
subsequent developments in a timely and proactive manner,
such as significant deviations from expected targets in ESG
performance indicators, serious ESG incidents, changes in
regulatory requirements, etc..

The Board is responsible for:
o appointing the Group's key persons responsible for ESG

issues;
o approving ESG strategies, action plans and goals;
o monitoring the progress and performance of ESG-

related measures;

o approving the implementation of ESG-related measures
and monitoring the resources required;

o raising appropriate ESG-related questions, inquiries and
recommendations to management; and

° reviewing and approving annual ESG reports.

The management is responsible for:
o identifying and assessing the Group's ESG risks and
opportunities and report to the Board;

o developing ESG strategies, action plans, goals and
arrange relevant work accordingly;

o ensuring appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal monitoring systems being in
place;

. providing guidance for the implementation of ESG
policies and measures;

o reporting to the Board on the progress and performance
of ESG; and
o reviewing the annual ESG report and submit it to the

Board for approval.

40 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 %2 &7 EO % 42 IR B R 2 &)

AEETHRRE HEREXRERYUERARF
BRR2EEN YHREBESGHRRERLEZ
TREEMNER-RRMIvEESE([EF8))
TEREEEAMASRBMESGEREE U
EETERENMAAMIIEE M E HERBUR A
G- EFENEXREEETEERLKELAE
MEEFERESGZHBEFTMEREHER 10
HIRESGHEMERABERBIERBR  HIRE
EESGEH EEMBNERHRBLERBR -

EEgRE:
s ZMAEKEESGEFEIEMNTIZEAAN:

EHLESGERS - TTEIRTBIME 2

EX 1R ESGAR A TS e A #E JR M 45 3

BEMITESGHRBEIE R R EIEMBENER

W R B R L ESGII B B M R E 3
R

WEMERFERE T REARE-

EEERE:
o i FAEAKEZESGR R LS A
MEEFEMSE

B EESGERE - 1TEA & BRT B &
PEAERE TAF:

s MRRILAENMAMWESGEREEMA

BEERR:

RESGHRERME N EEIRHES]

. MEBEFSREESGIIENERMKRI: K

e EHFEESGREAURTEESHZ-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRS

The functional departments are responsible for: B REEBPIEE ¢
. coordinating and implementing the specific ESG policies o T E HE BB AV ESGIUR R IE 1
and measures;

. reporting ESG work and performance indicators to the EHMEEREEERESGTIERERIER:

management regularly;

. collecting the information and data on the Group's ESG e WERBBASBESGRIFMBMER REE
performance; and &

. preparing the annual ESG report and report to the e RHEESGF®M WRERBERS -
management.

The Board will continue to monitor the ESG-related work and ES=E 4 & )TESGHER L 1F - I EALE AT
keep abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements and & ¥TAIESGHBEEZRKEHF EFTFTNERRE
regulations of the Stock Exchange. The Board will also ensure #FIEZMEIE NEXNEEGHALBEELE
that all departments work closely to achieve the goal of EBEFfZEBEE WHEBREARNEEFEEEWHA
operational compliance and shouldering social responsibility, ESGEIZ ' UMEHFHFFEIFHEHEIE -

and set clearer ESG goals for the Group in the future to better

meet the expectations of stakeholders.

The Group actively seeks every opportunity to understand our AEEBEHRS K- TEEMAFHEOE S -
stakeholders, and guarantees the regular improvement of our  HERE P8I RS 15 2 & HABGE « HAMIEE - B
services. We firmly believe that our stakeholders play a vital HEFMNEEEFRMEBROXN T A EEEH

role in maintaining the success of our business. BEEMNER-
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Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights
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During the the fiscal year of 2021/2022, the Group conducted
surveys of internal and external stakeholders, including
management, employees, major customers and major
suppliers, to identify and assess material ESG issues so as to
determine the impacts of such issues on the Group's business
operation, environment and society. Based on the Group’s
reporting scope and business characteristics as well as the
feedbacks from stakeholders, the Group has identified the
relevant material ESG issues and evaluated them through a
scoring system. Details are shown in the chart below:
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Number

Fr 5%

ESG Issues
ESGi#& &

Environmental Issues:
RIREE
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10

GHG emission/

Global warming
BERBHEWR 2HREL
Exhaust air emission

E R BETK

Energy consumption

BEREA

Water consumption

IKEIRER

Hazardous waste/
Sewage
BEREY/REX
Non-hazardous waste/
Sewage
BEREYREX
Paper consumption

AR A

Deforestation caused by
illegal logging

AIEE BRI &R Y
FRANIEIR

Use of raw materials and
packaging materials

R R B 5 11 #46Y (5£ F

Compliance with laws
and regulations
related to environmental
protection
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Number ESG lIssues
Fr 5% ESGE &
Social Issues:
HEEE:
11 Combating COVID-19
AR Ib N TR
12 Employee rights and
welfare
BIHENFE
13 Inclusion, equal
opportunity and
anti-discrimination
BE FERERREE
14 Talent attraction and
retention
AT B 5| R E
15 Occupational health and
safety
BERENZE
16 Training and development
) B 3
17 Measures to prevent child
labour and forced labour
AR E T MEGIS TR
18 Environmental protection
R IRE
19 Community investment
and participation
HRERE N2 E
20 Labour standards in the
supply chain
HEREPHNETRE
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As shown above, the operational ESG issues are of high
materiality based on the materiality assessment and the
survey conducted with internal and external stakeholders.
In particular, as the Group's business is principally engaged
in the provision of entertainment services and property
management business, the materiality of customer satisfaction
is particularly emphasised to ensure that the services
provided could satisfy the expectations of customers. In
addition, the Group also emphasises on issues such as
corporate governance, service quality, economic performance,
operational compliance and anti-corruption, so as to ensure
the sustainable development of business with good corporate
ethics and culture.

In the future, the Group will be more proactive to maintain
communication with stakeholders and collect advises
from them through different channels to conduct more
comprehensive analysis and continue to promote the Group's
sustainable development plan. Meanwhile, the Group will
conduct materiality assessment on ESG issues as necessary,
so as to comply with reporting requirements and better satisfy
expectations of stakeholders on the content and disclosure of
ESG report.
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For the Group, we understand that a healthy
environment is the basis for economic development
and social well-being. As a responsible organisation,
the Group will pursue environmental protection, strictly
comply with the existing laws and regulations related to
environmental protection, properly handle and dispose
of all materials to avoid adverse impact on health or
environment.

During the fiscal year of 2021/2022, the Group did not
identify any crucial incidents of non-compliance relating
to environmental problems.

A1. Emissions
The Group is devoted to environmental
conservation, and has implemented eco-friendly
measures in all of its operation units so as to
reduce carbon emissions generated during
operations.

In view of the Group’s business focusing on
entertainment services and property management
services, our business activities do not involve any
air pollution emission arising from the use of gas
fuel or automobile fuel.

Greenhouse gas emissions are a leading cause
of global warming, which leads to sharp climate
changes and poses a tremendous threat to
the global ecosystem. The Group understands
although we have no direct greenhouse gas
emission, we inevitably generate indirect
greenhouse gas such as CO? during energy
and water resources utilisation. In view of this,
the Group, as an organisation with corporate
social responsibility, considers the reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions as one of the issues we
concern about.
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The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group mainly
come from energy consumption for business
activities in various cities, including energy use,
electricity consumed for treatment of drinking
water and sewage, as well as greenhouse gas
emissions indirectly generated from the employees
taking planes for business trips. In addition, we
are committed to promoting greening in the
residential estates to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions generated from our business activities.

The Group's club in Hong Kong holds valid sewage
treatment licenses, and its sewage discharge has
been complying with the discharge limits specified
in the licenses. As for the residential estates under
our management in the PRC, sewage discharge
mainly comes from the daily water consumption
of property owners. We discharge wastes in a
way stipulated by the municipal government,
and maintain the pipelines, valves and other
equipments related for the sewage discharge and
exhaust systems on a regular basis to guarantee its
normal operation.

The total greenhouse gas emissions generated
by the Group in the fiscal year of 2021/2022
were approximately 71,104" tonnes (2020/2021:
56,7412 tonnes), the majority of which were
generated by Ningbo AUX. The greenhouse gas
emissions generated by Ningbo AUX increased
by 25% as compared to the previous fiscal year.
The increase in emissions was mainly due to the
increase of the number of residential estates
under our management. In view of the intensity of
greenhouse gas emissions, the Group will calculate
the greenhouse gas emissions of each residential
estate, as shown in the table below. In this fiscal
year, the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions
of Ningbo AUX decreased by 7% as compared to
the previous fiscal year. In view of this, Ningbo
AUX continues to implement all kinds of solutions
in its energy efficiency programme to reduce
the generation of greenhouse gases, including
planting to promote greening in residential estates
and posting up labels to remind the employees
of saving electricity and water, and equipping
residential estates with LED lightings.

Due to the complexity of data collection, some of the operating units
of Ningbo AUX and AUX are unable to provide annual water bills, and
therefore part of the water consumption is estimated based on the
average water consumption of the relevant units to calculate the indirect
greenhouse gas emissions from electricity consumed by the Group in
processing fresh water and sewage.

Due to the adoption of a more precise calculation method to calculate
the greenhouse gas emissions from electricity consumption of AUX's
entertainment service operations in Hong Kong during the Reporting
Year, the data of 2020/2021 was adjusted according to the relevant
calculation method.
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As shown below, approximately 98% of greenhouse BNRFTR  K)1298% %K B 50 T P
gas generated by Ningbo AUX is indirect = AR R E RS R 8 R ( F A ] 2
emissions from energy use. Although relevant BEme ﬁﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ,}i@ﬁﬁﬁ H Y &Y Be IR
energy use by Ningbo AUX is mainly attributable CREFEREFPEAMBC WIE
to use by property owners, which is beyond the 5505 B 5o Hi i B PR 6 RO S0 8 N - BB
control by Ningbo AUX, it continues to enhance AN EREETELAMES
the publicity in residential estates for economical EEHORBELAK ZERERD
use of electricity and water, with the hope of EBEHRBEEENTE-
minimising the environmental impact arising from
its businesses.
Scope Source of greenhouse gas emissions
P (Ningbo AUX) Total emission (tonne)
= BERBHEMRR (ERREE) BEERE (W)
2020/2021 2021/2022
—E2-E /- —E-— /==
Scope 2 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions 55,587.32 69,789.59
from purchased electricity?
& [E2 BEENIMERAZAEREIHR
Scope 3 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions 938.71 1,273.95
from electricity consumption
for drinking water and sewage treatment*
& [Z3 RIBRIKRGKEMEENE N2
R 8 = AR
Employees air travel for business trips 30.37 39.73
1B B RALRBEIIND A F
Data of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) 2020/2021 2021/2022
BEREEREE (FHRRTHE) —E-2/=—- =—E--—/==
Greenhouse gas emissions (tonne) 56,556.40 70,918.93
= RES ek (ME)
Greenhouse gas emissions per residential estate 1,431.81 1,325.59
under our management (tonne/residential estate)®
BEEEFEEANAEREHER (M EEEH)S
AUX generated approximately 185 tonnes RRiR_—_T-_— —“_WMHBFE
(2020/2021:184¢ tonnes) of greenhouse gases in ﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ@/iﬁﬁ?ﬂ/‘]ﬁ%ﬂ@ (=%
the fiscal year of 2021/2022, and the greenhouse —F/ 184 R ER Y
gas emissions slightly increased by approximately MER_FT_T /- —FFEH
1% as compared with that of 2020/2021. AUX's Tt K @1%05@5%2/5%%%&5&
greenhouse gas emission data are as follows: HIEIMTE MR :

3 Due to data collection limitation, the power supply emission factor in Mainland 3 EE!EAWE,QHE']FE%W TP BN 3 0 L HE R B R0.71F
China was set at 0.71 kg/kWh. 5/ FTRE-

4 Due to data collection limitation, the per unit electricity consumption for drinking 4 Hﬂb’/‘uﬁliéﬂﬁ'ﬂﬁ%ﬂ EREAMNRKEERERSKERGE
water and sewage treatment in mainland China was set at 0.596 and 0.29 kWh uﬁé*/\ﬂ%xﬁjo 596%0.29F FLE - iR E A BE B E S
respectively, while the preset discharge coefficient for purchased electricity in BHREBARRB07T TR/ FTRE-
mainland China was set at 0.7 kg/kWh.

5 The average number of residential estates under our management was 39.5 in the 5 ZECT/ —_—HMBRFETFHERNRBERGS T/
fiscal year of 2020/2021, while it was 53.5 in the fiscal year of 2021/2022. T BRFETHER/ R EE R3S -

6 Due to the adoption of a more precise calculation method to calculate the ¢ HARREEERE T SR E R EREHME S
greenhouse gas emissions from electricity consumption of AUX during the Reporting FRAMLERES N At S -/ —FNEBETLER
Year, the data of 2020/2021 was adjusted according to the relevant calculation RTEEEITTHE
method.
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AUX's greenhouse gas emission in 2020/2021 AUX's greenhouse gas emission in 2021/20227
BRifi— 2% " -FREREHK BRfi—ZF-— —_FREREHRS

0.5%
0%

\

Total emissions

Scope 2 - Greenhouse

gas emissions from

indirect energy consumption
FBE— - EREEAE
REEHEI

B Scope 3 - Indirect greenhouse

gas emissions from
electricity consumption for

0.5% ~\ 0%

Total emissions

Scope 2 - Greenhouse

gas emissions from

indirect energy consumption
BE— - EREEAE
RAEEHEI

Scope 3 - Indirect greenhouse
gas emissions from
electricity consumption for

,%@ E‘F Ey % fresh water and ,%%‘ EF Ey % fresh water and
sewage processing sewage processing
1 84'34 FE= - RIERKR 1 84'93 HE= - BEAKR
tonnes TAKEEREAE N 2 tonnes TAKEERERE N 2
148 EEREREIN A HEREREYN
Scope 3 - Indirect greenhouse Scope 3 - Indirect greenhouse
gas emissions from gas emissions from
employees air travel 99 5? employees air travel for
99 5% for business trips -J/0 business trips

FE= - R RRARME
HINAB 2 HERE
REEHER

FE= - EERARME
HINAB 2 HERE
REEHER

As shown above, AUX's greenhouse gas emissions BEEAR Bmii— ——
in 2021/2022 increased by approximately 1% as BB = F ﬁzﬁfﬁﬁliﬁﬁ E]fﬂlﬁr
compared with the previous fiscal year, which B EA% SE2ERERE
is, in the opinion of the Group's management, EHERMEREIBEMNEE B BT
attributable to the improvement in the operating REMEBBENE 2 ZH AT ES
conditions of the Group's clubs and restaurants BRERNBEEREER G MIRE
as compared to the previous fiscal year due EE - FEEgMRERE 2 EMR
to the easing of the COVID-19 pandemic and B B FEERMSREME-
the relaxation of the relevant social distancing

measures which allow the bars and restaurants

operated in Hong Kong to resume their operations

conditionally.

BREARK BRERFERAAERT

ﬂ:ﬁ*&%ﬁ&ﬁﬁzzj‘?ﬁﬁéﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ

1 A6 48 N 9% &7 BE BE 1 4R i - DARE AR

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ“’iﬁﬁﬁvﬂfﬁﬁ%

BA%’AB#?,‘EEE«% MERMBERE
OB AN ERE -

Looking ahead, given that energy use is the main
source of AUX's greenhouse gas emissions, AUX
will continue to strengthen energy conservation
monitoring measures, ensuring that all electrical
appliances are properly turned off when not in use
and that all lights and air conditioners are turned
off outside office hours, to avoid unnecessary
consumption of electricity.
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As the Group's GHG emissions are directly related
to its business operations of entertainment services
and property management services, most of the
GHG emissions are mainly generated by users of
the residential estates under the management
of Ningbo AUX, which are not controllable by
the Group directly. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to strengthen the implementation of
energy conservation monitoring measures and
minimise unnecessary resources consumption
during the operation of entertainment business
by AUX, and still be devoted to the promotion
of resources conserving when providing property
management service by Ningbo AUX, so as to
minimise the indirect greenhouse gas emissions
arising from the operation of the Group by
continuously taking practical measures.

In the fiscal year of 2021/2022, no major hazardous
waste was found in the clubbing and entertainment
business and property management business of
the Group.

Despite the constraint to calculate the amount
of non-hazardous waste generated by AUX for
the clubbing and entertainment business of
AUX due to data collection limitation, AUX is
committed to reducing waste generation to an
extent controllable and encouraging employees to
classify and recycle waste. AUX hopes to promote
waste reduction at the source, starting from
reducing the use and packaging to decrease waste
generation. In addition, for the waste cooking oils
of the restaurants, AUX engages qualified waste
collectors to collect waste cooking oils generated
from their operating activities for recycling on a
regular basis.

Ningbo AUX has entrusted the local qualified
wastes transportation agency to transport and
dispose of the non-hazardous wastes produced by
the property owners, and enabled the recycling
of wastes. All wastes have been disposed of
in compliance with local laws and regulations.
Recycled materials concentration points have been
set in the service areas to carry out collection,
classified management and declaration of the
statutory hazardous wastes and recyclable wastes.
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A2.

As for the domestic garbage discarded every day
by users in the residential areas, Ningbo AUX has
set up waste recycling bins to collect recyclable
wastes, and arranges special staff to classify and
store the recycled wastes separately every day,
and deliver the recycled wastes regularly to the
waste transfer station or the solid waste recycling
treatment plant.

However, as it is difficult to collect data about
the intensity and quantity of wastes, and the
weight is estimated on a monthly basis, the
Group failed to report the weight of relevant
wastes. Although relevant wastes of Ningbo AUX
are mainly generated by the property owners,
which is beyond the controllable range of Ningbo
AUX, Ningbo AUX will still strengthen the waste
classification, recovery and disposal process, and
attempt to reduce the impact of its business on
the environment.

Although the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group is directly related to its
business operations, where the amount of non-
hazardous waste generated by the residents who
are not under the direct control of the Group, the
Group will still be devoted to the promotion of
waste reducing at source within the residential
estates under its management, and strengthen
the waste management process in its business
operations so as to minimise the impact of the
Group's business operations on the environment.

Use of Resources

The Group undertakes to become a resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise
and makes our contributions to environmental
protection. To reduce carbon emissions, we've
taken the initiative to perform the energy-saving
measures in our business activities.

A2.

HEEERABPEREENLE
i ERRRHCREEYEK
M RAMWE R ERBANAHREYD -
I %2 BE F A B K0 UL RE ) 0 A
BE W E BE B U EY RE 15X A AL
I 68 58 vt o B BE TR IR A AR TR AR

HERREEYHAWEREREREY
BERBEEN MEEEERR
BAEGB/E AEREERD
BHITRERFEHERBEEZTEREY
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BEYNEREERE - BEREN
R HENEENELRBEE
RFE P I IF B R B o AT AT LA
MEE BRRRE TS INERER
Yo B K EERRE B3R
EEXBHRENTE -

HAARBEBEEEYELERE
EBEERERBE EHEFRPE
EHEEEMEYIFAEEEER
2l HE BERASENAS#
BRAHERNEZEEZ2EFPERAR
B R ER B R IE D 3 hnoR A B
EBEETNEENEERE B
KEBERBAKENXBLEYR
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BERER
AEBAEKA—EESEERRY
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The major carbon footprints of Ningbo AUX
come from electricity consumption. As Ningbo
AUX's property management service projects in
Zhengzhou and Maanshan have also commenced
operation this year, the electricity consumption
of Ningbo AUX in the fiscal year of 2021/2022
increased by approximately 25% as compared to
that of last year, as shown in the figures below:

Electricity Consumption of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Years 2020/2021)
B R B8 s H RE R £ A
(=22 /—-UBEE)

42.0% Total consumption
BHRE
78,292,006
kWh 8.8%
TRE
‘ 9.2%
0.4% |
13.5%
| JiL{jiang
m Jivjiang m Nanjing m Nanchang m Tianjin m Ningbo m Chengdu hiT
T MR ma KFE = EB W Chengdu
PREB
Hangzhou M Huzhou M Changsha M Qingdao M Shanghai
M s &Y 5 5 "

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )

92

40.3%

BFERAHETENRENEKAR
BAEH A B R B R B 5 T R BN
EEBLZMEEERFBEENT
BTN AR FERBE A EE A=
WRBHMEEEER -2 -—/
U BFERAREF EFAH25% 10
TE Rt

Electricity Consumption of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Years 2021/2022)

528 B8 5o i BE IR £ R

m Nanjing
FAR
Hangzhou
UM

B Qingdao
55

Total consumption

——/ZZBBRFE)

—_

) =
BRE l 670
97,342,054
kWh
TR 8.0%
21.9%
m Nanchang W Tianjin m Ningbo
ma R g
m Huzhou W Zhengzhou m Changsha
AN gl E324
M Shanghai
g



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - HERERRE

In consideration of the energy use intensity, i.e.,
the energy consumption per residential estates
under our management, the energy use intensity
of Ningbo AUX in the fiscal years of 2021/2022
was 1,832,441° kWh (2020/2021: 1,982,076 tonnes)
per residential estate. As the average number of
residential estates managed by the Group in the
fiscal years of 2021/2022 increased as compared to
the same period of last year, its energy use intensity
slightly decreased by approximately 8%. Although
the energy used in the residential estates are mainly
consumed by property owners, yet Ningbo AUX will
still be devoted to the promotion of electricity saving
within the residential estates. Besides, Ningbo AUX
equipped the residential estates with LED lightings
for realising the objective of energy saving and
further reducing energy consumption.

The electricity consumption of AUX in the fiscal year
of 2021/2022 was 284,513 kWh (2020/2021: 315,276
kWh), decreased by about 10% as compared to the
previous fiscal year. The management of the Group
believes that, the decrease is attributable to the
termination of the lease contract of the Group's
restaurants. The management remains committed
to enhancing environmental awareness of our
employees and placing more electricity saving
labels, to further encourage employees to reduce
unnecessary electricity consumption, minimise
energy use and reduce the impact of business
operations on the environment.

Although the Group's electricity consumption is
directly related to its business operations, and
the electricity consumption from residents is not
within the Group's direct control, the Group will
still be devoted to the promotion of electricity
saving within the residential estates, strengthen
the management of electricity use in offices,
entertainment business and property management

ZRERERARE B¥EHSEER
FERLNERFHRE EFRR
R - /Z_BBFEN
FERAZERBEERE,832,441°
FTEE(ZEZE,//=——:1,982,076
W) AR AEER=_T=— /==
BPREENFHEREEEHHE
REFRBEAMEN BHEER
FRATBERIR TR 48% - 8 R{EE
EiNERERIEAXFRE"
BRERAHTERIREEELA
HEMNSHHORE - N BHE
RHMBBEREEERLTELEDE
LVEZRETRERM B B LA — 2P R
EEMEM-

MBRR =T =— Z 0 KF
ERREE A284513TRE(ZE
—F ) — 315276 T R ) &+
— W EBRFEETEOI10% SEER
EREREENEER THEENTE
BENERB-EEEBEEDR
TReEEEREINEREM K
BN AEMRREE  NiE—
TEBMEIRNTVNENAE &
AJRERR R BERE MO IK S & iE

HRBHEROTE -

HAAKE 2 BREHERE XK E
EREERE MEERREER
MENERELIFAKEREEE
HzBE BRAEEDAST ) #
BREFPEEEELIE R 0K
RE REXBRVXEERRBTE
BrBEHERAEBRREFTEERLR

EERRER URERSERA

services business, and successively purchase RNBRERTVENE IRE -
electrical appliances when necessary to maximise BRBEBIFELEE FHEEWLSR

energy efficiency and avoid unnecessary waste
of electricity, so as to reduce the impact on the
environment through continuous monitoring,
implementation and optimisation of existing
measures.

BREREHRBEKRNTE -

TECE/CURFETHER)EHE R3S

= __

The average number of residential estates under our management was
39.5 in the fiscal year of 2020/2021, while it was 53.5 in the fiscal year of
2021/2022.

ZE I /R ETHER/ NBHEEARSS
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As potable water is a precious resource on the
Earth, saving water is one of the goals of the
Group. The Group also makes efforts to reduce
electricity consumption generated from water
supply, thereby reducing the Group's carbon
footprints and resource consumption.

The water resource consumption of Ningbo AUX
in the fiscal year of 2021/2022 was approximately
2,052,074 tonnes (2020/2021: 1,513,556 tonnes),
with the water consumption intensity of 38,357
tonnes (2020/2021: 38,318 tonnes)/residential
estate, which was similar to that of last year. Like
energy use, water consumption in residential
estates was totally attributable to use by property
owners. Although Ningbo AUX does not directly
reduce the water resource consumption, it will
actively promote water conservation in residential
estates and encourage the recycling of water
resources, such as the use of used but relatively
clean water for cleaning and the use of appliances
and household products with high water efficiency
which help reduce water consumption. The water
consumption of Ningbo AUX is illustrated in the
figure below:

Water consumption of Ningbo AUX

(fiscal year of 2020/2021)
B B Bk B R
(Z2=2 ——HHRFE)

HRRKZMIREFFEFZENER
PERKRASENBERZ — &
SKEEFEHKSAELENE DA
FomEEAEEZREHNNE
JROBRE

BFEBRIN T =— /K
FEHKERBEELN A2,052,07408
—ZE-F = —:1,513,556lF) - &
KZEH BEEEE3S,357H (=
T—-F,/——:38,318M) - &
BRABH - FEERAFEKEREE
BEA—GK YRXEAXFAES
Fr-#ARAERETHTEEEER
LEBKRKERNERE BNEEE
REEERERSHAK LHE
BRFERAKER flana AR A
BEMAETFORKETEET R
MEARKIEESNESRRMSE -
EHRRTEMKERBRENTE AT
7 -

Water consumption of Ningbo AUX
(fiscal year of 2021/2022)

R R Ak EIRE A
(2=~ ==MBFE)
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33.3%
Total water 41.8% Total water
consumption 20.4% ’ consumption 15.5%
BREKE BIREKE
1,513,556 2,052,074
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Water resource consumption data (Ningbo AUX)

KERBRBE (BRRRH)

Water resource consumption (tonne/m?)
IKEREFE (B8~ 75K)

Water resource consumption per residential estate

under our management (tonne/residential estate)'

FEEEEEERNKERERE (B EEE0)"°

On the other hand, the water consumption of AUX
in the fiscal year of 2021/2022 was approximately
1,493 tonnes, while it was approximately 1,635
tonnes in the fiscal year of 2020/2021, representing
a decrease of approximately 9%. The management
believes that the decrease in water consumption
during the year is attributable to the termination
of the lease contract of one of the Group's
restaurants. The management remains committed
to raising our employees' awareness on water
conservation initiatives in order to reduce the
impact of our business on the environment.

As the Group's water is supplied by the
government water supply department, there was
no problem in obtaining water sources.

Although the Group's water consumption is directly
related to its business operations, and the water
consumption from the residents of the residential
estates is not within the Group's direct control,
the Group will still be devoted to the promotion of
water conserving within the residential estates and
strengthen the water management in the offices,
entertainment business and property management
services business to maximise the water efficiency
and avoid unnecessary wastage, so as to reduce
the impact on the environment through continuous
implementation and optimisation of the existing
measures mentioned above.

In view of the Group's business focusing on
entertainment services and property management
services, our business activities do not involve any
packaging materials used for finished products.

The average number of residential estates under our management was

39.5 in the fiscal year of 2020/2021, while it was 53.5 in the fiscal year of
2021/2022.
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Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

Currently, the Group mainly uses the energy
of electric energy and water resources. In the
face of the increasingly severe environmental
pollution, the Group, as a part of the community,
is committed to implementing energy saving
measures in different levels of routine operations,
including:

We encourage employees
Saving electricity to turn off unnecessary power
(e.g.: floor or corridor lights)

HAZBETETIHBENEIR

UHERE (BB AEREN) Bis

BE IR & i X a2 &t &)
BEAEBETIENERERRELR
FMKER MHRESRADERE
ERUERO-—DOTF AEERNE
REREETMIRER D EEENGE
H i B

We encourage employees
to save water consumption
while using the washroom or
conducting cleaning work

Conserving water

BB E TEER TR
ETBRBRIIER S5 RAKE
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A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Ningbo AUX delicately develops gardens and
greening space in the residential estates for
each project by virtue of professional greening
management, such as planting diverse flowers,
grasses and trees, which improves the microclimate
in the community, enriches the landscaping in the
community, and enables the property owners to
experience the biodiversity of the nature. One
of the residential estates managed by Ningbo
AUX has been honoured as the “most beautiful
courtyard” by the government.

A3.
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A4,

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group understands that climate change
may bring different levels of impact and risks
to its business. As greenhouse gases such as
carbon dioxide and methane generated by the
development of human activities accelerate the
greenhouse effect, the impact of climate change is
becoming more obvious.

In view of the trend of sustainable development
and transition to a low-carbon economy, as well
as the uncertainties associated with physical and
transitional risks arising from climate change, the
Group recognises the importance of incorporating
climate factors into the decision-making process
to formulate an effective plan to address climate
change. Therefore, the Group has started to study
the potential impact of climate change, so that the
Group will be able to identify, assess and manage
various risks in a timely manner in the future and
prepare for the planning strategy of addressing
climate change.

In terms of physical risks, rising temperatures will
have short-term and long-term impacts on climate
patterns and seasonal weather, and increase
the possibility of extreme weather events, such
as more frequent occurrence of severe weather
events, including heavy rains, typhoons, high
temperatures and floods. These extreme weather
events are likely to affect the Group's business
operations, causing events such as natural
disasters that prevent its business from normal
operation and lead to mandatory downtime,
damage to equipment, supply chain disruptions
that affect the provision of services to customers
and other events that increase operating costs.
In addition, severe weather also poses threats
to the safety of employees. In this regard, the
Group has formulated guidelines on severe
weather arrangements to reduce the risk of injury
and accidents. In addition, Ningbo AUX has also
made arrangements for its property management
business in respect of severe weather work,
disaster prevention and emergency response plans,
and enhanced its emergency response capabilities
in disaster prevention and mitigation under special
weather conditions through enhanced drills and
regular safety inspections.
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In addition, with the attention of many countries
on climate change, it is expected that more
climate conferences and climate policy-related
arrangements will be arranged in the future, which
may lead to higher operating costs and different
market risks for the Group. In terms of China's
goal of achieving carbon neutrality by 2060,
there is expected to be a gradual tightening of
regulations on emissions. As a result, the Group
may face additional operating costs as a result of a
cost shift from its service providers such as power
companies, water providers and waste treatment
and recycling companies. In this regard, the Group
will keep abreast of changes in market information
and energy policies to ensure the timeliness of
the information while facilitating the formulation
of relevant corresponding policies to mitigate the
risks.

The Group will continue to adopt best practices to
minimise its own carbon footprint and incorporate
resilience into its business operations so as to
effectively control the impact of climate change on
the Group.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group is aware that our business success depends
on the cooperation and cohesion of our teams. Our
teams are the most precious assets of the Group.
Therefore, based on the people-oriented core values,
we are committed to providing attractive remunerations,
benefits and welfares for employees, arrange reasonable
working hours and holidays, and ensure all employees
enjoy equal opportunity. The Group also holds
internal activities on a regular basis and encourage
the employees' participation to increase the Group's
cohesion, strengthen the employees' recognition of the
Group, and reinforce their sense of belonging.
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B1. Employment

As of 31 March 2022, AUX and Ningbo AUX have
recruited 1,089 (2020/2021: 1,077) employees in
total, including 1,046 (2020/2021: 1,029) employees
of Ningbo AUX and 43 (2020/2021: 48) employees
of AUX. Among them, 69% (2020/2021: 69%) were
male and 31% (2020/2021: 31%) were female, while
96% were from the PRC, about 4% were from
Hong Kong and less than 1% were from other
regions such as Nepal and Pakistan. The employee
structure of the Group is shown in the following
charts:

Number of Employees by Gender

RUERE D ZETAH
334
755
Male ™ Female
% 8

Number of Employees by Age
RERERNE D 2ETAH

400 355
350 319 303
300
250
200
150
100 79
50 g B

<18 18- 26- 36- 46- 56-
25 35 45 55 65

> 65
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Number of Employees by Category
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We deeply believe that a diversified, embracing
and harmonious family can help us to have a better
understanding about the demands of different
customers. Up to 22% (2020/2021: 22%) of the
employees have served the Group for more than
five years, which further proves that the Group's
people-oriented concept has been passed on to
every employee via practical experience.

BZMERE—EZ Tt E D MED
AREAEDEMEBRBZEIRABEER
MER MEBYEEL2S (ZE=
T/ 22%)MEB IR ASEER
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Number of Employees by Years of Service
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20%
30%
21%
27%
<1VYear = 1-3Years = 3-5Years m 5-10 Years = >10 Years
<14 1-3%F 3-5%F 5-104F >104F

The Group deeply acknowledges that the Group's
development and success indeed rely on the
efforts of all employees, so the Group provides
competitive salaries to pay back the employees’
efforts. In addition to providing attractive
remunerations and benefits to employees, the
Group not only offers performance bonuses
according to the Group's business results and
the employees' performance, but also distributes
holiday benefits on traditional festivals every
year. The Group also provides Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes ("MPF"”) for employees
in accordance with the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong, and pays endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing provident fund for employees in
accordance with the Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China.
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In order to reward hard-working employees
more effectively, the Group has established
a well-organised performance management
system to efficiently motivate their sustainable
development, help employees make planning for
their career, realise talent inheritance, and enable
the Group to develop toward the sustainable
operation goal. The Group implements monthly,
quarterly and yearly performance assessment to
help employees establish definite, measurable,
achievable, position-related and time-sensitive
key performance indicators of their own,
supervise their progress on a regular basis,
and take appropriate improvement measures if
applicable. The Group will adjust the remuneration
of employees regularly by referring to their
assessment results and comprehensive evaluation
and by combining the Group's overall business
performance, so as to ensure employees gain the
best remunerations in proportion to their efforts.

The Group is devoted to creating a harmonious
and embracing working environment for
employees, and to protecting them from any
harassment or discrimination. The Group treats
its employees fairly and equally regardless of
their gender, sexual orientation, disability, age,
nationality or ethnic origin, family status or other
personal characteristics that are protected by law.
As for our systems for recruitment, remunerations
and benefits, holidays, trainings, assessment,
promotion, etc., we evaluate the employees
according to their abilities, skills, qualifications and
performances.

In order to ensure our employees achieve balance
between work and life, and maintain a balanced
and healthy lifestyle, our actual working time is
eight to ten hours a day and five to six days a
week, so that our employees can have sufficient
time to rest. Our employees can enjoy annual leave
of five to fifteen days as well as other statutory
labour holidays according to their position level.
In addition, employees also enjoy compassionate
leave, marital leave, maternity leave, etc. As for
Ningbo AUX, an employee with a new-born baby
under one year of age can further enjoy thirty-
minute breastfeeding leave twice a day.
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Moreover, Ningbo AUX provides a series of
facilities for employees, including dining hall
and dormitory, so as to improve their sense of
belonging to the Group, help those employees
who come to work far away from home to achieve
work-life balance more easily, and alleviate their
economic burdens. In addition, Ningbo AUX also
arranges after-work activities and dinners for
employees to promote communication among
employees from different departments and
enhance cohesion among employees through
enhanced communication.

The Group attaches importance to the
opinions of employees. All employees and the
management are encouraged to use our diversified
communication channels, such as: e-mail, forum
or bulletin board, to realise horizontal or vertical
communications. Generally when an employee
has any complaint against his/her work, we will
arrange the department supervisor to have an
interview with him/her, while the employee can
also complain against the person or department
concerned. If the person or department being
complained against fails to provide satisfactory
solutions, the complaint will be submitted to the
superior department level by level, so as to ensure
the employees can receive a clear feedback.
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B2.

The Company encourages employees to raise
reasonable suggestions about the Group. The
HR Department is responsible for collecting
suggestions of employees and guaranteeing their
accurate delivery.

The Group cherishes talents, and the above-
mentioned HR management measures have
successfully managed the monthly average
turnover rate of the Group to approximately 5% in
2021/2022 (2020/2021: 5%). The monthly average
turnover rate by gender is 5% (male) and 5%
(female). The monthly average turnover rate by
age group is 10% (18 to 25), 6% (26 to 35), 4% (36
to 45), 3% (46 to 55) and 2% (56 to 65). Monthly
average turnover rate by region was 5% (China), 6%
(Hong Kong) and 0% (other regions).

Health and Safety

Health and safety of the employees are of vital
importance to the Group. The Group is committed
to providing a safe working environment for
employees, and guarantees to fully comply with
all occupational health and safety regulations.
All offices and office premises of the Group are
equipped with adequate safety equipment, such
as fire-fighting equipment, to prevent fires and
ensure a safe working environment. The Group
has enhanced information and rules about
occupational health and workplace safety in the
employee handbook, and has formulated policies
about the safe working environment, such as
Special Measures against Typhoon and Rainstorm,
defining working procedures and evacuation issues
in severe weather. Apart from this, the Group will
invite fire protection equipment suppliers to give
lectures about fire safety awareness on a regular
basis and provide fire drills for employees to
ensure that they are familiar with the necessary
procedures if a fire breaks out.
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Any employee suffering from work-related injuries
is entitled to corresponding compensation benefits
in accordance with relevant national regulations.
In the case of Hong Kong employees, the Group
will report the case to the Labour Department
in accordance with section 15 of the Employees'
Compensation Ordinance, and contact the
insurance company for settlement of claims. In the
meantime, the Group will also provide sufficient
work-related injury leave to allow the employee
sufficient rest.

In addition, the Group requires its employees
to wear masks during working hours and take
body temperature everyday, and provides
alcoholic instant hand sanitisers for employees in
workplaces, in response to COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group has also formulated relevant guidelines
and prevention and control measures in relation to
the COVID-19 pandemic. Through strengthening
daily inspections, environmental disinfection and
order management, and ensuring the emergency
pandemic control and reporting procedures to
respond to the pandemic, the Group continues
to do a good job in employee protection and
pandemic prevention, and is committed to
protecting the health and safety of employees.

During the Fiscal Year, the Group had a total of
5 cases of work-related injuries, of which, 3 cases
were from Ningbo AUX and 2 cases were from
AUX, and the number of working days lost due to
work-related injuries was approximately 563" days.
During the Fiscal Year and the past two fiscal years,
the Group did not experience any accidents that
caused serious injuries or death to its employees.
In the future, the Group will continue to strive to
provide a safe and healthy working environment
for its employees.

The Group's total lost days in Fiscal Year of 2021/2022 were 563 days, of
which 308 days were from work-related injuries in 2020/2021.
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B3.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to participate
in all kinds of in-service training, and also provides
employees with various internal and external
training and development opportunities to help
them maximise their business potential.

The annual assessment results will be used to
provide suitable trainings for employees, in an
effort to continuously improve the Group's talent
quality and working skills, motivate working
enthusiasm of employees and stimulate them
to face challenges. Apart from considering the
Group's business vision and target needs, the
training and development programme also
simultaneously evaluates employee performance
and functional gap, coordinates with the
Company and the management in establishing
the education and training framework, and makes
plans for internal and external courses such as new
employee training, professional training, training
of various management levels, training relating
to environmental protection, core values of the
Group, etc. through physical or electronic learning
methods, providing employees with all-round
training, and enables the Group's employees
to continue improving their professional and
managerial competence, find out the platforms
where they can show their abilities, grow together
with the Group, and establish a steady cooperative
relationship.

The Group arranges new employees to receive on-
boarding training, aiming to make the employees
know about the Group, master the codes of
practice, techniques and methods for handling
business, and adapt to the new environment
and new job quickly. In addition, the Group
also provides training on safety knowledge
and environmental protection knowledge for
employees, which helps establish their awareness
of safety and environmental protection. Apart from
the training on technical procedures, employees
can also participate on fire training so as to
enhance their awareness of fire prevention.
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The percentage of employees trained in Ningbo
AUX is 71% (2020/2021: 18%). In the fiscal year of
2021/2022, Ningbo AUX has provided a total of
approximately 2,994 hours (2020/2021: 4,210 hours)
of trainings for employees, with an average of
approximately 3.4 hours (2020/2021: 1.7 hours) of
training received by each trained employee. The
percentage of employees trained by gender is
67% male and 33% female, while the percentage
of employees trained by employee category is
83% (general staff), 13% (middle management) and
4% (senior management). On the other hand, the
average training hours per employee by gender
were approximately 2.3 hours (male) and 2.9 hours
(female) respectively, and by employee category
were approximately 1.3 hours (general staff), 10.4
hours (middle management) and 10.5 hours (senior
management).

Percentage of employees trained

by gender of Ningbo AUX
R R
BIURIB S ZINEE LS

33%

67%

Male ™ Female

) L8 HRET

FRETHEBESEIRERENE D
EI% (=%, ——:18%) °
BRRETIHNZ T——/—E::
Hm@}* DR M H 492,994/ N8 (=

T — 4210/ ) I T
EI FHBUXINE THEZY
3ANE (ZZT = /= — 1.7/)E)
715 3 - EEJIHEA&IHJ%J /Lt
KR A6T%E M F33%L 1 %
IEEBREEREMNEDHEES A
83% (L@MBT) - 13% (REEEA
BI)M4% (B EEBAEB) -3 —H
A S%EEFHZIGEREHR
2D RIH A3/ (B1HE) K29
NN ()RR BEERIE S RIAY
A1 (E@BET) 10408 (b
BEBAE)RIOIE (SRER
AB) -

Percentage of employees trained
by employee category of Ningbo AUX
iR R
RESERESNZIEELH

4%

13?

83%

General staff ® Middle Management ~ Senior Management

HRERE SREEE

Annual Report 2022 & R 67



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -

68

HERERME

The percentage of employees trained in AUX
is 33% (2020/2021: 10%). In the fiscal year
of 2021/2022, AUX has provided a total of
approximately 24 hours (2020/2021: 139 hours)
of trainings for employees, with an average of
approximately 3 hours (2020/2021: 2 hours) of
training received by each trained employee. The
percentage of employees trained by gender is
38% male and 62% female, while the percentage
of employees trained by employee category is
63% (general staff), 25% (middle management) and
12% (senior management). On the other hand, the
average training hours per employee by gender
were approximately 0.3 hours (male) and 1.3 hours
(female) respectively, and by employee category
were approximately 0.7 hours (general staff), 0.3
hours (middle management) and 0.8 hours (senior
management).

Percentage of employees trained

by gender of AUX
B 72 Hf
BURIE S ZINEE LS

38%

62%

Male ™ Female

e 8 TimET

In the future, the Group will continue to provide
adequate training for its employees, so as
to enhance their knowledge and skills while
contributing to the sustainable development and
progress of the Group.
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Labour Standards

The Group has established an employment and
welfare policy in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the labour laws of
the PRC, and strictly prohibited the recruitment
of any candidate under the age of 18 to avoid the
recruitment of any child labour and forced labour.
The Group will never recruit any child labour under
the age restricted by local laws, and the Group's
HR Department will require the job candidates to
provide valid identification certificates to confirm
their actual age at time of interview. Once any
misuse of child labour is found, the Group will
immediately suspend his/her work, send the
child labour back to his/her original residence,
and deliver to his/her parent or legal guardian,
for which the Group will bear the required
transportation and accommodation expenses, and
pay the salary due for his/her actual work.

The Group has not experienced any labour
disputes or cases of forced labour during the
fiscal year. The Group undertakes to maintain
strict compliance with the Standard of regulations
at any time. Any employee facing or discovering
violations can report to the management through
the reporting mechanism, and the management
will take it seriously and take appropriate actions
to follow up.

OPERATING PRACTICES

BS.

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to
procurement principles. In the procurement of
materials and services, the Group has established
procurement policies and procedures to promote
fair and open competition. We ensure that we are
able to meet the best economic benefits in terms
of price, quality, delivery period and service when
purchasing materials and hiring services. As a
responsible organisation, the Group abides by the
spirit of contract and complies with the principles,
objectives and contents of the contract signed
between us and the suppliers.

B4.
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During the fiscal year, the Group cooperated with
a total of 245 suppliers, of which 37 were located
in Hong Kong and 208 were located in the PRC.

The Group has the responsibility to ensure that
procurement of materials and services is conducted
in a highly professional manner and complies
with the established code of ethics, so that the
resources are used properly, and the suppliers will
have the confidence in continuing doing business
with the Group. We must ensure that the suppliers
understand and comply with the Code of Conduct
and the procurement policies formulated by the
Group. The Group has established a list of selected
suppliers. Before any supplier is approved to enter
this list, we will review their company backgrounds
(including the recognitions, qualifications and
licenses they have obtained), product pricing and
supply terms. In order to standardise relevant
systems and processes, the Group has formulated
relevant work guidelines and standardised
contract forms, and conduct year evaluation on
the products and services of suppliers on a regular
basis to guarantee their compliance with the
Group's strict standards. New suppliers are also
required to meet the Group's standards and pass
the preliminary assessment of their new suppliers
before they are approved for inclusion in the list of
selected suppliers.

The list of selected suppliers will be reviewed at
the end of each year. Such review involves the
evaluation on whether a supplier's pricing, product
and service quality, efficiency, reliability, the ability
to deliver goods on schedule, licence update and
technical capability are still in compliance with the
Group's requirements and standards.
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The Group selects reputable and reliable suppliers
to provide high-quality, affordable and sustainable
products and services. The Group has a transparent
and independent procurement process, with an
aim to promoting competitiveness. This move will
also serve the benefits of our shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Group expects to establish
a vertically integrated supply chain management
system by integrating the procurement resources
and developing the supplier selection and
management mechanism, thereby actively
providing comprehensive solutions and satisfying
customer needs. The Group expects to review
the quality and performance of suppliers by
conducting relevant assessments and reviews,
and to ensure communication between the
procurement process so as to accurately convey
the Group's expectations to suppliers. Although
the Group's main business does not involve in
environmentally friendly products and services
when selecting suppliers, it still expects that
suppliers can comply with relevant environmental
standards and regulations, and save resources as
much as possible to contribute to environmental
protection.

Meanwhile, the Group encourages suppliers to
promote corporate social responsibility activities
and abide by corporate social responsibility
rules and environmental regulations. All business
transactions shall maintain high-standard ethics;
bribery or other illegitimate benefits must not
be provided or accepted; information relating to
business activities, structure, financial status and
performance shall be disclosed on a regular basis
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Product Liability

In order to maintain the Group's position in its
clubbing and entertainment business and property
management business and sustainability, the Group
strictly complies with the quality standards of the
industry to protect the Group's reputation and
public interests. The Group has strictly complied
with the laws and regulations relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
of its products and services. No non-compliance
incidents were identified during the fiscal year.

B6.
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The Group is committed to providing superior
and reliable services to its customers. The Group
regularly reviews its service performance, policies
and procedures, including the improvement of
service quality, the maintenance of proper records,
and the adequacy of staff training to ensure the
provision of professional and attentive services and
to safeguard the Company's reputation and the
public interests.

As the Group's business nature does not involve
product sales, there is no recall of goods for
safety and health reasons, nor is there any recall
procedure for products.

Customers are the cornerstone for the Group to
achieve sustainable development and a source of
power to promote product innovation. Therefore,
customer satisfaction is one of our most important
issues. The Group strictly requires that our
products and services must conform to public
interests, and handle inquires and opinions of
customers in a timely manner. All complaints will
be recorded in detail for follow-up actions and
future reference, so as to improve our service
quality and pursue progress to meet customers'
expectations.

Ningbo AUX adopts the whole process customer
service concept in project positioning, planning
and management of its property management
business in the mainland China, covers the
customer satisfaction indicator of related operation
units in all regions into the scope of performance
evaluation on these operation units, and constantly
improves our services from the interest of
customers.
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The Group conducts lawful management and operation in accordance with the
requirements in government laws, regulations and policies, so as to ensure
our property safety and value increase. By virtue of normative approaches and
with the goal of pursuing satisfaction of property owners, the Group provides
efficient and superior services for the property owners, and satisfies their
requirements honestly without fraud.

BEBEBRER EZHR BERER KEEE ALY BRAEEVEL 2 HEIE
BE-BPRENTFER - UXPRERELNER RAXPREASK BENRSE
mEEPER  BIEER-

The Group develops business earnestly, makes unremitting pursuits and
improves the details to strive for perfection. The Group also makes full use of
the internal and external information about quality environment, occupational
health and safety, and customer feedback, constantly improves the quality,
environmental and occupational health and safety management system,
keeps such systems always in effect, and pursues endlessly a higher level of
management and performance.

EER LA EET TMRER TEAE NLBEEX  ROMNBARINBHE
RE BERRLZ2EAMNERNRE FEMELE RELBERELEE
BERAWREFERKBEY TEHERERNERNETER -

HE
-

The Group will focus on infinite innovation, and uphold the spirit of infinite
innovation from business levels to management approaches. Employees of the
Group shall have the spirit of loving and respecting their jobs and being ready
for innovation, and attempt to achieve the synchronous development of both
individual and corporate values.

AEBBENEROAFN CEBSEMLEEEFER MAGERAFOBEE
AEEETE2AERMHE ZRAFNBEE BERAABERCXNRASER-

Standardised management is crucial to the Group's development. To
achieve development, the Group must attach importance to standardised
management, establish and improve its quality, environmental and
occupational health and safety systems, establish effective inspection and
implementation mechanism, and guarantee the Group's steady and sustainable
development.

FHREESEEZRMNER SEEXRVAIEEENABERE BUMNTE
SENEE RREVIBEREZEHE BELAMNBRENZERT BREE
BEMBERER-
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The Customer Service Department of Ningbo
AUX is responsible for caring about customers
actively, handling and managing customer
complaints, systematising and refining customer
relationship management, standardising complaint
handling work, and enabling all complaints made
by property owners to be solved timely and
reasonably.

During the Reporting Year, Ningbo AUX received
a total of 157 complaint cases regarding property
management services. All complaints have been
properly handled and resolved by the Customer
Service Department. In addition, the Group did
not receive any material non-compliance related to
products and services.

In order to standardise and regulate customer
services of operation units in various regions, the
Group has formulated normative documents such
as Property Owner's Complaints Handling Sheet,
Standard Operating Procedures for Property
Owner's Complaints Handling, etc. to constantly
improve its customer relationship management
level. In the future, Ningbo AUX will continue to
maintain good relationship with customers by
providing superior services.
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Complaint reception

RFERS

Receiving a complaint

BSRR

Keeping records of the complaint

IR SR RO

v

Minor complaint

Ly CoE

'

Making commitment

g R e

!

Reporting to Officer
E®REE

!

Customer Service Officer

organises for resolution

BEFRIBEMEEABBER

A

Important complaint

EERR

A

Making commitment

it 7RG
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Reporting to Manager
LIRAEE

Manager organises for

resolution paying return visits

IR AR B ROR
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Major complaint

ERKHR

!

Reporting to General Manager

LapmgE

!

Holding an office meeting

ARBLEEH

!

General Manager organises

for resolution

BRIBAHBRR

Keeping archives and
paying return visits
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Complaint channels

RFRE

Satisfaction survey

mMEERAE

Upon the receipt of the complaint from a property owner, the property
butler will firstly show sympathy for what the property owner is suffering
from on behalf of the department being complained, and keep detailed
records in the Logs of Customer Service Department immediately. In
case of a minor complaint, it may be submitted to the department being
complained in the form of Work Contact Sheet.

EERIEXPRAR MEEREARRBEFIMARNEXFLNEERTEB I
VEVE (BEFRBE ) PIEFFALE  SBEEMURFAIA (TIEHESE)
B Z 20 B X B R AR AR &R P o

Complaint channels for property owners include:

EFRHFRBEBE:
o Reception desk switchboard J QQ group of property owners
BRIA B A XFQQE
o Official Weibo and WeChat
° Customer service receptionist account
ERAT & BT I8 RIRESR

Ningbo AUX employs students from high schools as temporary staff to
conduct sampling survey on satisfaction of the property owners about our
products and services, and collect customer opinions and suggestions
about the daily services of Ningbo AUX, in an attempt to constantly improve
the Group's customer service level and property management quality.
Moreover, Ningbo AUX listens to the voices of customers, actively collects
customer opinions, rapidly responds to customer needs, and devotes itself
to continuously improving the customer service via channels such as hotline,
written suggestion, property owners' forum, social media, etc..
ERRRHSTERBFSEER T HEPETE MRS M EE &
S UHEBENRRHNAERGETELPEREZZNESE  UTE R
SENEPRBKFIEVEEERE I BRRRHERBARERE &
HEZ XPWE HRXEBFRE EREPLE BERUEEFPER A&
COEEFFE BORKERETPRE T(E-
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AUX is committed to providing the best customer BB N REERESREEFPR
service experience, safeguarding relevant BEER REERNERAEMNIEH
intellectual property rights of the software used in MBERE REBETLE WREGM
clubs, protecting customer privacy, guaranteeing NHREEIEEZE - RR e R
the security in clubs, and preventing drug abuse. EHEESIEAREHE THBRERNT

AUX has formulated relevant systems to regulate
relevant operations of employees as follows:

Complaint handling
RFEE

Safeguarding
intellectual property
rights
HENEER

AUX is committed to providing customers with an efficient complaint

handling mechanism and taking the following approaches to achieve this

goal:

R TIFNRETRE —(AERRNRFEREHS LRI TINITEAE R

BiR:

J All employees handle customer complaints in an objective and
positive manner;

s MEBINREBEMNBEERNEERERP KGR

o Actively contact customers to follow up or resolve complaints in a
real-time manner;

o  ITHHMERPREBNAMEFRIRF:

J Investigate the cause of the complaint in a real-time manner and
provide remedial measures;

o HIRABKRFREA AR BRRNMHBIE:

o Record the details of all complaints and record the contact information
of the complainant in daily log for investigation and follow-up; and

o RHEBEMIFAE URKKRFANBBLEAETH B ST URBEMBRE
K

J Periodically review the progress of unresolved cases.

e TEHMERBREREE-

AUX has formulated intellectual property policies and procedures to
manage, protect and monitor the copyright usage:
ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ,&?%ﬂ( REEFUNERE RERERRENER
Prohibit the use of unauthorised software or the reproduction of any
object of intellectual property rights;

. %’f:u:ﬁﬂ%5&%@%%E‘ﬁﬂii%ﬁ%&fﬂﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁ%%%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ:

J Before using a third party material, ensure that a license has been
granted;

o HEEBE=ZAMER BREE TR

o Educate and remind all employees to comply with copyright laws via

email or intranet;

e BABSTHHIANIERREWLIREMA S TEFREE:

o Retain lawyers to verify copyright owners, buy public performance
licenses and deal with other copyright problems; and

. EREMZEREA BERFERERMEREEMRERE: &

J Establlsh the List of Licensed Songs according to the public
performance licenses already bought.

e RECBEZARBMMEBRIL (EEFAZRE) -
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Protecting
customer privacy

REBELE

Safety in the club
BREAR2

AUX has established a membership system to provide more convenience
and benefits for membership customers. All membership data are kept and
encrypted by the membership database manager to avoid unauthorised
access to the sensitive data of the members.
BRrfiMeMmEBREGEHE AMATEENBERRHESZHNENRES.
MEEASHNEEEN RS ERBRENVETING  BRKIAAERETA
MERT2HEENHRER-

AUX is committed to providing customers with a safe and orderly
environment within the club, to ensure that customers have a wonderful
time there:

BRrfiBZ I RBEREMARK—BALZ2ERFNRE BREEREAAE

1|EE?.‘_—‘7. 0

Bi==>C -

o Professional security personnel are hired to maintain the order within
the club;

s INBEXRLTEFEMANKT:

o Ensure all the hired security personnel hold valid security certificates

and pass the drug test;

e BWMRMAXRENRZEFAEANNRLBE BBERAR

J Closed-circuit television operates in the form of 24/7 (24 hours a day,
7 days a week), and in the event of an accident, we will view relevant
records for follow-up;

. Fﬁﬂkﬁﬁuﬂﬁ(—%ﬂd\ﬁ? —EIR)EAEE BEBIKABEN

B a0 8% AR #
J Strictly control the flow of club patrons;
> BTSSR AR
J Check the identification certificate of any customer suspicious of

being under 18; and

s BEEEKRH T/ \RALHNFOHEHRANM: K

o If we find any customer under 18 or uncooperative, the employees
shall ask that customer to leave the club. If necessary, we will inform
the police for assistance.

e HEERRM+/\BRETIEHEEETEGENEAT BEEREXAH
BERASM - WEFE ASRMETH -
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AUX has established rules to prevent drug abuse:
B TR AT B IR R AR A -

All the new employees must pass the drug test before recruited;
FRBEN AR BT VERBERIRTERR

The Group carries out conventional drug test every month in the
clubs, and choose random employees to receive sample test;

R ANSAETEREYRH - WHEEIGE THEABETERARR
Any employee who is suspected of taking any prohibited drugs can be
directly reported to his/her department supervisor;

MIRREMBETIRABEMEY ATERAEBFIZERS

Prevention against J Our security personnel will request any person suspicious of dealing
drug abuse or taking any prohibited drugs to leave the club;
By L 085 2 . MEREMARSGHRABENEY RLAESGLANERZA SRR
o If any specific evidence is found to prove any person dealing or
taking any prohibited drugs, the club manager will call the police
immediately; and
e WMERARBRIARZIIMABROEY KBS TRNRERE
K
o AUX will arrange Caritas Lok Heep Club to provide lectures with
respect to drugs, mental health and other healthy lifestyle to
employees.
e RufEHMTHAERLHERERNSMm D ERENMEMRELEN
WMETHT-
During the Reporting Year, AUX received a total REAREFE R HERIRE
of 3 complaint cases in relation to its restaurant MEZEREERSORFEN T

and bar services. All complaints have been
properly handled and resolved by the respective
store managers. In the future, AUX will continue

BERRFECLOMBNEHLEL
EREIWMRS1R - By Hi i85 48
BARHEINREEXFSEER
FREMNBE BRRSERKE

to maintain good relationship with customers by
providing high-quality services, so as to improve
its service quality and pursue improvement.

The Group recognises the importance of
protecting intellectual property rights and
reinforces the standards in the policies stated
in the Code of Conduct. During the fiscal year,
the Group did not experience any material
infringement of intellectual property rights and
has taken all reasonable measures to prevent any
infringement of third parties' intellectual property
rights.

The Group attaches great importance to the
confidentiality of sensitive information. Every new
employee is required to sign a confidentiality
agreement and strictly abide by its terms to ensure
that every employee understands the Group's
confidentiality requirements for sensitive information,
including customer information and trade secrets
within the Group. The Group strictly prohibits any
unauthorised disclosure to prevent information
leakage from any direct or indirect means.

BWEREN-
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Anti-Corruption

The Group understands the importance of anti-
corruption and integrity. Therefore, the Group
prohibits any act of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The practise of
a good moral integrity and anti-corruption
mechanism ensures the Group's acts in all work be
professional, honest and fair.

The Group strictly abides by the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance, and requires all employees
not to directly or indirectly provide, undertake,
require or accept any illegitimate benefits, or
carry out other dishonest acts in breach of good
faith, law or national regulations in the course of
business engagement, including criminal offences
including corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
or money laundering, and other acts such as
providing illegal political contributions, improper
charitable donations or sponsorships, providing
or accepting unreasonable gifts, entertainments
or other illegitimate benefits, infringing business
secrets, trademark rights, patent rights, copyrights
and other intellectual property rights, engaged in
unfair competition, etc. The Group requires that
employees must report any benefits received, for
which the Group will make the final decision on
disposal.

The Group has established a comprehensive anti-
corruption policy to strengthen business ethics,
which includes strictly regulating the behaviour
of employees, encouraging the maintenance of
good conduct, so that our employees understand
the importance of upholding ethical conduct
and practise it at work. As the cornerstone of the
Group's culture of integrity, the Group requires
all employees to be familiar with and strictly
follow the established anti-corruption policies.
Although the Group currently does not provide
training related to anti-corruption for directors
and employees, we still strive to enhance the
importance of business ethics and anti-corruption
concept of employees, and undertake to arrange
relevant training in a timely manner to strengthen
the practise of good corporate culture in the future
when necessary.

During the fiscal year of 2021/2022, neither the
Group nor its employees were prosecuted for
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering.
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The complaint whistleblower shall truthfully
report the situation to the Administration Centre.
Upon receipt of the whistleblowing matter,
the Administration Centre will investigate the
complaint. The Administration Centre will keep the
whistleblower's personal information confidential,
and will submit the case to the competent
external agency for disposal when necessary. The
whistleblower will undertake corresponding legal
liability for fabricating facts, falsifying evidence,
or conducting false charge or frame-up by
whistleblowing.

Community

BS8.

Community Investment

The Group insists on the philosophy of giving
back to the society. Apart from the continual and
robust operation of business development, the
Group will make active efforts to show the service
spirit of our core corporate values, integrate the
ideas of community concern and participation,
and continue devoting to all kinds of education,
cultural and social welfare activities.

The Group is committed to performing its
corporate civic responsibility, of which volunteer
service is an important part. In view of this, the
Group has particularly set up a volunteer team, to
cooperate with the Agency for Volunteer Service in
charity work and return to the society. During the
fiscal year of 2021/2022, a total of 67 employees
of the Group participated in approximately 2,714
hours of volunteer services, including offering of
laba congee, ginger tea with brown sugar, congee
with mungbean and glutinous rice balls at different
festivals to improve neighbourly and community
relations.

In the future, the Group will input more resources
in various education, cultural and social welfare
activities, actively participate in community
activities, and express the Group's concern of and
return to local communities.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to emissions,
employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during
the fiscal year of 2021/2022.

HE
BS.

BRFABHRATRATRERTOLNE
REBL ERXBWERE TR
EEFLEHERFARTRMAAS
TREERTLEEBHRAMEBEA
ERRT IRAFTENBRT L
EREXBEIBHEBEIE - AR
BAEREEE BEEE IMNAEL
BREREMA BRAQFAE
HEEREE

HERE
AEERFEELENER KT
BERREL2CXBRIN BERRER
CERZOCBENRBEEMN  BAL
EREEAMER2ENDH FE
BEANSEHABE R TG REIE
3o

REBMBNRBAORARET M
ITRENREFEEN B8
AR EEBEXNIE TEK &
ERIEHERAESEEZ T
Ot AEBR T —— /"~ =
RFEHEBTIHZE T L2H492,714
NENETIRSE ERRERTRE
HET AR N\ ARER 45
BRSEE  REMENMEEBR-

AEBERKERZRBE R
HERABEHRBREZER BEH
SEMEREY REAKEHE
HERREOEDEE-

EREE
RZEZ— /ZZHBREE A%EH
WA HBERE R BB AR
BE ERELE BTEHR Em
EARRESHEZE KRR MY KR
SEBEERFENBR-
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GHG emission
Total GHG emission

GHG emission of AUX

GHG emission of
Ningbo AUX
GHG emission intensity

Scope 2 - “energy indirect”
GHG emissions
AUX

Ningbo AUX

Scope 3 - all other
indirect GHG emissions
AUX

Ningbo AUX

Non-hazardous wastes
Total non-hazardous
wastes produced
Non-hazardous wastes

intensity

Electricity consumption
Electricity consumption of
AUX
Electricity consumption of
Ningbo AUX
Electricity consumption
intensity

Water resource consumption
Water resource consumption
of AUX
Water resource consumption
of Ningbo AUX
Water resource consumption
intensity
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BEREHFR
R =R BB

B 72 R = R B HEI
BN B 5 B8 = R B
BEREBREE

#E—- [geRMEE]
EEREEEN

BEBERY
BEEERVELHBE

BEBENTE
EHREHE

Bz BEEHA
BERRmHT 2 BRI
ERHRTE

KEIFH %
B i 2 KEREE

ER R 2 KERER
KERBRTE

BnfiEBRERERAT

FY2020/2021
—E-F

— = —=

——HMBFE

56,740.73 tonnes
148

184.34 tonnes

07
56,556.40tonnes
73
1,431.81tonnes/
residential estate
g,

FERER

183.42tonnes

7
55,587.32tonnes
07

0.91tonnes
g
969.07tonnes
07

N/A
TiE
N/A
N iE A

315,275.91 kWH
F R B
78,292,006.01 kWH
T RE
1,982,076.10kWH/
residential estate

TEE EEE5

1,635.18 m?
5K
1,513,555.54 m?
3K
38,317.86 m¥/
residential estate

MR SMEEES

FY2021/2022
—_E_—/
—HEREE

71,703.86tonnes
g

184.93 tonnes

g
70,918.93tonnes
Mg
1,325.59tonnes/
residential estate
m,

B

184.09tonnes

17
69,605.25tonnes
17

0.83tonnes

17
1,313.68tonnes
g

N/A
TE A
N/A
TEA

284,513.00kWH

T REF
98,035,568.99kWH
T R B
1,832,440.54kWH/
residential estate

FTER FEBH

1,492.61 m?
37K
2,054,094.70 m3
3K
38,394.29 m3/
residential estate

NFHKMEERE
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Number of employees
Total employees

Number of employees
by gender
Male
Female

BETA#
BETAH

BERETET AR

[==]
=3

L°8

Number of employees by age RZFREIFTE T AH

18-25
26-35
36-45
46-55
56-65
Number of employees
by working year
Less than 1 year
1-3 years
3-5 years
5-10 years
Over 10 years
Number of employees by
type of employment
Full-time

Part-time

Temporary position

18-255%
26-35%3%
36-45%5%
46-553%

56-6573%

BRIGFHEIETAY
TR
1-3%
3-54F
5-10F

105 A |

EREREADETAY
XX
B

It By BBk 2

FY2020/2021

—E-T /- —WH

FE

1,077

744
333

Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed

ABERE

Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed

ABEHE

Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed

ABEHE

FY2021/2022
—E2-— /B
FE

1,089

755
334

79
319
355
303

33

331
293
229
218

18

1,081
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Number of employees
by geographical region
The PRC

Hong Kong
Others (Nepal, Pakistan)
Employee turnover rate
Average monthly
turnover rate
Employee turnover rate
by gender

Male

Female

RitESSETAH
# L

)

Hit (e RE  EEHE)

ABRKER
T A RARLE =

BERE D 2 ABRKE

]
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=

FY2020/2021
T/ -
FE

Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed

ABEHE

5%

Not disclosed
REWE
Not disclosed

ABERE

FY2021/2022
S
FE

1,046

41

5%

5.5%

5.9%
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Employee turnover rate
by age
18-25

26-35
36-45
46-55

56-65

Employee turnover rate
by geographical region
The PRC

Hong Kong

Others (Nepal, Pakistan)

Health and safety
Cases of work-related
fatalities
Lost days due to
work injury

Development and training
Ningbo AUX
Total internal training
hours for employees
Total employees trained
Percentage of employees
trained

Percentage of employee
trained by gender of
Ningbo AUX
Male

Female

BREREDSZAEBRAE
18-255%,
26-355%
36-455%
46-55%,

56-657%

BRHEE D ZABRKE
B
&8
Hit (e REE  EEHMTE)
RERZE
SN e
RITEMBRZ TIERR
R REI
55 B Su AR
12 B A B0 55 o)l 48 P 2K
BRI E THER
EEJIEEADLL
BRI EERE S 28
T 55t B
E2

£°8

FY2020/2021
—E-T /- —WH
FE

Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed

ABERE

Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed

ABHE

Nil
i

/A3

Not disclosed

ABBE

4,210
2,408

18%

Not disclosed
REEE
Not disclosed

ABBE
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FY2021/2022
—B- - DR
FE

10%
6%
4%
3%

2%

5%

6%
N/A
TER

Nil

563

2,994
868

71%

67%

33%
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86

Percentage of employee

trained by position of
Ningbo AUX
General employee

Middle management

Senior management

Average training hours

completed per employee
by gender of

Ningbo AUX

Male

Female

Average training hours

completed per employee
by position of

Ningbo AUX

General employee

Middle management

Senior management

AUX International Holdings Limited

BRRTHTEBRE D 2
BT A

LTBET

o

B
m
i

25

2

i
A
BRERA

il

25

Pl

oj0
D

BERRTATRMERE D8
BT PR E

==
=3

£°8

ERRR T RBARE DK
B TP R 8

il
o
il
H

o B
25 itz
mf IR
e B
> >
mo Smn

\
’

BnfiEBRERERAT

FY2020/2021
—E-T /- —WH
FE

Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed

ABEHE

Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed

ABBE

Not disclosed
REHEE
Not disclosed
KRB R
Not disclosed

ABERE

FY2021/2022
—B- - DR
FE

83%
13%

4%

2.3

2.9

1.3
10.4

10.5
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FY2020/2021 FY2021/2022
ZEZT /MR = =B
FE FE
AUX R
Total internal training & B M EPHE 51| 42 B 8¢
hours for employees 139 24
Total employees trained BN B T 61 8
Percentage of employees BEEERD L
trained 10% 33%
Percentage of employee BrHi4R &8s 2
trained by & T 531tk i
gender of AUX
Male ES Not disclosed
RBEWE 38%
Female zZ Not disclosed
ARBEWE 62%
Percentage of employee REfiRBEREDs 2
trained by position of B I EINLEH
AUX
General employee EWET Not disclosed
ARBEWE 63%
Middle management TEEBAER Not disclosed
ARBEWE 25%
Senior management =BREEAR Not disclosed
ARBEWE 12%
Average training hours R HT R BI85 1
completed per employee ETIXTKFIFEEEH
by gender of AUX
Male £ Not disclosed
REWE 0.3
Female Z Not disclosed
REWE 1.3
Average training hours Ru T RBREA D
completed per employee EIRTRIEIFEIRE
by position of AUX
General employee EWET Not disclosed
REWE 0.7
Middle management TEEEAR Not disclosed
REWE 0.3
Senior management BREBAG Not disclosed
ABERE 0.8
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Supply chain management
Total suppliers

The PRC

Hong Kong

Product responsibility
Number of products and
service related
complaints received

Anti-corruption
Number of corruption
litigation cases and
the outcomes of
the cases

Community investment
Corporate donations

Employees' volunteer hours
Number of employees

involved in volunteer
activities

88
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HEEEE
e P B

B
)
EmEE

EERNERKREDH
B A

K&ES
BEORARRMHE RFRER

HERE
TCEEEEY

BEEB TIERE
S2HEEGTEREAK

BnfiEBRERERAT

FY2020/2021
—E-F /K
FE

Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed
REHE
Not disclosed

ABERE

Not disclosed

ABEHRE

Nil

Not disclosed
REHRE
Not disclosed

ABHE

Not disclosed
REBE

FY2021/2022
—®=— /==HK
FE

245
208

37

160

Nil

N/A

TEH
2,714hours
N
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A1. Emissions

A1

The policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

BRABERIORERBEN MAKRTHOEES BERBEEEZYHNELFOEE
NETHETABEARENHBERZLRM -

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

KPI AT 18R D 1 28 K AR R HF TR B8R

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
KPIAT2AERBAYNE (NEAE) REE (MAGEEEM  BERWTE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

KPIAISFMEABEREEMAE (MR REE (WAGESEEN  BERE
g

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

KPIATARTEABZEZMAE (UMEFE) RTE (NWASEEEM  BHKER
)

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

KPI A1.5% a6l 4K BE R & 1) # t  FT 1S BCER

KPl A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

KPI Al BB EREBEREMNTT L BEELENEBERMABEKRR-
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5@ B

46-50

N/A
5@ B

50-51

46-50

50-51
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RiE - HERERRE

A2. Use of Resources

A2.ERER

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER (BEER KEEMEME) BBER -

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

KPI A2 1IR3 R DM EE R SkEERR (INE - [eh) BFE (UTETER
FEIREE (WASBEEEMN BERBTE) ©

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
KPI A2 2B KEREE (MASESEN BHEXEIE)

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
KPI A2 3% 3t BT SZ Y BERE A e B IR R R iE B iE Lk B IR P EREREY AP 8%

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

KPI A2 4% it Sk BRE B 7KOR B R A R AT 28 - DA R PR AT S ) K Rt B R % 7= & 3
LB R B

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

KPI A28 AT BB EMHNES (UEAE) R (NER)BEEELES-

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RRERARER

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BIEBETAHREMRAEREREAFENBEK -

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI A XA H IR AR E RN BEAZERERNEE BB ENTTH
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A4. Climate Change
AL RIZRE1L

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

AN EH R RIS ETAELEFENEARBREBEENEE -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

KPl AR E S N AIRE @ HETAEER ENERRRBREE  LEHTH -

B1. Employment
B1.fE 1%

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

B B BN S R R T‘”H%&E’:ﬂ' TERE BRE TEHRE Zalb REKULE
B RBAHNOBRNETHETABEATENBRERMROINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.

KPI BT.1#R M5 - B IRELE FERAR MR BT EE A -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

KPI B1.2#& MR - Fhc BRI bR E DM EE RAL X
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B2. Health and Safety Page#
B2.@REEZE BEE4#
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations 64-65

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FRRHZ2TIHERFEMREREEREBEUEENRREMNETHETAREX
TENBRERLROIONE R -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past 65
three years including the Reporting Year.

KPIB21BE=F (BIEERFE)EFEA T THMASB LI E-

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 65
KPIB22H TIBEARTIER & -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 64-65
they are implemented and monitored.
KPI B2 3l PRER MV B R R B e 2 8 i A MBI TT REER T 0% -

B3. Development and Training Paget#
B3.% & K& FI BE##
Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties at 66-68

work. Description of training activities.

BRERMEEET TEBRENMBLRENBE - RAEIES-

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 67-68
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

KPI B3 1M RI RESERN (MERERE PREEES)SS»NXIEEASLL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 67-68

employee category.

KPIB3.2Z R R B EBRIE D BREE K ZINNFHEH-
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RiE - HERERRE

B4. Labour Standards
B4.% T % |

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BB LETRHE THNBRRMNETHRTABERZENEREZZRAMD
Ek o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

KPI B4. 1% st iz 5 $R BS 18 9] B #5 b A @ R B T N SR Il 85 T -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

KPI B4.2#H 1t 72 35 35 & M B LB R BR B BR 1B UL P ER BN A 20 B -

B5. Supply Chain Management
BS. it fE 88 & #

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

B EEIRE M SR REUR -

KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
KPI BS. 1% i [ &l 5 M) R E R BB ©

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented

and monitored.
KPI BS.2#f i B AR AEM M EN MERNTEBEMNNMHERNEE - UREH
BOIRNITRERT %

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
KPI B5.3f it B A 5l R G EIR MR E R @ AR e1E - LA KRBT R

ERIE

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

KPI BS.Afi it fEHRABE K EE 2 (£ 2 ARRE m KRG E A - A RMBBEHRIT M E
RIFIE
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B6. Product Responsibility
B6.EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

BHMREHERNMRENRERELZE BS SHEAMEBEEARBRITENEEK
REBFHETABERZENEEEREZRAOINER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

KPIBGIEEXEEXEREBEHTRALLHEEREAMARKMNBE DL -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
KPI B6. 28 JE B 10 o M AR B O aR BB DA RS 0%

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

KPI B6. 3%k ult B2 4k & AR B F B EEE B BB I

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
KPI B6.44# il & 8 1% E 18 12 M & fn [0 A2 /7 -

KPI1 B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

KPI B6.5Ha s H B H ERRERALBBE  ARBBRTRERT A
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B7. Anti-corruption
B7.XE’5

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

BRI LR 9R BEFRARENBRRLETHRTAGERTENEBE LR
NAR B E #L -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

KPIB7IRNERAAH ETAXERBERHICDEENE SHARMFHEE MFA
BR-

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,

how they are implemented and monitored.
KPI B7. 2%t B &4 b SR B 7 A AR TT R ER T -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and

employees.
KPIB7 3fimEE R B8 TRHEMNREITH -

B8. Community Investment

BS.HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities' interests.

BRANHERSERTREEMELRFEMBREXEEHEE B ENmAOBUR -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e. g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

KPIBS 1B X ERESB (IWHE BEFE S ITER ERE L -BEEF)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

KPI B 2EE T EBMBAER (N EHKH) -
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

A review of the Group’s business during the financial year,
which includes a fair review of the Group’s business, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the financial year and after the end of the financial year, and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 16 and the Group's
environmental policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 36 to
95 of this annual report. The contents of the abovementioned
sections form parts of the business review as contained in this
report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the
management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations which may have a material impact on the business
and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in all
material respects during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the
significant assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue
establishing a caring environment to employees and
emphasised the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers
and suppliers. The Group aims to continually provide quality
services and consumption experiences to its customers and
establish cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment that pays close attention to
conserving natural resources. The Group strives to minimise
its impact on the environment by reducing its electricity
consumption and encouraging recycling of office supplies
and other materials. For further details, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 36 to 95 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
and the state of the Company's and the Group's affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 122
to 211.

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company before
dividends, of HK$12,297,000 (2021: Loss attributable to
shareholders before dividends of HK$8,621,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

As at 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$137,561,000 (2021:
HK$74,379,000).

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 212 of this annual report.

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.
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Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note
24(b) to the financial statements. As disclosed therein and in
the section headed “Capital Structure” in this annual report,
the total number of issued shares of the Company increased
from 374,984,000 to 492,984,000 shares on 15 February 2022
following the completion of the Subscription.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other movements
in the share capital of the Company, and there were no
purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
from the major customers and suppliers during the year
ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:

The largest customer BAREP

Five largest customers in aggregate hREFPEH
The largest supplier BRAHER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEEH
98 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )

QB 2 5518 8 B 1% 7R 3% MY 5E24(b) © 38
MAFRIEAEE| —GAEE EAU,%%IE
EXE ARREBITROBEN T ==
— A+ F B $374,984,000/% 1 A0 492,984,000
B% o
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Percentage of
the Group's
total purchases

Percentage of
the Group's
total revenue
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During the year, other than Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd
(which accounted for approximately 9.1% of the total sales for
the year ended 31 March 2022), in which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
and Mr. Zheng Jiang indirectly hold 85.0% interests and 10.0%
interests, respectively, and Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital, which
is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a 30%-controlled
company held by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang (which accounted
for approximately 5.2% of the total sales for the year ended
31 March 2022), none of the Directors, their close associates
or Shareholders who to the best knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company has any beneficial interest in any of the Group's five
largest suppliers or customers.

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Liang Songluan
(resigned with effect from é May 2022)
Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

FR BREEBIALNEIAEDREERA
BRBTHBEERAR(HERHE_T =
FZA=+—HILFEHEHETE.1%)85.0%H
10.0%H) 1 25 A = BRI B BT BB BT 5o £ 158
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, the Board shall have
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

Accordingly, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company. All retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 19 of
this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO"), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein,
or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company

R_E-__HF=ZA=+—HB ARAERES
RB&EBITHRABRARENEEMERER (F
EREFNPEERN ([BHFEBEER])EXV
) 2B HERDRERIETEEREES
KB RBIEXVEEE7 N8O B A& A A &
Rz Em AR (BEREES RBE K
FIZSHEXERREFHEERESTRAR
BEZRDZRAR) IRBEEFLMEEMNF
352G A AL 2 B 2 s MoK R
HRFEETR AR ETRIAMNGARA R
B Pr 2 s FOXB T

REALDFAEBEZEzROREBRD 2HF A

Approximately
Percentage of

Name of Name of Capacity/ Number and the issued
associated Corporation Directors Nature of interest class of shares share capital
ERTREAZ
B LB A8 EEn B ERHE BROBE REH BHEI T
Huiri Limited (Note) Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 0.1 10%
corporation ordinary shares
fEBERER AR (HF) g T LR ER R
China Prosper Enterprise Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 1,000 10%
Holding Co., Ltd. (Note) corporation ordinary shares
China Prosper Enterprise B T RN X g

Holding Co., Ltd (#f3t)

Note:

Ze Hong Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Jiang, was interested
in (i) 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, being the holding
company of the Company; and (ii) 10% of the issued share capital of China
Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd., being a fellow subsidiary of Huiri Limited.
Mr. Zheng Jiang was deemed to be interested in the shares of Huiri Limited
and China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. as held by Ze Hong Limited by
virtue of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 352 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Biat -

ETAERERBNRRERBRARROARRMNZERR
AIEBZERABRAFEHITRARNI0%  K(i)E R ZERER
A A8 [/ X} B 2 ] China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co.,
Ltd. B BITRAMO%T HEEER REZFHFRBE KD
HIAREWRANRERZERATFANEHIZERAR DGR
China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. 8% {5 # % & ##
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RZEBEZZFZAZ=Z+—8 EBEARFRBEF
FREBEKRPIEBETFEZE MRS T
WAL (ARBESITEABRIN RAA R K
MXBERN T - HEEAREES KEBE KA
FEXVEBFE2 R 37 BB M AR D F) KRB P iR R
ZHEEmRKBIT

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of
persons other than the chief executive of the Company who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Capacity/ in ordinary (approximately)
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest shares held (Note 1)
EBRTRAE
BEZER Aok (84)
REREA B ERtE ZER (Krat1)
Zheng Jian Jiang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 337,950,000 68.55%
corporation
BRERT (Hft2) RELEER
Ze Hui Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 337,950,000 68.55%
corporation
EEARAR (Hit2) REEEEE
Huiri Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 337,950,000 68.55%
BERERARAGR (#i72) EnEEAA
He Yi Ju (Note 3) Interest of spouse 337,950,000 68.55%
o] B.5 (K743) [
Xu Xingen Beneficial owner 32,400,000 6.57%
fRIEAR EnEAA
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Notes:

1. On the basis of 492,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at
31 March 2022.

2. Huiri Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is owned as to 90% by Ze Hui Limited (which is in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang) and 10%
by Ze Hong Limited (which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Zheng Jiang, a current executive Director). Each of Mr. Zheng Jian
Jiang and Ze Hui Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Huiri Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. He Yi Ju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. Under the SFO,
Ms. He Yi Ju was taken to be interested in the same number of shares in

which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang was interested.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Other than those transactions disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report
of the Directors, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
or any of its controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director or a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 March
2022 or at any time during the year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report of the Directors, at no time during
the year, the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements which would
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this report, none of
the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe for the shares
or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or had
exercised any such right.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 the Board is not aware
of any business or interests of the then Directors and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the
Group.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group's operating results and individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors, employees and other eligible persons.

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 2(p) to the financial statements.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 3 January 2014 which shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date, subject
to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to provide incentives to Eligible Participants (as defined
below) and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions the Eligible Participants have had or may have
made to the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board may offer to grant an option to the following persons
("Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives, or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including any non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

REBERARAAERZ ARAEMERARAES
PR BEARNFRAN ARREHERF ETHR

BIFTEAZ AR E -

ARAREZREZHIIFRNTESTRE LMRA
FEIBHEABUMRL 2 FERER XRRME
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(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
the assessment criteria of which are:

(1) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(2)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(3) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(4)  length of service or contribution to the Group.

The Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares available for issue under options which may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue immediately following
completion of the IPO (but taking no account of any Shares
which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the exercise of
the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus)),
being 30,000,000 Shares. The total number of Shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to an Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue as at the date of grant unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.
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Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant on
or before the relevant acceptance date. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall expire on 2 January 2024.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2022, 2,745,000 options
had been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme.

As at 1 April 2021 and throughout the year ended 31 March
2022, there was no option outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 27,255,000 Shares representing 5.53% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

Save for the share option scheme of the Group as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022 and as at the date of this
report of the Directors, pursuant to which the Company shall
indemnify the Directors against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which any of them may incur
by reason of any act done in execution of their duty in their
respective offices, except such as they shall incur through
their own fraud or dishonesty. The Company has maintained
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the
Group were conducted during the year on a continuing basis

for which relevant announcements had been made by the

Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(a)

108

Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 28 December 2020)

On 1 December 2020, Ningbo AUX entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the “2020 Framework Agreements”) with
each of (i) Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Company
Limited (“"Ningbo AUX Healthcare”) (the "2020
Framework Agreement |”); (ii) AUX Group Company
Limited ("AUX Group”) (the “2020 Framework Agreement
[1”); (iii) Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Sanxing”) (the “2020 Framework Agreement
[11"); (iv) Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo AUX
Real Estate”) (the “2020 Framework Agreement V"),
and (v) Ningbo AUX Electric Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX
Electric”) (the “2020 Framework Agreement V") (parties
to each agreement entering into such agreement for
itself and as trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries
from time to time) for the provision by Ningbo AUX
of maintenance, cleaning and/or security services for
offices, industrial park facilities, car park units, residential
properties and/or commercial properties.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

As at the date of the above agreements, (i) AUX Group
was in aggregate directly held as to 100% by two
companies, each of which was held as to 85.00% by
Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang (“Mr. JJ Zheng”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company indirectly holding
approximately 58.66% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company (and approximately 68.55% as
at the date of this report); (ii) Ningbo Sanxing was in
aggregate directly held as to approximately 52.75%
by Mr. JJ Zheng and the parties acting in concert
with him (including Mr. Zheng Jiang and AUX Group);
(iii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in aggregate held as
to approximately 87.84% by Mr. JJ Zheng, including
direct interests of 25.00% and indirect interests of
approximately 62.84% held through various entities;
(iv) Ningbo AUX Healthcare was a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ningbo Sanxing; and (v) Ningbo AUX
Real Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00% by Mr. JJ
Zheng. Accordingly, each of AUX Group, Ningbo
Sanxing, Ningbo AUX Electric, Ningbo AUX Healthcare
and Ningbo AUX Real Estate was an associate (being
a 30%-controlled company) of Mr. JJ Zheng as a
controlling shareholder of the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Each of the 2020 Framework Agreements is effective for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. Further details of each of the 2020
Framework Agreements are disclosed below:

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement |, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property housekeeping,
transportation and other ancillary services to
Ningbo AUX Healthcare and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time for a term commencing on
1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.
The above transactions shall be subject to the
annual cap of RMB26.8 million, RMB36.4 million
and RMB44.4 million for the years ended/ending
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.
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Under the 2020 Framework Agreement Il, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices, commercial
properties and car park units occupied by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries. In addition, Ningbo
AUX shall provide pre-sale managements services,
sales offices management services and unsold
industrial park units property management services
in respect of industrial park facilities owned by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending
on 31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB5.4 million,
RMB11.0 million and RMB13.1 million for the years
ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement Ill, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices and car
park units occupied by Ningbo Sanxing and/or
its subsidiaries from time to time for a term
commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMBO0.5 million,
RMBO0.5 million and RMBO0.5 million for the years
ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement IV, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including management, maintenance, cleaning
and security services in connection with the
development projects of residential properties
and shopping complexes launched by Ningbo
AUX Real Estate and/or its subsidiaries from time
to time for a term commencing on 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB37.2 million, RMB50.1 million and RMB54.8
million for the years ended/ending 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.
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Under the 2020 Framework Agreement V, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including mainly cleaning services in connection
with the industrial park facilities occupied by
Ningbo AUX Electric and/or its subsidiaries from
time to time for a term commencing on 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB3.8 million, RMB7.4 million and RMB7.8 million
for the years ended/ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023, respectively.

Continuing Connection Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 30 September
2021)

On 30 September 2021, Ningbo AUX entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the "2021 Framework Agreements”) with
each of Ningbo AUX Real Estate (the “2021 Framework
Agreement 1”) and Ningbo AUX Electric (the "2021
Framework Agreement I1") (parties to each agreement
entering into such agreement for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time)
for the provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance,
cleaning, security and/or customer services for sales
offices, showrooms, vacant industrial park units and/or
properties and facilities of industrial park.

As at the date of the above agreements, (i) Ningbo
AUX Real Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00%
by Mr. JJ Zheng; (ii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in
aggregate controlled as to approximately 92.08% by
Mr. JJ Zheng; and (iii) Mr. JJ Zheng indirectly held
approximately 58.66% of the issued shares of the
Company (and approximately 68.55% as at the date
of this report). Accordingly, each of Ningbo AUX Real
Estate and Ningbo AUX Electric is an associate (being
a 30%-controlled company) of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and hence
a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(b)

BE—Z_ZTFELHBERL BK
Rt EFREFTER KL
ETRHMNBARMGANIXERE
REMEEERYE TE2REBR
R BHm ST _—F—H—
BFRE-_ZET_=F+-/F=+—
AE® LiRSGDFIREBEEZ
I R FRZT=F
T+ A=+ HULEFEMENFE
FRABABAREISEE T AR
BIABBTTMARKISEE L.

FEBEXZ (MOFA2FABHA-
ZT-HFAR=TRZAERKRE)

R-F-_—FNLA=1H" T‘iBZWE%HﬁEﬁi
BERRAZHEXR(ZF-_—FERHZ
*J)&T?)ﬁ‘iﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ_gifiﬁ
RpZE BB LDEEBRBER
wE (SR T —FERKZ]) (&
BHERNTOTRERG RIESETKH
BRARAMNAMEZZFEA)ARERETH

REHEENER RE BT XRSEMA
YR TEBRYWERRBNEE EZ-
RN, REF R -

REipEBEE (BEREHMEEAR
B EXOT S A # #F B85.00% ¢ (ii)E K
BREHMERABERT LS LEHLY
92.08% : R (i)BE T A EMEFEERAR

BB BT D #958.66% (A AN & H HA
49568.55%) cE I BEFRRB T EER
BRRTHERASEABR T RE (AR

R IERR AR B ) M9 Bt 28 A (BD30% = 12 A2
A mAEAARNBEEALT Al 1R

TFLW*EH'J%MAE TR —FIEEW
ZETHRETHORSERARANZE
@ R e

Annual Report 2022 % 3§

1M



Report of the Directors
EEERE

112

Each of the 2021 Framework Agreements is effective for
a term commencing on 1 October 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. Further details of each of the 2021
Framework Agreements are disclosed below:

Under the 2021 Framework Agreement I,
Ningbo AUX shall provide (i) cleaning, security
and customer services at the sales offices and
showrooms and (ii) maintenance, cleaning and
security services in respect of unsold industrial park
units of the industrial park development projects
of Ningbo AUX Real Estate and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time for a term commencing on 1
October 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.
The above transactions shall be subject to the
annual cap of RMBO0.8 million (from 1 October 2021
onwards), RMB4.1 million and RMB5.7 million for
the years ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022
and 2023.

Under the 2021 Framework Agreement II,
Ningbo AUX shall provide (i) management and
maintenance services in respect of the properties
and facilities and (ii) maintenance, cleaning and
security services in respect of unlet industrial
park units of an industrial park owned by Ningbo
AUX Electric and/or its subsidiaries for a term
commencing on 1 October 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB2.1 million
(from 1 October 2021 onwards), RMB2.3 million
and RMB2.3 million for the years ended/ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms or better and according
to the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’'s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the Board
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group and confirming the matters set out in rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company has complied with all applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of those related party transactions which
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the section
headed “Material Related Party Transactions” on pages 208
to 209. The other related party transactions set out therein
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules which are exempt from the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

KPMG will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the board

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB EET RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AUX International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AUX International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 122 to 211, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter.

BnfiEBRERERAT
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Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment for lifestyle entertainment segment

REBREDBAGYE BERRB2ZRE

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(f), 2(h) and 2(i)(ii) and notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements
BREE AR 200 - 2(h) » 20)(i) R A7 & BT 75 3R &K T a4 12

The Key Audit Matter
HRESEE

Among the Group's businesses are a club and two
restaurant and bar outlets in Hong Kong during the
year ended 31 March 2022.
BE_T-__F=A=+—RLFE EBEEEHEHz%¥
BIREREE—RER MEEEMEEPE-

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
recorded a segment loss of HK$5.3 million in
respect of the operation of clubbing business
and restaurant and bar outlets. The current
economic environment and prolonged impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 and
hence weak consumer sentiment in the clubbing
and catering sectors have created uncertainties in
relation to the financial performance of the Group's
operation of clubbing businesses and restaurant
and bar outlets. Consequently, management
considered that impairment indicators of property,
plant and equipment existed as at 31 March 2022.
BE_ZT-__F=ZA=+—RHILFE" BEXERSE
BREgMm BB NMEEPEXKES D EEES3
BEET-BAEANNKEREANB T _ZFY)
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENESTNMERZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the
following:

BRFEDE BEARBZHRENEFTEFERET
CIE=3E

o understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over
the impairment assessment;

. TR 0T il SR (E FY (4 RO B B2 1A BDAE I B0 SR ET A

=i

o evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the allocation of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to each
CGU with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

e ZERTEHEUNER FEEEERRESE
EEUNBERAALRDE BEMREBREREER
ENEEERSELBEMNBR

o assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and with that assistance of
our internal valuation specialist, assessing the
impairment assessment methodology adopted
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

e HAUEREEEBNRENGELR BEL2KRR
TEEANER HERERMNNRETRE
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Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment for lifestyle entertainment segment (Continued)

REBREDBAGYE BERRB2ZRE (&)

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(f), 2(h) and 2(i)(ii) and notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements
FBREE AR E2(F)  2(h) ~ 20)(i) R A7 & BT 75 R &< M a4 % 12

The Key Audit Matter
HARESEE

Management performed impairment assessments of
property, plant and equipment for each separately
identifiable cash-generating unit (“CGU") with
indication of impairment using the value in use
model and compared the aggregate carrying values
of the respective CGUs, to which the property, plant
and equipment had been allocated, with the net
present values of the cash flow forecasts for each
CGU being assessed. Based on the impairment
assessments, impairment losses of HK$7.7 million
were recognised for the year on property, plant and
equipment in relation to the lifestyle entertainment
segment to write the assets down to their
recoverable amount of HK$Nil.
ERECHRAERAEEREHERETRHNSE A Z A
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BnfiEBRERERAT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENESTNMERZSEE

o challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow forecasts by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue, future
operating costs and the growth rate with
historical performance, and available industry
information on market data including projected
inflation rates published by external research
institutes;

e BBRUBERBAHRE BREAREA REL
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° with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the discount rate used
in the discounted cashflow forecasts by
benchmarking against those of other similar
companies in the same industry;

e HEAMEHEEZERNBE T BBEHEMEEXEMU
AREETHE AAFTRReREEANFEAN
FRE

o comparing the key assumptions included in the
discounted cash flows forecasts prepared by
management in the prior year with the current
year's performance to assess the accuracy of
the prior year's forecast, making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and whether
these had been considered in the current year
discounted cash flow forecasts and considering
if there was any indication of management bias;
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Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment for lifestyle entertainment segment (Continued)

REBREDBAGYE BERRB2ZRE (&)

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(f), 2(h) and 2(i)(ii)) and notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements

B2 EEBE N T2 2(h)  20)(i0) R AR & I FEHFZ I at4 12

The key audit matter

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in estimating future
revenue, future operating costs, the growth rate
and the discount rate applied.
FRAeRNEBANGRIREBENE R L
HAEMFRKBA - RRGERAR B RE LA
PFr®o

We identified assessing impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because
of the significant management judgement required
in making assumptions and estimations, which can
be inherently uncertain and subject to management
bias.

BB FEDE BERREBZRERTERSBREET
TR DHAREEERRLAARSIREEENER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

obtaining from management a sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and considering the
resulting impact on the impairment charge for
the year and whether there were any indicators
of management bias; and
AMERENGSHIRESREBTEA T HERERERN
FREDT YEBHUBAFEREERELE
WEE ULEEREEMATRBRERBEAM
I B8 &

assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

S2ERTEFRANERFESEAVBHRRPH

BREESEAE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% B A RS

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% B A RS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group'’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- HEEEFRAR

KMMBERE RUGAVEREREENTT

EHREFFRERMEFNERERRARGF
AREFRE THABRAMELNZEMERS -

AHmEER BT (ELSRE)EL BRIIAIN
ARETAREREMAZE - RPAGTIAARE
MR HERMEMALTAERARBEREE-

EBRREFRZSKFHRE BETRREBRR (B
BEAEL) EITNES EX -EXERBRL
T 12 I 48 B8 35 3R o $5 SR BR A A JA e R 5F Sk 88 iR
SIE-RAEFEHATMEBIEALIRA L
TESAVBRRERERBY B REMEL
R PR TE - BB B RVSE AR PR AT AR EEE K

ERE (BAEEEL) ETFEAHEREST K
PERTEXHE Y EEREBAERPRE
THEEERREE LML

- BRI BN ERME MR Y

BREGFHEEANFERRANE R &5 &
HMITBEAEFARYELRR LMSZZ%HX
ARMEBEENESBE FAEMAERWN
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% B A RS

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

120
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% BAT IR S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tak Kei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2022
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MELER BRIFERERTATARBES
LER - FAEHRFLNERT WREGEEH
EHMBRETFBBRERERNNEERRBEB
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEHER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HEZZ-—F=A=1+—HLEFEWBTET)

Revenue

Other revenue

Other net loss

Cost of inventories sold
Property cleaning expenses
Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Property rentals and related expenses

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment

Advertising and marketing expenses

Utilities expenses

Repair and maintenance expenses

Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Profit/(loss) per share

Basic and diluted

W 58

H U=
Hih g Fam
EEFERAN
MEBRFAX

8 TRA

e R#H
MERS RABRY
REREE R

Note
M 5

YR BB R mRERE

BEREHEME
KEE

s EERY
EMgEeEms
BEEERA
BB kA
B B 5% A
s
EREE

LT ALTREWN:
RNRBIEZRIRR
JE R B AE 25
EREE
BRERN(E8)

EARR#E

The notes on pages 129 to 211 form part of these financial

statements.
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2022
—E-=

$'000

TERT

357,239

13,573
(3,960)
(7,683)
(77,980)
(158,509)
(17,731)
(4,464)

(11,360)
(4,584)
(9,422)

(19.743)

(34,543)
20,833
(2,350)
18,483

(18,591)

(108)

12,297
(12,405)

(108)

3.2 cents &1l

2021

—=

7$'OOO
FiTT

302,907

19,034

7,058

(15,679)

(8,621)

(8,621)

(8,621)

(2.3) cents &1l

12921 A MM G AR % F I 15 3R B — 26
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HoBESENHEMEZEREE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HEZZ-—F=A=1+—HLEFEWBTET)

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of the

financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong (with nil tax effect)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021
== —E-—14F
$'000 $'000
FE T FHETT
FRAER (108) (8,621)
ERHEMEEKE
HEMEE R Em>
HH -
BERBEINHBRARZ
B RAZIEL =5
(TEHBETE) 10,683 15,938
FRE2EWRZHEE 10,575 7,317
LT ALERN:
AKARIERBE 22,756 7,317
FEPE A% i 2 (12,181) -
FRE2EWRFZHEE 10,575 7,317

The notes on pages 129 to 211 form part of these financial

statements.

F129FVE M EBARE M B BE L — 8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR IEIRR R

At 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZEZZF=A=+—HUABITETR)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Non-current time deposit
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Restricted bank deposits
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Amount due to the controlling
shareholder

Loans from the controlling shareholder

Current tax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Loans from the controlling shareholder

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE

ME - BEMZE
BVEE

Bk
FEENHAE Bl 17 3%
EIERIAE E

if

TEHEE

=

Af
\m]ﬁ

ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ%
B ER AT Yg [ 7% 3%
SR B RITIF
RITFEAREFERS

REBAE
B 5 K E b A 3R
BHafE
HE&E
RS 42 B s SR R IR

T B3 45 B R A
B3 1 408

REBEEFME
EERBERRBAR

FRBEE

KB R R E R
HEARE
EERBAE

EEFE

124 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 % 57 B B2 4% B IR 2 5]

Note
B 5

12
13
14
18(a)
23(b)(ii)

16
17
23(a
18(a
18(a

19
20
21

22
22
23(a)

22
21
23(b)(ii)

2022

$'000
THER

4,929
40,748
60,067
62,210

3,062

171,016

568
92,370
3,553
4,598
330,233

431,322

130,196
73,707
12,284

6,113
88,794
7,718

318,812

112,510

283,526

22,060
1,002
16,574

39,636

243,890

15,237
46,826
57,680

3,020

122,763

519
89,664
3,553
3,550
227,198

324,484

117,032
59,675
14,285

4,373

7,013
202,378
122,106

244,869

85,266
8,759
15,153

109,178

135,691



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEBBMR IR

At 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB-—H=ZA=+—-RBUAEBTXR)

2022 2021
—E- —EF=-—
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 THET FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRGHE
Share capital % A5 24(b) 4,930 3,750
Reserves &1 227,239 131,941
Total equity attributable to equity EATEERREMNG
shareholders of the Company B 232,169 135,691
Non-controlling interests FERER 11,721 -
TOTAL EQUITY s AR 243,890 135,691
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors RZZEZZF AT NHLEFSIERK
on 29 June 2022. T -
Chan Hon Ki Shen Guoying
(COE-! =
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 129 to 211 form part of these financial ZF129E2MNB W T ERZ ST BHREH — I

statements. 5o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GRESEER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-_F=ZA=+—RLEFEUETERT)

Balance at 1 April 2020

Changes in equity for the year
ended 31 March 2021:

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transferred to statutory reserve

Balance at 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Changes in equity for the year
ended 31 March 2022:

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Shares issued (note 24(b))

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests

Transferred to statutory reserve

Balance at 31 March 2022

R-B-BFMA-AZER

BE-B--F=A=t-BLFEZ
RERE:

FRBR
EREMEENE

FAREREER

BNEERA

R=Z=-£ZA=+-8ER
“E--EMA-BZEH

BECBCCESASt-BUEFEZ
RERE:

FRER/ (B8)
FREMZERE

FALERELER

BRAMRH (H240))
FRRERTE

LW 1

WoB--F=A=+-RAzf#H

Share
capital

B&

$000
TER

3,750

3,750

1,180

4,930

Share
premium
RHER

(note

24(c)fi)
i3
240)
$000
FAL

177,000

177,000

72,542

249,542

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Capital
reserve
EXfER
(note
24(c)fi)
(frat
24(c)fiy))
$/000
ThT

2,500

2,500

2,500

The notes on pages 129 to 211 form part of these financial

statements.
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FATRBRRES

Statutory
reserve
EERE
(note
24(c)fiv))
(B
24(c)liv)
$/000
ThT

7216

12413

6,115

18,528

o

Exchange
reserve
EiEE
(note
24(c)fiii)
(Kt
24(c)fi))
$'000
TEL

(16,477)

15,938

15,938

(539)

10,459

10,459

9,920

Accumulated
losses

2itEE

$000
FhT

(45,675)

(8,621)

(8,621)

(5137)

(59,433)

12,297

12,297

(6,115)

(53,251)

Total
it

$/000
T

128,374

(8,621)

15938

135,691

12,297

10,459

22,756

73,722

232,169

Non-
controlling
interests

FERER

$'000
TERT

(12,405)

224

(12,181)

23,902

11,721

Total
equity
ERAE

$000
TER

128,374

(8,621)

15,938

135,691

(108)

10,683

10,575

73,722

23,902

243,890

FI9E2NAMM EBRAFNHRERN — 8
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z-_F=ZA=+—RLEFEUETERT)

Operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Bank interest income

Finance costs

Depreciation

Amortisation

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on termination of lease
agreement

(Reversal of)/impairment losses on
trade receivables

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment losses on intangible asset

Impairment losses on prepayment
for property, plant and equipment

COVID-19-related rent concessions
received

Net foreign exchange loss

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in restricted bank deposits
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

The People’s Republic of China
("the PRC") income tax paid

PRC withholding tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

i(« #;& ,‘E ﬁ
B ¢ A1 A

BTSSR REL AR
RITHBHRA
BERA
e
B 55
HEWE BE R

RiBEE

HHEBRE&EMES
P&

B 7 WA E
(Fm@) B8

Ho A & U SR TR R 18 B 1R

GESNEREY 7§

Y BE R E
B EE
\mEERBERSIE
LN &

TE FIE 2R AR 1B
JESCOVID-194H 8
HeER

& BB T

BEESHY:

FE (Em) E

B 5 No Ho Al e U SR IR R
IR B ERTT 77 FE 0

B 5 N B Al & FRIRE H0
BHAEESEM

REELRS
EXftzhEARLME
(THRE ) PEN

B Xtz BB
EXfMzEBHNEHK

RETFHELEREFH

Note
M 5

ol

=

~N N
2os

2022
—E-=

$'000

TERT

18,483

(7,215)
2,350
9,843
7,888

438
(12)

(552)

11,360
33

3,391

(867)
4,162

(49)
1,038

(887)
8,194
11,394

68,992

(16,851)

(454)

51,687

Annual Report 2022 % 3§

7,058

(4,946)
2,386
15,172
7,448

129

4,312

1,382
7,261

11,486

(4,382)
3,618

408
3,783
(721)
8,328
10,189

72,911

(17,489)
(6,531)
(426)

48,465
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

u/—.r\ Eﬁ/%/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z-_F=ZA=+—RLEFEUETERT)

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5% FHET THET
Investing activities REEH
Payment for the purchase of property, BEME BWEIREERNR
plant and equipment (5,629) (2,300)
Payment for the purchase of intangible B &K EE K
asset (35) -
Increase in prepayment for property, M BERER#HTE
plant and equipment RIERIE 2 38 N (3,391) -
Increase in non-current time deposit FE BN A TE B A7 3038 A0 (62,210) -
Interest received 2 UFE 7,215 4,946
Net cash (used in)/generated REEE (FA)
from investing activities EEREEH (64,050) 2,646
Financing activities & EE
Proceeds from/(repayment of) loan ERR R E R FT1F
from the controlling shareholder A (B 18(b) 22,060 (31,248)
Shares issuance BTN 73,722 -
Capital contribution from #T BEREE
non-controlling interests 23,902 -
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREN A D 18(b) (13,661) (16,343)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEHESHAN B 18(b) (610) (448)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEBEE (FA)
financing activities ReRH 105,413 (48,039)
Net increase in cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents EhnE 93,050 3,072
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERESEEY
the beginning of the year 227,198 206,735
Effect of foreign exchange SNEERESHH2FE
rate changes 9,985 17,391
Cash and cash equivalents at the end EXRBEERRESZEY
of the year 18(a) 330,233 227,198

FI129ZF21M BRI TR ZE M B RK e — 7

The notes on pages 129 to 211 form part of these financial
statements. 73 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 E B 7% 3k 2= B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

AUX International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14 January
2013 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Cayman Companies Law”). The Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Group”) is principally engaged in operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets, and provision of
property management services.

(a)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

R HBERERERAB ([AR2F]DR
—E-=F-ATHAREHERSAQF
E(ZE-=ZFEBTX) (B5E RER])
(TREMBERAA]ERERSEMK
VR BERRARAR - AREREKH
BRA(TXHBIAKE D ITEREL
LEMER BERELEPIEER RIRH
Y EEIE R -

(a) &HRBH
ZEGREVBRREEREE SR
MAag ([EFestMAagl) Bz
FrERREEMBREERN ([EE
WgmELER]) BEMBERZ
BRI EEFBREER B
£ ([BEgrE])LEE-F
BAREFRANEBB R 2
FEHRAECRE - ZZFHEEVBRE
NEEEBHERIMABRARE
FEMBRA(TEMRAD Z2EAE
BRX - AEEHEAZERNEFHR
REBWT -

EEGTMAGERMEZIELER
FEEMBHREERN XRAKEE
Al Gt A G RERL AT HER
RA-EERZEE M SIEBA
SEEMNSTABEMNEHBE
HHENZFHRAVHHRRARMR -
BRABEBHIINME2()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M 5T

PN

A N =]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

130

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(c)

Hong Kong dollars)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the Amendment to HKFRS
16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021, issued by the HKICPA to these
consolidated financial statements for the current
accounting period.

Other than the Amendment to HKFRS 16, the
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impact of the adoption
of the amended HKFRS 16 is discussed below:

The Group previously applied the practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was
not required to assess whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic were lease modifications, if
the eligibility conditions are met (see note 2(h)).
One of these conditions requires the reduction
in lease payments affect only payments originally
due on or before a specified time limit. The 2021
amendment extends this time limit from 30 June
2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment
in this financial year.
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(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(d)

Hong Kong dollars)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.
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(e)

(f)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)

(i1)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(h)), are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).
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A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(f

(9)

Hong Kong dollars)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the shorter of their
economic useful life or

- Properties leased for
own use

terms of the leases

— Furniture, fixtures 2 to 10 years

and equipment

- Leasehold Over the unexpired

improvements term of leases

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it

is incurred.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Customer relationships 4 years
(clubbing business)

— Property management 10 years
contracts and related
customer relationships

— Trademark 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(h)

Hong Kong dollars)

Leased assets (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 2(f) and 2(i)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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(h)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs") on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances and trade
and other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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(i)

140

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is
90 days or 360 days past due depending
on whether the financial asset is related
to clubbing and restaurant and bar outlets
operations or property management services.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument'’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to
the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(i)

142

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(s)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(i)

144

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the CGU to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of CGUs are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset's carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 2(i)(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)
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()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business or in the form
of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(s)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see note 2(l)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

n

(m)

(n)

(o)

Hong Kong dollars)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
|losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2(u)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).
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PN

2N =]

(LA TR R)
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B 75 AR Y &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(p)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Retirement benefits are provided by the
Group under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme as defined contribution retirement
plan in respect of the operations in Hong
Kong. The employer's monthly contributions
to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contribution relating to the staff in the
PRC are made to the PRC local retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC.

The cost of all these schemes is charged
to profit or loss of the Group for the years
concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(p)

(q)

Hong Kong dollars)

Employee benefits (Continued)

All contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme in Hong Kong and defined
contribution government pension schemes
in the PRC by the Group vest fully with the
employees when contributed. Accordingly,
there are no forfeited contributions under
any defined contribution plans which may be
used by the Group as employer to reduce its
existing level of contributions for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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A N =]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

150

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(q)

Hong Kong dollars)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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BF S R R I A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(r)

(s)

Hong Kong dollars)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods or the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued) (s) WERHEMEA(E)
Further details of the Group's revenue and other BRAREE W R EAMKATERIEK
income recognition policies are as follows: REE—FFBOT

154

Revenue from sale of food and beverages
and tobacco products is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts
the products.

Prepayments from customers in respect of
the membership schemes operated by the
Group which are considered to be unearned
at the reporting date are shown as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Revenue from club operations (including
entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event
rental income) is recognised when the
services have been provided to the
customers.

Sponsorship income is recognised when:

- the promotion events have been held;
or

- the services have been rendered, and
it is probable that sponsorship income
will be granted.

Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised over the
period of services provided to the property
occupants/owners.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(s)

(t)

Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.

(s)

(t)

BERkHEAMBA (F)
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4= 2 F

W =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)
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(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired are translated into HKD at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(v) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(v) BEABER

(a)

W& T —H ZALTHE
HERXLBREAR REAEE
B

() EHIHERZEGARE:
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i
i

#

0/e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)
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(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(viii A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key

management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executives for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated
and based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of a non-current asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in profit
or loss. These non-current assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable, except for
goodwill which is tested on an annual basis. When
a decline of the assets’ recoverable amounts below
the carrying amounts has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group's assets are not readily available.
In determining value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of sales volume and amount of
operating costs.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(b)

(a)

160

Hong Kong dollars)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In measuring ECLs for trade and other receivables,
the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions.

Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets, and provision of property management
services.

Revenue represents the amount received or
receivable from the sale of food and beverages
and tobacco products, revenue from other club
operations (including entrance fees, cloakroom
fees and event rental income), sponsorship income
and income arising from provision of property
management services.

Further details regarding the Group's principal
activities are disclosed in note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by service lines and geographical
location of customers is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with

customers within the scope of HEANKBEEFEH
HKFRS 15 Z WA

Revenue from club and restaurant & T & 2 B2 48 & Wiz —
operations — Hong Kong &%

Revenue from property MEEEE WS —
management contracts A

— Mainland China

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )

(b)

(a)

BEZRHMEBERRFRE

RETEE 5 & H b B UK IR 2 A 1
EEEEN AEEZEEABS
RSB NEIR EEHAIE A X
FEMN BRBEEHEMN FAE
ABRAREEEERNER - FEHEE
ERBEXBRAEZH NEHABRA

e
B o

I 2=
REEBZETBEBAECHEBRLE
EARBEMEEERREDES
BRH -

WHEHERY MR MAREEE
an H) B Wk IR - & P A IR
@ (BRASE KEHRER KA
HEWA) BERERANRREHRY
FEERBEA -

BERAKBIEXB 2E—HFHB
1A B 524 () % FE

BERGREEPHIEMGE S 7
MXRBEEPAHNZEADHFN

BRMBRELEREISH

T
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$'000 $'000
FHE T FET
29,074 14,188
328,165 288,719
357,239 302,907



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

The Group's customer base is diversified
and no individual customer had transactions
which exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue
during the year ended 31 March 2022. During
the year ended 31 March 2021, one customer
with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue. Revenue from
property management contracts derived
from this customer, including revenue from
entities which are known to the Group to be
under common control with this customer,
amounted to approximately $38 million.

For property management services, the
Group recognises revenue as the services are
provided that correspond directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS
15 to its revenue from property management
contracts for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's
existing contracts as these contracts do not
have a fixed term.

(a)

W ()

AEBMNEFPEZLE #HE
—E-—HF=ZA=+—HItF
B BERARFPETHRS
M AREB W ABEI0% - RE =
—E-—F=ZA=+—HItF
B —R2EFPETHRHMEAE
EEWABI0% KB EZE
EFEIUMMEEREGNELE
A (B IEIE A S B pran
I3 P 52 H R A E S AU
M) A3BEBB T

IMEEERBMS  AKE
RIEHEE TR EONEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business line and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the most
senior executives of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has identified two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

Segment Business

Lifestyle entertainment  Sales of food and
- Hong Kong beverages and
tobacco products
from operation of
clubbing business
and restaurant and
bar outlets

Property management Provision of property
— Mainland China management services

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group's senior
executives monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of deferred tax assets, current
tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables and lease liabilities attributable to
the sales activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the
segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment
(loss)/profit is "adjusted EBITDA" i.e.
"adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”,
where “interest” is regarded as including
investment income and “depreciation and
amortisation” are regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group's
earnings are further adjusted for other
revenue, other net loss and items not
specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as directors’ and auditors’ remuneration
and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management
is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income
from bank deposits and interest expense
from borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.

(b)

DERE (F)

WERXHTE2EZE
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZMHE (HF)

REBEETE_—_FR-_FT=—
FZAZ+—BULEFEZER
Dl RDERBFHRANEE
ERTBABREFBEAER
AISRE D2 EREH N T e

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the most senior
executives of the Group for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021 is set out below.

Lifestyle entertainment  Property management

- Hong Kong - Mainland China Total
LERE-BE NEEE-TERY N
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-Cf ZEZ-F CEBE-Cf ZSZ-F B ZEZ-E
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000

TER TERL TiEn TERL TER TERL

RABEFHARBUBRTREDD

Revenue from external customers and

164

reportable segment revenue Wi 29,074 14188 328,165 288719 357,239 302,907
Reportable segment (loss)/profit TRESH (BR)/&A

(adjusted EBITDA) (f2BZEBITDA) (5:291) (12,117) 70,158 59,642 64,867 47,525
Interest income from bank deposits KAEHMERA 1 1 6,683 4,925 6,684 4,92
Interest expenses MEXH (566) (392) (10) 23) (576) (#15)
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (7,342)  (1291) (9,210) (8760)  (16552)  (21,671)
Impairment losses on goodwill HEREERE - (7,261) - - - (7,261)
Impairment losses on property, n% BERREAEER

plant and equipment (7,711) (11,486) - - (7,711) (11,486)
Reportable segment assets IREIHEE 8,294 18698 442,243 420331 450,537 439,09
Additions to non-current segment assets ENREFRDABEE (M)

during the year (note) 5,447 23,025 1,403 871 6,850 23,89
Reportable segment liabilities THEIDER 19,158 27928 188,760 167,00 207,918 195,008

Note: Additions to non-current segment assets consist

of additions to property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets.
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZMHE (HF)
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
$'000 $'000
FTET FH&TT
Revenue Y 2=
Reportable segment revenue and A3 E D MU= KR &
consolidated revenue (note 4(a)) W2k (/5/7&4(3)) 357,239 302,907
Profit or loss i F B 1B
Reportable segment profit REREBINGER 2
derived from the Group's A 5 & 9 &6 A
external customers 64,867 47,525
Other revenue E U 2 13,573 19,034
Other net loss Hih BB 5 (3,960) (5,996)
Depreciation and amortisation & & (17,731) (22,620)
Finance costs Bh & B A (2,350) (2,386)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE - (7,261)
Impairment losses on property,  ¥% % 5E k& #H R E
plant and equipment 518 (11,360) (11,486)
Unallocated head office and KoBRIELPERT
corporate expenses (24,556) (9,752)
Consolidated profit before B B AT AR & i )
taxation 18,483 7,058
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR E DI EE 450,537 439,029
Deferred tax assets FRAERIEEE 3,062 3,020
Current tax recoverable BV HA AT Uit (3] % 18 3,553 3,553
Unallocated head office and Ko BRARTEEE
corporate assets 145,186 1,645
Consolidated total assets MEBERRE 602,338 447 247
Liabilities =i
Reportable segment liabilities ARESIHEaE 207,918 195,008
Current tax payable B ER FE 1~ 7218 7,718 7,013
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE 16,574 15,153
Unallocated head office and Kol@RE LrEAE
corporate liabilities 126,238 94,382
Consolidated total liabilities MEBBERRE 358,448 311,556
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZMHE (HF)

The following table sets out information TRINEABG)AEEUEINED
about the geographical location of (i) the BRI RERIAEEY
Group's revenue from external customers X BELERE BVEE A
and (ii) the Group's property, plant and Z(IHEFRBEE])RE
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill E 2z Bk B P T %1%
("specified non-current assets”). The Fricft RAS sk E W iR EFTE 1
geographical location of customers is o -BME- -HELREKHEM
based on the location at which the services EREERBEE BN
were provided or the goods delivered. The BEMNREECERME e
geographical location of the specified non- REEREEMS LRMAAE
current assets is based on the physical DR 7 5 b B o

location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment, the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill.

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RMBEF GRS REXRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—2-C —E-—f ZEC-C —E-—F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

THET TET TR TET

Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FTBH) 29,074 14,188 1,219 11,698
Mainland China B A i 328,165 288,719 104,525 108,045

357,239 302,907 105,744 119,743
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—%F
$'000 $'000
FHET T
Bank interest income AT A B U A 7,215 4,946
Government grants (note) BT BY (A at) 4,464 8,816
COVID-19-related rent concessions received Ef§COVID-19i8F &
B=E 867 4,382
Others H it 1,027 890
13,573 19,034
Note: The amount represents government grants received from Hong Mzt ZeREEE LB E BT AT R 40 B
Kong and various PRC government authorities in connection with e ERMEEREVBER RAES XM
the fiscal subsidies for providing financial support to enterprises T & & B B B o
and paying wages to the employees.
2022 2021
—EC-C—f T4
$000 $'000
FHET FAT
Loss on disposal of property, EEME WELREER
plant and equipment (438) (129)
Net foreign exchange loss b H EBEHER (3,522) (6,117)
Reversal of provision for reinstatement costs 1 [B] 18 H 5 < % = 250
(3,960) (5,996)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VRN

2N =]

B 75 AR Y &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

168

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(a)

(b)

Finance costs

Interest on loan from the controlling

shareholder
Interest on lease liabilities

Staff costs

Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

AUX International Holdings Limited

(a)
(b)
BEEERERERLE

5= 407N

KEZEERERZ
alpss

HERBZHE

BIRAE

FUE PR IR
BE T

¥e TERHEM
=Rl

2022

— = — —

—_=—

$'000
TERT

1,740
610

2,350

23,206

135,303

158,509

BB ADEFIE MG, (FFA) THIEE:

1,938
448

2,386

12,484

117,465

129,949



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(c)

(d)

Other operating expenses (c)
(Reversal of)/impairment losses on trade
receivables (note 25(a))

Impairment losses on other receivables

Impairment losses on intangible asset

Impairment losses on prepayment for
property, plant and equipment

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
- non-audit services

Office expenses

Entertainment expenses

Travelling expenses

Legal and professional fees

Security costs

Gardening costs

Government surcharges

Bank charges and credit card
commissions

Community event costs

Other

Other items (d)
Depreciation charge (note 12)
- owned property,
plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets

Amortisation (note 13)
Cost of inventories sold (note 16)

Gain on termination of lease agreement

Hih 2 x
B 5 EWRIE
(#E) RAEEIE
(Htit25(a))
H b R U R IB R E
&5 18
mEERERE
ME- BB &EEENS
FIE 2 R EEE
% 85 6 % B
— BRI
—EBEZRG
WITE
EBREE
ERE
EEMBEEER
REE
Bl EES
IR T BT n &
WITFEEREAFR
e
RSB E R
Hl

HftHH
FEX L (Bet12)
—BENE BE
&L
—EREEE

B (WEE13)
EEFERA
(Ftat16)
A EHZELLE
i B A 2 W

2022
—E-=

$'000

FHET

(552)

33
3,391

2,927

41
2,973
1,986
1,766
3,383
1,952
4,424
2,036

1,347

2,241
6,595

34,543

1,628
8,215

9,843

7,888

7,683

(12)
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4,312

1,382

2,706

26
1,663
1,203
1,482
4,102
1,381
4,071
1,989

930
1,887
8,053

35,187

1,431
13,741

15,172

7,448

4,064
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) HZEBEXRPHVFBHRIE:
profit or loss represents:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Current tax - PRC Corporate BB E-FERE
Income Tax g8t
Provision for the year FERE 17,730 16,123
Current tax — PRC withholding tax BIEi{iE-FEKE
on dividend income WA FEHH
Provision for the year FEERE = 3,266
Deferred tax I B IE
Origination and reversal of TR ERESREL
temporary differences 861 (3,710)
18,591 15,679
Pursuant to the current rules and regulations of BRERSHEREBRLES ([R
the Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin Islands BREAES]NRERAKER
("BVI"), subsidiaries of the Group are not subject REEMBRRIBARZE AR
to any income tax in these jurisdictions. B @A ERPTSH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(a)

Hong Kong dollars)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, as the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong either
sustain a loss for taxation purpose or do not
generate any assessable income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
the PRC's statutory income tax rate is 25% (2021:
25%).

Among the branches of Ningbo AUX Property
Management Services Co., Ltd (“Ningbo AUX")
in the PRC, the Chengdu Branch was entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% under the Enterprise
Income Tax Preference Policies for the Western
Development. The directors are of the view that it
is highly probable that the Chengdu Branch will be
entitled to the same preferential tax rate and 15%
is adopted in estimating the tax provision for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, dividends
paid by subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC were
subject to a 5% withholding tax. Management
considered that the retained profits of these
subsidiaries in the PRC might be distributed in
the foreseeable future. Consequently, deferred
tax liabilities of $6,387,000 (2021: $3,447,000) for
temporary differences relating to undistributed
profits of subsidiaries were recognised as at
31 March 2022.

(a)

SEBRERTHNAEHRE: (&)

HRASERESNM BRI SR
HEHNMEHREEE NEBEAT
MEZRHRA M2 T -
E—E-_—4F=ZA=+—B1FE
WARREREMBEBREARBENE
TRVE B -

BREPRSCEMEBRE PBEEE
el & B25% (28 = — 4
25% ) ©

RERRZDTMEREE R A F
([BFREE] ) RPEZDARF
RE D R RRIEFAI AR EN S E
FIBHMEERREAEEZBISHNE
HHRE-EERBHHTORABIRE
A ZERGERREILRA
5% UATBRHE S -_—FRK_-F
——FZAZ+—RALFEZHEA
B -

BHE T - F=A=+—HItHF
E-AEERFRHOME QR AR
FET R BIRSR B MTE MBI - E R E
REZENPENKEB R AT/
ARG R D ERBEF AL 5
B /8 A R R 9 IR i A AR B8 A By =
ER_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HFU
TR I T TH & 56,387,000/ 7T ( =
T~ —4F: 3,447,000/ 70 ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) RERARETENFERIRE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: AR
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
Profit before taxation B 5% AT g A 18,483 7,058
Notional tax on profit before taxation, % Bl & %I &) % & F 18
calculated at the rates applicable to (IR BRE AR & F
profits in the jurisdictions concerned  EEAHEFHE) 7,494 6,223
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIFEF S AT 75 52 & 7,440 4,366
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERMB AN B E (379) (1,147)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary ﬂiﬁ@ B E R B E
differences TR 965 1,428
Tax effect of unused tax losses not PN wﬂiﬁﬁffdﬁﬁiﬂﬁ
recognised W E 2,344 4,424
Tax effect of profits subject to EXHEEBERE ZHN
preferential tax rate in the PRC W E (2,025) (1,754)
Tax effect of withholding tax on B B A Rl R 9Kk
undistributed profits of i ) B TE H0 7 &Y
PRC subsidiaries MBEE 2,752 (1,127)
PRC withholding tax on PR B A TEHI TR
dividend income - 3,266
Actual tax expense ERBIBERX 18,591 15,679
172 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Chairman and executive director

Zheng Jiang (appointed as the

chairman with effect from
24 July 2020)

Non-executive director

Zhang Jingguo (resigned as the
chairman and re-designated as a
non-executive director with effect
from 24 July 2020; resigned with
effect from 30 October 2020)

Executive directors

Chan Hon Ki
Shen Guoying

Liang Songluan (appointed with
effect from 30 October 2020 and

resigned with effect from
6 May 2022)

Independent non-executive
directors

Poon Chiu Kwok

Bau Siu Fung
Lou Aidong

Total

IRRUTES

EI(B-Z-Z%+A
“tUEEEZRTATR)

FUTES

REBE(B-E-_FFtA
TTHBERRTEREREL
AEBERTES R
“ZE-ZEF+A=1TAHR
B )

BTES

BEH
TLE
REREE(B-E_FF
TR+ AREZAIR
“E--FRANAR
BT)

BUFHTES
ARE
g
2ER

st

Directors’

fees

EzHe

$'000
TER

2,000

250
250
250

2,750

B 40 T PR
2022
—E-CF

Salaries, Retirement
allowances Discretionary scheme
and benefits bonuses contributions
e 2ER RIRGHE
& B #
$'000 $'000 $'000
TEx TER TET
1,716 - 18
1,716 - 18

Annual Report 2022 % 3R

SBE B R AMEM E3831) K &~ A (#
BEENEER ROIF 2 BEENESH

Total

Azt
$'000
THT

2,000

1,734

250
250
250

4,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

2021
“E--F
Salaries, Retirement
Directors' allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
Fe 2RR RAREE
20K Rl [k =pitan HR @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TET FEL FET FET TEL
Chairman and executive director IRRYTES
Zheng Jiang (appointed as the BI(BE-Z-ZE4LA
chairman with effect from 24 July 2020) “tRRREZAAER) 1,998 - - - 1,998
Non-executive director FHUnES
Zhang Jingguo (resigned as the KB (EZZ-2F+A
chairman and re-designated as a CTHREREFRBEL
non-executive director with effect HEAFRITES HER
from 24 July 2020; resigned with “EZZETAZTHERE)
effect from 30 October 2020) - - - - -
Executive directors HiTES
Chan Hon Ki REH - 1777 - 18 1,795
Shen Guoying HEES - - - - -
Liang Songluan (appointed with REREE(RZZ-ZF
effect from 30 October 2020 and TA=TBREZELR
resigned with effect from 6 May 2022) ZTZZFRANARET) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTES
Poon Chiu Kwok ERE 250 - - - 250
Bau Siu Fung g 250 - - - 250
Lou Aidong EER 250 - - - 250
Total Fehs 2,748 1,777 - 18 4,543
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, TEGReFMALPREAL(ZTEZ—
two of them (2021: two) was a director whose F WA BEE  EHINAMEIOPEE-
emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of HEih=% (7;:—35 =) AT HY B
the emoluments in respect of other three (2021: three) MEW T
individuals are as follows:
2022 2021
—_=2- T —%F
$'000 $'000
THERT TET
Salaries and other emoluments FehEMHe 2,381 2,467
Discretionary bonuses By IETEAL - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIKET SR 134 89
2,515 2,556

1 74 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

Hong Kong dollars)

The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals —H(ZE - F ZH)EeFMHALD
with the highest emoluments are within the following FHEATSHEN:
bands:
2022 2021
g —E—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANE
$Nil to $1,000,000 =% T 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
(a) Basic profit/(loss) per share (a) BRELFERN (FE)

(b)

The calculation of basic profit/(loss) per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $12,297,000 (2021:
loss of $8,621,000) and the weighted average
number of 388,181,000 (2021: 374,984,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Issued ordinary shares at the REYEFETERER
beginning of the year
Effect of share issued BEITRNZITE

Weighted average number of P AR #  i R hn
ordinary shares at the end 1 fig 21
of the year

Diluted profit/(loss) per share

The diluted profit/(loss) per share is the same
as basic profit/(loss) per share as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

(b)

H§ﬁ$}ﬁ§f'/(ﬁéﬂ§)ﬁ i
A QA E B RS A R E (R A
mzwom@m(ff——i &5 18
8,621,000 7T) * MR F RN ITE
B AN S 15 IS £7388,181,0000% ( —
T — — £ :374,984,0000% ) 5+ &

5o
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—%F
Number of Number of
shares shares
% 17 2 B & e B
‘000 ‘000
T T i
374,984 374,984
13,197 -
388,181 374,984

SRMERF, (FR)
SREEA/ (BR)RERE
A (R ABR T3 i R
HE-F-_#R_F-—%=F5
S+ BUEFEBTFEEERE
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Cost:

At 1 April 2021
Additions

Disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2022

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:

At 1 April 2021

Charge for the year

Impairment losses (note 12(b))

Written back on disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2022

Net book value:
At 31 March 2022

Cost:

At 1 April 2020
Additions

Disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:

At 1 April 2020

Charge for the year

Impairment losses (note 12(b))

Written back on disposals

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2021

Net book value:
At 31 March 2021

176

AUX International Holdings Limited

Properties
leased for
own use
fEE R
nENE
$'000
FEL
R
W-Z--£mA—§ 44,703
NE 4,778

HE (245)
ERAE 32

RZEZZE=A=1—-H 49,268
EHTERBEFE:

W-Z--£mA-A 33,360
FREY 8,215
HEEE (HH12m) 6,538
& R A (242)
ERAE 19
WZE-—F=zf=1+—H 47,890
RAFE:

WZEZ-F=ZA=1+—A 1,378
B

RZZ-ZFNA-A 25,706
RE 21,59
HE (2,660)
ERAE 61
RZZ--%=ZA=1+-A 44,703
RHMERBESE:

RZZ-FEMA—A 12,361
FRRER 13,741
HEEE (MiH12m) 9,903
L E R (2,660)
AR 15
WZ2--%=R=1-H 33,360
REFE:

WZE--f=Zf=1+-H 11,343

BnfiEBRERERAT

(a) FREEHER
Furniture,

fixtures and Leasehold

equipment improvements
HE H£ER

R HENEEE

$'000 $000

TEL FHL

20,751 36,452

4,240 1,749

(280) -

288 33

24,999 38,234

17,204 36,198

1,319 273

3,091 1,731

(225) -

160 32

21,549 38,234

3,450 =

18,959 35,997

1,797 433

(421 -

416 22

20,751 36,452

14,835 35,689

1,276 129

1,225 358

(293) -

161 22

17,204 36,198

3,547 254

Motor
vehicles

RE
$'000
TERL

164

40

211

Al
36

110

101

93

Total

a3
$/000
AL

102,070
10,807
(525)
360

112,712

86,833
9,843
11,360
(467)
214

107,783

4,929

80,752
23,896
(3,084)

506

102,070

62,928
15,172
11,486
(2,955)

202

86,833

15,237



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(b)

(c)

Hong Kong dollars)

Impairment losses
The amount mainly represented the impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment in relation
to lifestyle entertainment segment of $7,711,000
(2021: $11,486,000).

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
the operation of clubbing business and restaurant
and bar outlets continued to be loss-making.
The segment loss (i.e. adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation)
of the clubbing business and restaurant and bar
outlets for the year amounted to $5,291,000 (2021:
$12,117,000) and the Group has assessed the
recoverable amount of the relevant property, plant
and equipment. As a result, impairment losses of
$7,711,000 (2021: $11,486,000) were recognised
as "impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss to reduce the carrying amount of these
property, plant and equipment to their recoverable
amount of $Nil (2021: $11,313,000). The estimates
of recoverable amount were based on the value-
in-use model, in which the cash flows were
discounted using discount rate of 13% (2021: 13%).
The discount rate used was pre-tax and reflected
specific risks relating to the operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets.

Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Properties leased for own use,
carried at depreciated cost

(b)

(c)

EFERNEEMER
I ER AT IR

REEE
REeBRITERABREERE S
ﬁlﬁmfm% 5 K 5% % R E S
87,711,000 0 (=& = — &
11,486,000 7T ) °

BE_Z-_—_Fk-_F=-_—F=A1
“t+—HULEFE GMEBURE
EEROBMBPITH R E S B B1E -
CREBRER KBTS HBF
NEE (KAZKRTE B -IE
N # ST & F)) 55,291,000 7T (=
T~ —4:12,117,0008 7T) - A&
BEEEEEYE  BERZEHT
U [al & &8 - A L - BB A 187,711,000
BT (ZZ = —% : 11,486,000 7T )
ERGEBERAERA[WE.
BEREERERBRE] AR DZ
EME - BEERIBEHNEEAEZE
AlREEcEEETL( T - —F:
11313000/%7E)°5H&@i%ﬁﬁ’]1$
AIRIBEREEERGE  Ee
HNIRESRBIRIZ% (T - —F:
13% )T IR EFH - FTANREY
AR ERMELESHER £
B ROBENE P AR B M 4 E AR o

FEREEE
CREEERBAEERRMIED
REFETWET
2022 2021
—E__ T4
$'000 $'000
TR T FHET
1,378 11,343
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(c)

178

Hong Kong dollars)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The analysis of expense/(income) items in relation
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset:
Properties leased for own use

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a))

Expense relating to short-term leases
COVID-19-related rent concessions
received (note 5)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were $4,778,000 (2021: $21,596,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under renewed agreements for office
premises and a bar and restaurant outlet entered
into during the year.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 18(c) and 21, respectively.

As disclosed in note 2(c), the Group has early
adopted the Amendment to HKFRS 16, Leases,
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021, and applies the practical expedient
to all eligible rent concessions received by the
Group during the year.

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its premises for club, bars and restaurants and
office premises through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3
years.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )

HEBEBEZME
(Btat7(a))
HEHAEEEMN N
B COVID-19/0 M 4
B (Ki5)

(c)

EREEERHABEE
BRIMTEER
FERNEED R

FHEEE (&)
FEETERZNEEEE@ENI L
(WA BB :
2022 2021
—s-= T4
$'000 $'000
FET FAT
8,215 13,741
610 448
1,324 623
(867) (4,382)

& N B AE & = 18 N4,778,0000%8 7T

—F - — 121,596,000 70) ° #%
HEXTEZEFANEETNRLAEWER
BEREBPFTMHELOTEMNNER
feHeE-

HERRLABRAGLEER
&8 2 H 5 4 29 B &R I RE18(c) &
21 ¢

W20 FE R AEBERER
MEBMFHRELENE16REE (1B
SIR) —E-—FNAZF+HZER
COVID-1916B# 2 & BN F A
HASEOKRMEGEREZER
JERRI{THET T Ao

FEBECEREERRESERAE
TOERMER UERE S EE
NEBONSHARBAE L FH
E— RV BHME=4F-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(c)

Hong Kong dollars)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

One of the leases includes an option to renew the
lease for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension
periods are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities. The potential exposure to these
future lease payments is summarised below:

(c)

EREEE (&)

HPh—HHEERE —HEER &
HANBEREBEE -—REH-
RATHERAT AEERMAHEE
IREFMUFAIAAREITED
BHEER NENEEFLE-A
SENEEAFHERTAELR
RETEEREEE -WAKER
RAENMRBARETREERRER
A B A e R R E KA A
AHEEBZR-RERKEEN
REEER BB RN T

Potential future lease
payments under
extension options

Lease liabilities
recognised (discounted)

not included in lease
liabilities (undiscounted)

THAHEEBNER

BANHEAE BEETEEAREENN
(EBR) (REBR)

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E--f CZE-C —E-—F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TERT FTAET TERT FTAET
Premises for club = Hong Kong SRS —-BE 21,647 21,647 24,000 24,000

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,

REBEEZZT__FRZTE=-Z—F=

the Group received rent concessions for its
premises for club and restaurant and bar outlets
in the form of a discount on fixed payments as
a result of severe social distancing and travel
restriction measures introduced to contain the
spread of COVID-19.

A=+t—RLEFE RAHHTE M
REFEEREMRMBE BB N
S i PR I 45 B - AN 5% B 0E i 2 B
Hem ERKEEMHHEE R
REANTMOEAEEcEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

Property
management
contracts
and related
Customer customer
relationships relationships Trademark Total
NEEELHN
REBEE
BEHE 2EA B st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
AT TER TET TET
Cost: B
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZFMA—A 1,174 70,957 - 72,131
Exchange adjustments AR - 6,019 - 6,019
At 31 March 2021 R-F_—f=ZA=t+—A 1,174 76,976 - 78,150
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ_—-FMA—H 1,174 76,976 - 78,150
Addition NE - - 35 35
Exchange adjustments R - 3,185 - 3,185
At 31 March 2022 R-B-—#=A=+-H 1,174 80,161 3 81,370
Accumulated amortisation and EXBHERAEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZTFMA—H 1,174 20,696 - 21,870
Charge for the year FNRE - 7,448 - 7,448
Exchange adjustments PE 5B - 2,006 - 2,006
At 31 March 2021 RZB-—%=A=+-H 1,174 30,150 - 31,324
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FMA—H 1,174 30,150 - 31,324
Charge for the year FREY - 7,887 1 7,888
Impairment losses REEE - - 33 33
Exchange adjustments AR - 1,376 1 1,377
At 31 March 2022 R-F-_—_f=A=t+—A 1,174 39,413 35 40,622
Net book value: BRERE
At 31 March 2022 RZZE-ZZF=HA=+—H - 40,748 - 40,748
At 31 March 2021 RZZ-—-f¥=H=+—H - 46,826 - 46,826
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AFEEEHERFT AGEBERRNIITE
"depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated NEEE ] A -

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

$'000
FTET
Cost: A :
At 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZTFNMWH—AH 60,432
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 8 B 4,509
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—8&
—E-—FWA—H 64,941
Exchange adjustments ME 3,58 B 2,387
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZZF=HA=+—H 67,328
Accumulated impairment losses: it mEEE:
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, RZZEZZTFNMNA—B ZT=—F
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 =A=+—RH -ZZE=Z—FEAF—HK
—E-—_#F=ZA=+—H 7,261
Carrying amount: AREE :
At 31 March 2022 RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H 60,067
At 31 March 2021 R-TE-_—F=A=+—H 57,680

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

The Group's goodwill arose from the acquisitions of
Ningbo AUX in May 2017 and Mini Club Hong Kong
Limited (“Mini Club”) in April 2019.

The goodwill is attributable to (1) the workforce of
Ningbo AUX and the potential growth of the property
management industry in the PRC; and (2) the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth and the assembled
workforce of Mini Club.

BEHENRSELENNRENR
AEEFEDNDFEAR_ZT—+FHA
WEEERETHR - - NFMNAKE
Mini Club Hong Kong Limited ([ Mini
Club ) °

BERE(MMERRT LN TERKI LD
BYEXERTENBERR: URQEH
15 [ 2 e B0 i &5 - Y AR & K Mini Club®)
ERATF
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A BERERME

2N =]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

182

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified as
follows:

BEHENRSELE RN AENR
()
BESEREAEEM B SRS EEEN
mF :

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

$'000 $'000

THER FET

Property management business MEERERS 60,067 57,680
Operation of restaurant and bar outlets* E B ROBREPI - -
60,067 57,680

* The recoverable amount of the related CGU was lower than the

carrying amount and therefore the related goodwill was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using estimated weighted average growth rates of
3% (2021: 3%) which is not higher than the forecasts
included in industry reports. The growth rate used does
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using discount rates of 21% (2021: 21%). The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the operation
of property management business continued to be
profit-making and thus no impairment indicator for the
respective goodwill has been identified.
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* HEREAENNTRESERRER
B - AEAERECRBE_T_—F=H
=t RUEFEREAE

ReELBNMAT B BEERFERER
HESH -ZATEHERAREEEREN AL
hFERBEE GRS AE - BAR
FHNBRSRENFEAG NEEEER
RI%B (T —F: 3% )HE - EF5R
TERETFNBR -FTAERETEBA
ReELBNEEMEEBNRBFHIZ
RE-BFBEREUTRENR (T = —
F 2% )R -FMANMBEERAEBA ¥R
MARRE D E0 2 B B e Rk o

BE - —"F#=A=+—HILtEE Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TREHIHAEEXE EEXBESR
BEAREZNBRARZEB KRAAEIH
SN PR B B 2 JE R S E B

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation/ issued and effective
Name of company establishment paid up capital interest
B3l ERTREAE  FREZ
DAREH B 3L 4 B BA#E  HRER
New Pride Corporate Limited* BVI 101 shares 100%
RERLES 1013 100%
Cheerful Raise Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100%
EFHBRAA B 15 100%
Club Kingdom The Central Hong Kong 1 share 100%
Group Limited
Bk 1 100%
Success Deal Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100%
Bk 1 100%
Starry Chance Limited? Hong Kong 1 share 100%
EERARAF" B 15 100%
Ningbo AUX** The PRC 5,000,000 shares 100%
BRAR HE 5,000,000 100%
Po Tai Holdings Limited* Hong Kong 1 share 100%
EXEBRERD R B 15 100%
Legend Management Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100%
Bk 10,000 100%
* Ningbo AUX is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC. The

company name in English is a direct translation of the registered

Chinese name for the purpose of identification.

# KPMG are not the statutory auditors of these companies.

FA kgL f
Held Held
by the by a
Company  subsidiary
LN 2 ]
=20) =)
100% -
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

FEEHR

Investment holding

RA R

Provision of
administrative service
to group companies

MEEDRRETHER
R #%

Holding of trademarks
REBE

Operation of clubbing
business

mEamEy

Investment holding

REER

Provision of property
management services

REMEEE RS

Investment holding

BERHR

Operation of restaurant
and bar outlets

RERERERMT

* BERARHD—MRTBEZIIEEERE P
NATEHAEMEX AW BEEE EHf

Ao

' EFRGAMEBALIIZERTNEER

SR -
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
$'000 $'000
FBR FiTT
Food and beverages and other operating 'Y o M EME -
items for club operations and restaurant ERIBERNKEIER
and bar outlets 568 519
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as WRRAZWFABRNFESES A
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
$'000 $'000
TER FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENKREE 7,683 4,064
2022 2021
—E=-= —E -
$'000 $'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B S EWGRIE - R EE
(note) B (ML) 72,386 68,777
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & « 87 I8 K H A
FE U 3R IR 19,984 20,887
92,370 89,664
Note: At 31 March 2022, trade and other receivables of the Group Hit: RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HB AEBZEFK
included amounts due from entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Bt e Yo 3R TR B 4 e W AR N R AR AR R B0 R
Jian Jiang, the Company’s controlling shareholder, of $3,177,000 IREZFNERREEEEATENER
(2021: $3,193,000) and entities over which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang ZFIE 5 R A3,177,0008 T (T = —F:
has significant influence, of $5,303,000 (2021: $5,147,000). The 3,193,000 7t ) %5,303,0008 7T (=& = —
amounts represent property management fees receivable arisen & :5,147,000/ L) - ZAH AR B EXEBKH
in the ordinary course of business. BREEZEEYMEERE-
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A BERERME

2N =]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

The amount of the Group's deposits, prepayments
and other receivables expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after more than one year is
$2,638,000 (2021: $6,805,000), which mainly represent
rental deposits for office premises and restaurants
of the Group (2021: rental deposits for a club and a
restaurant of the Group). All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense within one year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month
Over 1 month to 3 months

—EAM

Over 3 months to 6 months
Over 6 months to 1 year

—FUE

Over 1 year

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note
25(a).

BE—EAZ=EA
BBE=EA=/NEA
BBANEAZE—F

AEBEEHGR —FRIKE LR BT
MRS B R R AR & 8
#42,638,00078 7T ( —F = — £ : 6,805,000
BL) EXTZ2AARAEERIEYE
FERZHEEREZ (ZF-_—F:KAKH
EMkERZEERSE) MAEEMES
Ko Eo At & U SR IR 3G TR EA RS — 4 A Uk (3 Bk
BB/

fRiR 7 #T
BERSHR FFAES MEMEKFIA
BE S EWFIRIRER B HA RN EE
BEBRAOKREDITAT

2022 2021
—_E_= —_EF_-—
$'000 $'000
TR FHT
29,230 30,009
11,157 8,832
7,400 6,256
9,886 8,801
14,713 14,879
72,386 68,777

AEBEEERRMEZRUFBEENE
B Rk 2 — SIS E R M £25() °
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)
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(a)

(b)

The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as (a)

follows:

Deposits with banks and cash on hand #R{TFHR L FEIRE

Restricted bank deposits (note (i) ZREIRITIFER (B E20))

Non-current time deposit FEBNEAE HAfF R

Cash and cash equivalents in the meEHaRERNESR
consolidated cash flow statement REEEY

Notes:

(i) Restricted bank deposits represent the cash collected from

property occupants/owners for the repair and maintenance
fund maintained by Ningbo AUX.

(ii) Included in deposits with banks and cash in hand of the
Group, $263,306,000 (2021: $225,881,000) are denominated
in Renminbi at 31 March 2022. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out
of mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's

liabilities from financing activities, including both

cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from

financing activities are liabilities for which cash

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as

cash flows from financing activities.
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ReRESEEBEYINUOT:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
$'000 $'000
FHET T
397,041 230,748
(4,598) (3,550)
(62,210) -
330,233 227,198

Hrat -

(i) ZRREBAFRIERDEER ¥ E
WER G (ERERRARHFE 2 #E
RRERS-

(ii) RZEZZF=A=+—H %%
EMRTEARFER R BE
263,306,000 T (=2 = — &
225,881,000 7T) " U A RMEHE - A
RETRAEAELBENEE mMESK
AR B A B BE 78 52 B IR S T PR 6]

METHFELEENYHR

T%:itﬁ’il%ﬂiéiﬁbﬁﬁﬁim
BEZY RERS MR
wﬁﬁxﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁgimﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmg
E%W*Xﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%’;ﬁ"ﬁgl
GERERERNDEERE G
FEANBRSRENZSaE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

MEZHMELRENYKR (A)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)

financing activities (Continued)

Loans from the

controlling
shareholder
and amount
due to the
controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REERRER
ERRER
ERBRRZE HESRE ct
$'000 $'000 $'000
TER TER TR
(note 22) (note 21)
(H322) (HE21)
At 1 April 2021 R-ZB--F@NA-H 89,639 23,044 112,683
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREH:
Proceeds from loan from the BEERBREER
controlling shareholder 22,060 = 22,060
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHERENAEE D - (13,661) (13,661)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BREEREMASED = (610) (610)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSR=ZE A 22,060 (14,271) 7,789
Exchange adjustments EXAE 3,528 7 3,535
Other changes: Hit 25
Interest expenses (note /(a)) FESHE (Hit7(a) 1,740 610 2,350
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ~ FRE ] v #HA G 1K
into renewed leases during the year HEEE - 4,778 4,778
Decrease in lease liabilities from REIEHEREMER
termination of lease agreement HEBERD - (15) (15)
COVID-19-related rent concessions EEBCOVID-I9EEELER
received - (867) (867)
Total other changes HnBHaHg 1,740 4,506 6,246
At 31 March 2022 R-ZB--%=8A=1+-H 116,967 13,286 130,253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

At 1 April 2020 R-ZB-BEME-H
Changes from financing cash flows: MEREREH:

Repayment of loan from the controlling BRERRRER
shareholder

Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEREN TS

Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEREMNMEHD

Total changes from financing cash flows HERSR=ZEAE
9 9

Exchange adjustments EHRAE

Other changes: Hit2g:

Interest expenses (note /(a)) FEZH (H#7()

Increase in lease liabilities from entering ~ FRE ] v #HA E1E 1K
into renewed leases during the year HEERE

COVID-19-related rent concessions BEBCOVID-19EREER
received

Total other changes Etn@gEs

At 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—%=ZA=+-H

1 88 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 53 Hf Bl B 42 i 5 FR 24 )

(b) BMEEDRMELEENHER(A)

Loans from the
controlling
shareholder
and amount
due to the
controlling
shareholder
REERRR
ERREN
BRI FE
$'000

THET

(note 22)
(Hrit22)

111,600

(31,248)

(31,248)

7,349

1,938

1,938

89,639

Lease
liabilities

HEARE
$'000
FHT
(note 21)
(Bti21)

22,129

(16,343)
(448)

(16,791)

44

448
21,596

(4,382)

17,662

23,044

Total

it
$'000
TET

133,729

(31,248)
(16,343)
(448)

(48,039)

7,393

2,386
21,596

(4,382)

19,600

112,683



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHAEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for REEFARERERTHRERS
leases comprise the following: FBAT&IE:
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
$'000 $'000
TER T
Within operating cash flows EREREMA (1,324) (623)
Within financing cash flows ERmERESRK (14,271) (16,791)
(15,595) (17,414)
These amounts relate to the following: ZESRETIEIBEER:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$'000 $'000
TERT FHET
Lease rentals paid [=ENEiEk 15,595 17,414
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
$'000 $'000
THERT FHET
Trade creditors B 5 ENFIE 29,944 28,331
Deposits received from property KEMEEE R
owners/occupants WER & 26,242 22,585
Receipts on behalf of utilities companies NS NI 17,728 17,161
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ BE Bt 75 kI8 2,040 3,041
Other payables and accrued charges HMENRIBERETER 54,242 45,914
130,196 117,032
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be BHFEE S REMENFEBR —FR
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. HERRIREREE-

The amounts due to related parties represent balances JE < BA Bk 75 RRIE (EL 4 FE AR 2 B 15 AR Ak
due to entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the REBBTAERENER &6 SEE
Company'’s controlling shareholder, which are unsecured, A RERAR—FARNEER-

interest-free and repayable within one year.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing HERSHAR FTAE S RHMERNRIE
analysis of trade creditors (which are included in trade BB S ENRIEREE R BHRE DTN
and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as N
follows:
2022 2021
—E—-= T —4F
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Within 3 months =EAR 14,819 13,957
Over 3 months to 6 months BE=mA=/ @A 11,131 10,546
Over 6 months to 1 year BN ERE—F 2,587 2,480
Over 1 year —F N E 1,407 1,348
29,944 28,331
2022 2021
—E-C —F-—
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Billing in advance of performance TE W B 49 F A 73,707 59,675
The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended BE_ZT-__F=ZA=+—RHLFE R
31 March 2022 that was included in the contract ZE-FNA-HFAGHNAEGERD
liabilities balance at 1 April 2021 was $59,675,000 (2021: BRI ® % A59,6750008 T (= F
$45,349,000). — — 4 145,349,000 7T) °

190 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 %2 &7 EO % 42 IR B R 2 &)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

At 31 March 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as

follows:

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEBRFA

The loans from the controlling shareholder are
unsecured. At 31 March 2022, the current portion of the
loans of $88,794,000 is interest-bearing at 2% per annum
and repayable in August 2022. The non-current portion
is interest-free and repayable after one year but within
two years. At 31 March 2021, the loan was unsecured,
interest-bearing at 2% per annum and repayable in
August 2022.

The amount due to the controlling shareholder,
representing the interest payable, is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable within one year.

NR-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H BEENH
Ea@EMT:

2022 2021
—E:=-= T4
$'000 $'000
FTET FH&T
12,284 14,285
1,002 8,387

= 372

1,002 8,759
13,286 23,044

REAERBRREERAEEF R _Z
T HFZRA=+—HB BERZAHIH
88,794,000/ JLIZ F F| E2%aT B M ZBR =
T FNREE-FNETIDAEEER
ER—FREMFRAEE-R_T-_—%F
ZA=+—H ERAEEHR  BHFAR2%
HERBENR-_E-_—_FEN\AEE-

PR RRRE (FEEMME) AER
B R2EBAR—FRERE-
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(a)

192

Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a)

of financial position represents:

Provision for PRC Corporate Income
Tax for the year

Provisional PRC Corporate Income
Tax paid

Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax
provision relating to prior years

Current tax payable

Current tax recoverable —
PRC withholding tax

FATBEEEMERER

ENEHPEEEMSNR

BEFEEBMNEH
BB

J& 1~ BN EA A 1B

BT ER A] Yg 3 A% 3K —
BRSO
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FREMBERRERFOEDEHRIERE:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
$'000 $'000
FHET T
17,730 16,123
(10,154) (9,706)
7,576 6,417

142 596

7,718 7,013
(3,553) (3,553)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) CHRIAELEHBE(EE) /8E:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/ RErE TR R A ER AR
liabilities recognised in the consolidated ERE(EE) /aEAK

statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

DRRFERNEEINT

Impairment
losses on Amortisation Undistributed
trade Accrued  of intangible profits of
receivables expenses assets  subsidiaries Total
EREWTE WEAR
HWHERE EHER EBREESE  RIREA @t
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000

THEL THAL THAL THAL TAL

Deferred tax arising from: BERERE:
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZFNA—H (1,975) (122) 12,565 4,251 14,719
Credited to profit or loss REBREFEA (721 - (1,862) (1127) (3,710)
Exchange adjustments EREE (191) (1 1,003 323 1,124
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZT=Z—-F=A=+-Hk

ZE-_-4MmA-A (2,887) (133) 11,706 3,447 12,133
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss Bz H 3k, (3FA) 81 - (1,972) 2,152 861
Exchange adjustments 5% (118) (5 453 188 518
At 31 March 2022 WZE-Z#=ZfA=+-H (2,924) (138) 10,187 6,387 13,512
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B 75 3R R M 5T

PN

A N =]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

194

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:
(Continued)

(b)

ERIAELEHB(EE) AfFE:
(%)

Net deferred tax assets recognised RERA B IEAK N K N HER

in the consolidated statement of
financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and
temporary differences arising from property, plant
and equipment amounting to $151,363,000 (2021:
$144,924,000) and $21,586,000 (2021: $28,118,000)
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which such losses and temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in
the relevant entities. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are (i) losses of $149,504,000 (2021:
$143,139,000) from Hong Kong operations that
can be carried forward indefinitely, and (ii) losses
of $1,859,000 (2021: $1,785,000) from the PRC
operations that will expire in five years from the
year in which they arose.
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HIEER IR E EF R

(c)

RER B BRI R A HERR
VELEFIAREFRR

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F
$'000 $'000

F#& T FHET

(3,062) (3,020)

16,574 15,153

13,512 12,133

AERELEHEEE

BB E2(q)FT SR A
SETERZAHEEERDE.
BELEBEENERZED
151,363,000 0 (=& = —4F:
144,924,000% 7T ) }&21,586,000/% 7T
—F— —4:28,118,000/ T ) HER
REFRBEEE FRAHEBERTK
AR BEERTANBEZERER
TR EEABAMIKIN RERK
HEEE S ()E18149,504,0007% T
—ZT — — 4% :143,139,0005% 7T ) -
RN BB r] EREBAE - i)
§5181,859,0008 L (ZE = — & :
1,785,000/ 7T ) R B EF -
RNEEEEFERITAFEREER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group'’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

Balance at 1 April 2020 R-B-ZFEWMA—-HM
&tk

Change in equity BE-Z2--%=A
for the year ended ST-BLFEERZH:
31 March 2021:

Loss and total comprehensive FABER2EKHEHE
income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2021 R=-Z=--f§=H=+-—H

and 1 April 2021 R-E--FWMA-BW
5323
Changes in equity BE-Z2--%=AH
for the year ended ST-BLEFEERZH:
31 March 2022:
Shares issued EE )

Loss and total comprehensive FAEBER2EKHBE
income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2022 R=-ZE--f=H=+-—H
) 4 &4

(a)

Share
capital
&N
$'000
TET

3,750

3,750

1,180

4,930

ERARSB 28

REBE GRS R & EHEKE D 3
NERRESROEREHNGE R
BHPR-FNEFRPEARRQFE
PIERARI D ZEHNFIFETI M
T~

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
R4 EE RER st
$'000 $'000 $'000
THT FHET FHET
177,000 (91,519) 89,231
- (11,102) (11,102)
177,000 (102,621) 78,129
72,542 - 73,722
- (9,360) (9,360)
249,542 (111,981) 142,491
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B 75 AR Y &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

196

(b)

(c)

Share capital (b)
2022
—E-=
No. of
shares
RH#E
'000
TR
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each §REE0.01ETHEREK 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER BRTRAR:
fully paid:
At 1 April REA—H 374,984
Share issued BETIRG 118,000
At 31 March W=RA=t+—-A 492,984
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
Pursuant to the share subscription completed on
15 February 2022, 118,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued to the immediate holding company for net
proceeds of $73,722,000 to provide additional
capital to the Company. As at 31 March 2022, the
capital injection was fully paid up.
Nature and purpose of reserves (c)

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of the business.
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A
2021
—E-—F
No. of

Amount shares Amount
x| B EE 8
$'000 ‘000 $'000
TET T TET
100,000 10,000,000 100,000
3,750 374,984 3,750
1,180 - -
4,930 374,984 3,750

BRBEFAABRERTEE IR
BB UEERARBAREG LAE
B—RETRR-AARBAHGKRE
EME AT BEHALR S -

BEER_ZE-_—_F#-_A+HHA=R
BHORORE EEEEERAR
2 77118,000,000% @ R% - LAETE
FFr {5 3018 F 56873,722,00078 T B A A
R EINEST - R —F=
AZ+—H FTEEREHL-

BENEERAN

Bt B AR R R EER
BATAR R A B An WER B BT 1S 3K
HNEB - REHRSHES AR
D NN = o R IS
DIRTARARRRER - HEERE
EFEDIKKREEBR AAF
BERENIN —MREBHBRETE
BEIEEEr R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

The capital reserve represents the cash paid
for the acquisition of subsidiaries contributed
by the former controlling shareholder in
September 2010.

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(t).

The Articles of Association of Ningbo AUX
require the appropriation of 10% of its profit
after tax each year, based on its statutory
audited financial statements, to the statutory
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital of Ningbo AUX. The
statutory reserve may be capitalised as the
paid-in capital of Ningbo AUX.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were $137,561,000

(2021: $74,379,000).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:

$Nil).

(c)

(d)

(e)

BENEERBN (A)

EAFEEREATERRRN =
E-ZEFNARKBHE AR
PR HIR &

B 34 % 5 2 4 40 B 50 S T B
5 95 2 1 2 4 ) B 8 51 B 2
B RN 20T Y 8
BT -

ERRRHARERRMENX
BFERBEEZATEEERZY R
R 1 E B B 1R a8 A B9 109% 5 A
EERME BEERHREDBER
B 7 H E it & A HI50% <A TE
FREAENMERER RN
RN

a5 K % B
R-ZE_Z—F=A=+—H 7#
DPEFARAIEZRENEEA
137,561,000 0 (—ZF = —F:
74,379,000/ 7T ) °

®E
EETERENEBEE-_ZE-__F=
A=+—HBzBRB(ZE=_—F: %
BIT) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)
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(f)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt position. The Group's strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate working
capital to service its debt obligations. The ratio of
the Group's total liabilities over its total assets at
31 March 2022 was 60% (2021: 70%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.
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(f)

EXRER

AEEEREANERZEERRE
AEBERFGELEEN EBEAE
P& T B 7K T A E m Ko AR 7% TE (B DA R
NEBERABRGERE B#ERKR
HREAFESEMEDRREAATK

F o

AEEBEYEPERRERAE
ARG B FEE Bk T &
ERTTEERNE SRR E R
BEBRREARRITERES Y
O T 18 B BB A R
(L BEE AL -

REBBERL2EZHBEBRRLERE
Ko AREENKE ABEDREFIE
BEHRE—RFENMLE LT HERIE
ERAMNEELESEEEEGERK K
EER T -_—_F=ZA=+—H8BH
BREEBERUBEELERBOB (ZF
T—F:70%) °

AR B HREAL M E 2 75 AF 5
S N B AN AR TE R o

AEER-REGBRTFELEEE -RY
B MEREEORR TXHAANE
BHEZFRRORIEAEEEEZS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(a)

Hong Kong dollars)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances is limited as the counterparties are banks
with sound credit standing.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group, as where there is credit exposure to the
Group, it is spread over a diversified portfolio of
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables in connection with operation of
clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets
is limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of property management services,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.

(a)

FERR (&)
HRRZUFREBRFEETR
B IR TT - AN 5 B A R B8R 1T 4 £R
R\ RRITEGBAAZOEER
BAEMR -

AEBEYERERENEEAEER
= B R R A FER -

AEBEzEFERARTIEREEFPE
BB E MEXEPEEM
ETEIBRAETE-ARAKE
HENEERRSBERZTENE
FHAE BAKEIEEREFE
SRk -

AEBEBEEGHR ERMEEMAWE
BERNE S RWFIRMELENE
ERBRAR HTHRHEF I AL
BRASREEEERRNSRKE-

REEHVEXEERBEENES
FEWRIB T & - 18 BIME B ¥ ik 5 &
HEEBB T2 RNEPET
WEFHEETEHE TP AT S
ZERLTHEEBRENEMNES I
EREFPZHTEMMRERZEM
ERREBERENHEBER -

AEERERANEHEMEERE
MR EESRUKAZEBRE
e B AR EREETHE -
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERB (&)
The following table provides information about the TEREJEFHEAKE@mEZEER
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade BIAKE SHEKKREZ BREEE
receivables: BRERE
2022
—E-C
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AHERE HIREE BERE
% $'000 $'000
% TET THET
Property management MEER
Less than 1 year past due BRIR—F 0% - 4% 60,205 2,532
1-2 years past due BH-EWEF 21% 10,648 2,216
2-3 years past due AEME=F 34% 6,880 2,349
3-4 years past due AH=ZmE 57% 4,073 2,323
More than 4 years past due AHERNE 100% 3,784 3,784
85,590 13,204
Operation of clubbing business and ~ M EEHEH EER
restaurant and bar outlets JBIEPT T
Current (not past due) B (RaH) 0% - -

85,590 13,204
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Property management WFEEE

Less than 1 year past due BERIR—F
1-2 years past due AH-EWEF
2-3 years past due BHME=F
3-4 years past due BH=ZmE
More than 4 years past due aHBANF

Operation of clubbing business and ~ AEBHEH EER
restaurant and bar outlets JBIEFT T

Current (not past due) B (K@)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

(a) EERMR (&)
2021
—E-—%F

Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEX BEREE EEERE
% $'000 $'000
% TET TET
0% - 5% 56,514 2,635
24% 12,277 2,987
38% 6,382 2,425
54% 3,526 1,894
100% 3,278 3,278
81,977 13,219
0% 19 -
81,996 13,219

EHERXERNBEAFNERE
BERAE YREBEELBBEE
] B B AR~ AT B R OE AR
EAREEMRANEGFFEHRADN
RERR=EZENZRETHE -
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERB (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FRN ERESERNEEBHER
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEHNT:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
$'000 $'000
THER FHET
At the beginning of the year ) 13,219 8,077
Impairment loss (reversed)/ (B@) /BERZRE
recognised (note 7(c)) B8 (K1it7(c)) (552) 4,312
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 3 B 537 830
At the end of the year RER 13,204 13,219
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELREMR
Individual operating entities within the Group FEEAFANKEERARERBLZ
are responsible for their own cash management, ReER PRASEKNESRR
including the short term investment of cash EREHEEREMNEHRRSFT R
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover ME {15 5 SR B TR TE B X A K S B
expected cash demands, subject to approval by AlEGEARIESgHAE- A& H
the parent company’s board when the borrowings FMBEARTHERRBES T K
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. WRRERTENEFEBERR A
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its TESHEBEIIERRREN R A
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains HEEHEE REEHARREARY
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed BaFEKe

lines of funding from major financial institutions
or controlling shareholder to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(b)

Hong Kong dollars)

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Amount due to the controlling
shareholder

Loans from the controlling
shareholder

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEELRE (&)
The following tables show the remaining TRIITNAEEe@mAENRED
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting ROBTENBIEBER IHRE
period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which EHRTHRBEERE (BEEAELN
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows ME (g -wEF e ARERE S
(including interest payments computed using REEIEAR R ) FHE A B R &
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates AEFEUHERNRN =T HEM
current at the end of the reporting period) and the (EhTE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2022
—B-Cf
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARARRRERM
More than More than Carrying
Within 1year but 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than 31 March
on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2022
R=%==%
—FRd -FHEE  WENLE =H=t-H
RER WELT REEHNT gt REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER TER TER TER TER
B REMENTA 130,196 = = 130,196 130,196
HEAR 12,470 1,012 = 13,482 13,286
JE T2 AR R R R
6,113 = = 6,113 6,113
REERERER
89,456 22,060 = 111,516 110,854
238,235 23,072 = 261,307 260,449
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B 75 AR Y &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

204

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEELRE (&)
2021
—E--&
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRTRRE R
More than More than Carrying
Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than 31 March
on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2021
R-E-—%
—ER —FN LB WEAER =R=+-H
HEX RMEAT TENRT @it REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TET TET FEL FER TAER
Trade and other payables ZHREMEMTA 117,032 - - 117,032 117,032
Lease liabilities HEERE 14,797 8,504 378 23,679 23,044
Amount due to the controlling  EERBERFHE
shareholder 4,373 - - 4,373 4,373
Loans from the controlling REERBRER &
shareholder 1,705 85,901 - 87,606 85,266
137,907 94,405 378 232,690 229,715
Interest rate risk () FEEM

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from lease liabilities and loan from the controlling
shareholder (interest-bearing portion) as disclosed
in notes 21 and 22 respectively. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in the following table.
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VAN
:él‘/T\I:I

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(c)

(d)

B 75 AR Y &

Hong Kong dollars)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fixed rate borrowings: EENEEE:
Lease liabilities HEERE

Loans from the controlling shareholder KRB ZRKREE K
Total borrowings BIER

The Group's interest-bearing financial liabilities at
fixed interest rates at the end of reporting period
are lease liabilities and loan from the controlling
shareholder that are measured at amortised cost,
and the change of market interest rate does not
expose the Group to interest rate risk. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis has been presented.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings and cash balances that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is Renminbi.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

() FEREM(HF)
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate $'000 rate $'000
- FIES TET BRAIE TER
3.5% - 6.5% 13,286 3.5% - 6.5% 23,044
2.0% 88,794 2.0% 85,266
102,080 108,310
AEERBFEHRNFE2REE
(BEEME) BIREHEKATTEHE
EHERERRRER MHHX
FPUTEEARETEFILAR -
B L 0 2 A R e e SRR
S e
(d) E®¥RMR

AREBEAZENINER R T ZHRA N
SNEEHEME R RBR S &% BT
RPMEREBZNEREENAINZ
ERstE-BERREARNER X
ZRARE-

T 2 B i A B 2 45 R
T 1 A AF T e A
ohi IS EHE R E R A E S
EEMELHSERR A2
5B ) B & R 4 B
B0 B S K 2 8 5% T 31 -
BN 2 B R B
£ 8 2 5 S E T
SHE S
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A B SRR M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥ @k (&)

Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in HKD)

TH B M5 3L B
(LABRTRTR)
2022 2021
—E=-C —F-—%F
Renminbi Renminbi
AR AR
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITERRFERS 14 611
Loans from the controlling KEERRRER
shareholder (88,794) (85,266)
Net exposure arising from BEHEREERBEM
recognised assets and liabilities EEZRERFE (88,780) (84,655)
The following table indicates the TRIRERFZFTA H R S
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss HRFFTE - MR WEEBRA
after tax (and accumulated losses) that would 5 3 Fe B AR A PE R %
arise if foreign exchange rate to which the ALBRZs XEBBRBEES
Group has significant exposure at the end B(REFEE)JTELEEN
of the reporting period had changed at B 28 o

that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.
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A BERERME

(Expressed in

(LA TR R)

(d)

Hong Kong dollars)

Currency risk (Continued)

Renminbi ARE

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ loss after tax and accumulated
losses measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

(d) E¥ER (&)

2022
—E-CE
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in loss

(decrease)  after tax and

in foreign in accumulated
exchange rate losses
BHEEER

HEEE 2itEE
LR/ (TR)  #m/ (D)

$'000

TER

10% 8,878
(10)% (8,878)

2021
—E--F
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in loss

(decrease) after tax and

in foreign  in accumulated
exchange rate losses
BRE&BER

HEEE 2itBE
R/(TR) #Em/ (i)

$'000

THEL

10% 8,466
(10)% (8,466)

ERFABATERERZTIAE
BT A S B Ih BE B 5T B 0
AEBERRBRERRRG
BRI mEMRIRITE RN
RETHGERINBTE -

Annual Report 2022 £ 3§ 207



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables within the Group, if
any, which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group's presentation currency. The
analysis has been performed on the same
basis for 2021.

(e) Fair value measurement
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2022 and 2021.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in note 10, is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term employee & M E M5 HiE & H)

benefits

Retirement scheme contributions RRET SR

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).
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(e)

(a)

EWER (&)
BEE AT BRINEER 2 2

DRSNS S e S
EWAREL KA AR
e BT A B EERLE
{77 2 T B 9 M SHELZ JE A9 30
H (W) - DT IE I
CES FEUE S EL LS
W2 2R 2 ER
WA R = — AR A
17 -

AFHEFTE
NEBFRBHEKAAAARE 2SR T A
ZHEEMEERER T -_—_FK=-_F
T F=ZA=Z+—HBZAFE=ZDH
Ko

FREERBABHMH
AEBETEEERABNFTFH (8
BN FHEMEENARARES
LM EI0MBEENSE TS HHE
BEFIE) T

2022 2021
—E_-C —_EF_-—

$'000 $'000

FET FET

7,481 7,711

169 128

7,650 7,839
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A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TR R)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with other related parties

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions:

(b)

Property management services income KB R 2 MEEE

from related parties (note)
Short term lease expenses paid to
related parties (note)

Note: The related parties represented the entities owned
or controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the controlling
shareholder of the Group.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
above transactions were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
business.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The property management services income from
related parties disclosed in note 26(b) includes
$57,567,000 (2021: $56,929,000) which constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Report of the directors.

In addition, short term lease expenses paid to
related parties disclosed in note 26(b) constituted
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

RIGUN (B et )
ENEBRINEHEE
P (B7it)

(c)

RHEMEBRL 2R
BAMBHRREMEBDAEEZR
5 RAEHIN ANE B ERH T T
TIERRS:

2022 2021

—_E_-__ —_EF_-—
$'000 $'000
FET FAET
73,697 71,945
619 -

Wit BB EAASEZERRREETE
ERBREFNERE-

ARAEERA LR ZTEH
FEBBRETR -MRBEEERFIL-

HEEXRZEBNLETRAZER
i3

E XM R26b)FT I TR B S 2
Y% BB RB AP+ 57,567,0007%8
7T (& = — 4 : 56,929,000/ 7T ) &
R EMBRBEIAAEFTREZHER
B G FRAIEIAAE T E SR
BOREZTERES [FEHER S
— &5 o

AN B SCHE EE26(b)FT B 2 B
AR BAER BN ETR
AIB4AEFTRECBER S A
i ARZERZENRE14AT6(MNIE
HET 2 &EHEKTE WEHRRE
TFTETRAUNEUUAZ ZIHERT -
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A BERERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities
Other payables
Lease liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
ME - BEM&E
KRB A RHRE

RBEE

H A & U 3R IR

& Uiz B /&8 2~ B) R IR
RITFEAEFERS

REBEE
H A JE {5 7R IA
HERRE

REBEEFE
EERERABDAER

FRBEME
HERRE

EEFE
EEXR@ERE
P A

ff# 18
RERARE

At 31 March 2022, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to
be Huiri Limited and Ze Hui Limited respectively, both
are incorporated in the BVI and beneficially owned by
Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. None of these parties produces
financial statements available for public use.

21 0 AUX International Holdings Limited

BnfiEBRERERAT

2022

—E:=-=
Note $'000
5T FET

1,211
10
1,221
123
77,095
69,999
147,217
4,582
941
5,523

141,694

142,915
424

142,491

24(a)

4,930
137,561

142,491

118
81,800
487

82,405

4,286

4,286

78,119

78,129

78,129

3,750
74,379

78,129

W-E-—F=ZA=+—H EERAK
EEMNEES QR RREIERQAED
BEBZEBRER AR EZERER QA /M
MARHRABE XA S MR & hE

BIRLEDEA -ZFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A TTRR)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and
a new standard, HKFRS 17, /nsurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2022
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

BETRZEMBRERAY EE M
RNECRMBZIRER] K —HH ] ER (&
BMBMEERNENTR - RESK) %%
BT RHTEMRBE-_T_—F=A
=t BUEFERARERBAL RN ZEFH
TR PB4 o AT 23 7 B B K &2 [ 48
FARVIER] -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTBEHR &%

WESTHEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
EREMBRELENEIRER] L 2MEHL 24 T -F—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment Proceeds before 1 January 2022

Intended Use

ER G ERNFENR ZER] WF  Bi5 KK — (ERTE 5B 2 AT ig R T -F—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BERGERNEII R 2B FESK —EITEXZ KA e

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

1 January 2022

EREMBRELEN - N\FE_Z_ZTFRAFEIE —E-_%—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
ERQENBIVRZER FHRB A TBEEZ T —T-_=%—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies

FRAGHENF IR LBV HREENEHRE F295R 2185

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

BB G ERNFRIER] Baflhat 2T &

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and

liabilities arising from a single transaction

1 January 2023

BB RE —2-=%—8—§

1 January 2023
—F-_=%—-HA—H

1 January 2023

ERGHENFI2ZR 2R HE—XZGELNEERREHHAELZHE —E-=%—A—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

AEBELEFEZFETNERERAREZ
BHEE-2oRL AEERBRANZ
SR EANIEHREMBHRERE
RERZE-
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Five-Year Financial Summary
hEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and AEEBERIEAFBRFENEEAREE #
liabilities of the Group for the five financial years is as follows: @mWREBEHMZH T :

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=Z+—BLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EC-CF - —T-FF —ET-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FET FET FHT

Revenue Yoz 357,239 302,907 339,972 317,568 268,237
Profit/(loss) from operations BEEERN,/ (B1B) 20,833 9,444 32,122 (398) (19,077)
Income tax expense PEHEAX (18,591) (15,679) (15,953) (6,891) (4,956)
(Loss)/profit for the year N (B1B),/ &N (108) (8,621) 13,213 (9,635) (25,517)
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EDCE T _T-TE —Z-NF ZZB-N\#F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TAT TET

Total Assets BEE 602,338 447,247 433,194 427,738 431,650
Total Liabilities mafm 358,448 311,556 (304,820) (297,490 (279,840

243,890 135,691 128,374 130,248 151,810

Equity attributable to: WTFATEG#RER:
- Owners of the Company —ARAHEAAN 243,890 135,691 128,374 130,248 151,810

212 AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 %2 &7 EO % 42 IR B R 2 &)
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